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. Group Statement of Comprehensive Income of Erste Group
for the Year ended 31 December 2014

Income statement

11213
in EUR thousand Notes restated 11214
Net interest income 1 4,685,041 4,495,201
Net fee and commission income 2 1,806,463 1,869,848
Dividend income 3 89,676 74,217
Net trading and fair value result 4 218,816 242,259

Net result from equity method investments 21,818 15,810

Rental income from investment properties & other operating leases 5 173,326 180,593
Personnel expenses 6 -2,232,410 -2,184,224
Other administrative expenses 6 -1,145,997 -1,136,930
Depreciation and amortisation 6 -517,688 -466,113
Gains/losses from financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 7 62,365 18,283
Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss 8 -1,774,371 -2,159,242
Other operating result 9 -1,008,622 -1,752,936

Levies on banking activities 9 -311,035 -256,271
Pre-tax result from continuing operations 378,418 -803,232
Taxes on income 10 -178,539 -509,404
Net result for the period 199,880 -1,312,636

Net result attributable to non-controlling interests 139,605 129,357

Net result attributable to owners of the parent 60,275 -1,441,993

Adoption of IFRS 10 led to retrospective consolidation of several entities and additionally the new implemented structure of Income
Statement and Balance Sheet resulted in retrospective changes in the presentation, as further explained in section “B. SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES”.

Statement of comprehensive income

11213
in EUR thousand Notes restated 11214
Net result for the period 199,880 -1,312,636
Other comprehensive income
Items that may not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net liability of defined pension plans 34 -6,713 -188,196
Deferred taxes relating to items that may not be reclassified 2,260 47,093
Total -4,453 -141,102
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Available for sale reserve (including currency translation) -113,178 581,154
Gain/loss during the period 7;8 -121,843 574,144
Reclassification adjustments 8,665 7,011
Cash flow hedge reserve (including currency translation) -71,942 172,783
Gain/loss during the period 45 -72,380 224,285
Reclassification adjustments 438 -51,502
Currency translation -241,390 -63,062
Gain/loss during the period -321,192 -63,062
Reclassification adjustments 9 79,802 0
Deferred taxes relating to items that may be reclassified 28 44,931 -190,587
Gain/loss during the period 40,962 -193,353
Reclassification adjustments 3,969 2,765
Total -381,579 500,288
Total other comprehensive income -386,032 359,186
Total comprehensive income -186,152 -953,450
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 17,353 270,310
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent -203,505 -1,223,760
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Earnings per share

Earnings per share constitute net profit/loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent — adjusted for dividend on participation
capital in the amount of EUR 0 million (2013: EUR 84.7 million) — divided by the average number of ordinary shares outstanding.
Diluted earnings per share represent the maximum potential dilution (through an increase in the average number of shares) that would
occur if all subscription and conversion rights granted were exercised (also see Note 36 Total equity).

1-12 13

restated 1-12 14
Net result attributable to owners of the parent in EUR thousand 60,275 -1,441,993
Dividend on participation capital in EUR thousand -84,660 0
Net result for the period attributable to owners of the parent after deduction of the participation capital dividend in EUR thousand -24,385 -1,441,993
Weighted average number of outstanding shares 411,553,048 427,533,286
Earnings per share in EUR -0.06 3137
Weighted average diluted number of outstanding shares 411,553,048 427,533,286
Diluted earnings per share in EUR -0.06 -3.37
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Il. Group Balance Sheet of Erste Group as of 31 December 2014

01.01.2013 31.12.2013
in EUR thousand Notes restated restated Dec 14
Assets
Cash and cash balances 12 9,740,458 9,300,683 7,835,417
Financial assets - held for trading 15,954,801 12,283,046 10,530,878
Derivatives 13 10,776,816 6,342,237 7,173,380
Other trading assets 14,18 5,177,984 5,940,808 3,357,498
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 15;18 715,800 528,984 349,583
Financial assets - available for sale 16;18 22,537,158 20,677,648 22,373,356
Financial assets - held to maturity 17;18 18,971,705 17,779,013 16,877,214
Loans and receivables to credit institutions 19 9,007,832 8,376,688 7,442,288
Loans and receivables to customers 20 124,353,061 119,944,501 120,833,976
Derivatives - hedge accounting 22 2,658,845 1,943,645 2,871,607
Property and equipment 26 2,439,100 2,319,501 2,264,041
Investment properties 26 1,022,911 950,572 950,168
Intangible assets 27 2,893,886 2,440,833 1,440,946
Investments in associates and joint ventures 23 174,099 207,594 194,984
Current tax assets 28 127,634 100,398 107,310
Deferred tax assets 28 657,508 719,015 301,469
Assets held for sale 29 708,119 74,774 291,394
Other assets 30 2,108,221 2,470,898 1,622,702
Total assets 214,071,137 200,117,792 196,287,334
Liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities - held for trading 10,640,382 6,474,745 7,746,381
Derivatives 13 10,159,387 6,086,938 7,188,386
Other trading liabilities 31 480,995 387,807 557,994
Financial liabilities - at fair value through profit or loss 2,552,290 2,339,171 2,072,725
Deposits from banks 0 0 0
Deposits from customers 632,477 459,964 319,960
Debt securities issued 32 1,919,813 1,879,207 1,752,765
Other financial liabilities 0 0 0
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 177,321,576 170,785,614 166,921,248
Deposits from banks 33 21,822,081 17,299,491 14,802,602
Deposits from customers 33 122,366,767 121,955,141 122,262,612
Debt securities issued 33 32,810,004 31,244,697 29,386,741
Other financial liabilities 322,724 286,286 469,294
Derivatives - hedge accounting 22 719,499 644,319 725,928
Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items 1,646,691 733,747 1,225,473
Provisions 34 1,487,745 1,447,605 1,652,688
Current tax liabilities 28 53,022 84,519 91,050
Deferred tax liabilities 28 323,507 169,392 98,778
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 338,870 0 0
Other liabilities 35 2,650,619 2,653,713 2,309,605
Total equity 16,336,937 14,784,966 13,443,457
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 3,491,397 3,465,959 3,605,371
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 12,845,540 11,319,006 9,838,086
Total liabilities and equity 214,071,137 200,117,792 196,287,334

Adoption of IFRS 10 led to retrospective consolidation of several entities and additionally the new implemented structure of Income
Statement and Balance Sheet resulted in retrospective changes in the presentation, as further explained in section “B. SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES”.
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€6

lll. Group Statement of Changes in Total Equity

Remeasurement Equity Equity

of net liability of attributable to  attributable to

Subscribed Capital Retained Cash flow Available for Currency defined pension owners of the non-controlling
in EUR million capital reserves* earnings* hedge reserve sale reserve translation plans Deferred tax parent interests Total equity
As of 31 December 2013 860 7,037 4,256 -33 259 -785 =277 2 11,319 3,466 14,785
Changes in treasury shares 0 0 -77 0 0 0 0 0 -77 0 -77
Dividends paid 0 0 -171 0 0 0 0 0 -171 -122 -292
Capital increases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Participation capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Change in interest in subsidiaries 0 0 -10 0 0 0 0 0 -10 -9 -19
Other changes 0 -5,559 5,559 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Acquisition of non-controlling interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total comprehensive income 0 0 -1,442 173 321 -65 -117 -94 -1,224 270 -953
Net result for the period 0 0 -1,442 0 0 0 0 0 -1,442 129 -1,313
Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 173 321 -65 -117 -94 218 141 359
As of 31 December 2014 860 1,478 8,116 140 580 -849 -394 -92 9,838 3,605 13,444
As of 1 January 2013 2,547 6,472 4,395 41 227 -555 -268 -4 12,855 3,483 16,338
Restatement 0 0 1 0 -11 0 0 0 -10 8 -2
Restated as of 1 January 2013 2,547 6,472 4,396 41 216 -555 -268 -4 12,845 3,491 16,336
Changes in treasury shares 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 100
Dividends paid 0 0 -299 0 0 0 0 0 -299 -44 -343
Capital increases 70 571 0 0 0 0 0 0 642 0 642
Participation capital -1,757 -7 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,764 0 -1,764
Change in interest in subsidiaries 0 0 -2 0 0 0 0 0 -2 1 0
Other changes -1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Acquisition of non-controlling interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total comprehensive income 0 0 60 -73 44 -231 -9 5 -203 17 -185
Net result for the period 0 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 60 140 200
Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 -73 44 -231 -9 5 -263 -123 -386
As of 31 December 2013 860 7,037 4,256 -33 259 -785 =277 2 11,319 3,466 14,785

*) The reclassification between capital reserves and retained earnings is due to a group internal merger between EGB Ceps Beteiligungen GmbH and EGB Ceps Holding GmbH with Erste Group Bank AG.

For further details, see Note 36 Total equity.



IV. Group Cash Flow Statement

11213
in EUR million restated 11214
Net result for the period 200 -1,313
Non-cash adjustments for items in net profit/loss for the year
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and reversal of impairment, revaluation of assets 972 1,612
Allocation to and release of provisions (including risk provisions) 1,808 2,194
Gains/(losses) from the sale of assets 7 -153
Other adjustments =272 -23
Changes in assets and liabilities from operating activities after adjustment for non-cash components
Financial assets - held for trading 3,671 1,902
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 179 107
Financial assets - available for sale 1,924 -1,382
Loans and receivables to credit institutions 642 -1,186
Loans and receivables to customers 4,230 -890
Derivatives - hedge accounting 569 -755
Other assets from operating activities -1,521 986
Financial liabilities - held for trading -3,5674 1,272
Financial liabilities - at fair value through profit or loss 173 -266
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Deposits from banks -4,696 -2,497
Deposits from customers -757 307
Debt securities issued -1,432 -1,875
Other financial liabilities 0 183
Derivatives - hedge accounting 68 82
Other liabilities from operating activities -1,914 4
Cash flow from operating activities 277 -1,691
Proceeds of disposal
Financial assets - held to maturity and associated companies 5,660 3,078
Property and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties 347 231
Acquisition of
Financial assets - held to maturity and associated companies -4,500 -2,160
Property and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties -726 -634
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash and cash equivalents acquired) 0 0
Disposal of subsidiaries 62 0
Cash flow from investing activities 844 514
Capital increases 642 0
Capital decrease -1,764 0
Acquisition of non-controlling interest 0 0
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent -299 -171
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests -44 -122
Other financing activities 0 0
Cash flow from financing activities -1,465 -292
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ’ 9,740 9,301
Cash flow from operating activities 277 -1,691
Cash flow from investing activities 844 514
Cash flow from financing activities -1,465 -292
Effect of currency translation -95 4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period’ 9,301 7,835
Cash flows related to taxes, interest and dividends 4,566 4,302
Payments for taxes on income (included in cash flow from operating activities) -209 -267
Interest received 6,984 6,301
Dividends received 90 74
Interest paid -2,299 -1,806

1) Cash and cash equivalents are equal to cash in hand and balances held with central banks.

Adoption of IFRS 10 led to retrospective consolidation of several entities and additionally the new implemented structure of Income
Statement and Balance Sheet resulted in retrospective changes in the presentation, as further explained in section “B. SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES”.
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V. Notes to the Group Financial Statements of Erste Group
A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Erste Group Bank AG is Austria’s oldest savings bank and the largest wholly privately owned Austrian credit institution listed on the
Vienna Stock Exchange. It is also quoted on the Prague Stock Exchange (since October 2002) and on the Bucharest Stock Exchange
(since February 2008). The registered office of Erste Group Bank AG is located at Graben 21, 1010 Vienna, Austria.

Erste Group offers a complete range of banking and other financial services, such as savings accounts, asset management (including
investment funds), consumer credit and mortgage lending, investment banking, securities and derivatives trading, portfolio management,
project finance, foreign trade financing, corporate finance, capital market and money market services, foreign exchange trading, leasing
and factoring.

It is planned for the management (following a presentation to the supervisory board) to approve the consolidated financial statements for
publication on 27 February 2015.

Erste Group is subject to the regulatory requirements of Austrian and European supervisory bodies (National Bank, Financial Market
Authority, Single Supervisory Mechanism). These regulations include those pertaining to minimum capital adequacy requirements, cate-
gorisation of exposures and off-balance sheet commitments, credit risk connected with clients of the Group, liquidity and interest rate
risk, items denominated in foreign currencies and operating risk.

In addition to the banking entities, some Group companies are subject to regulatory requirements, specifically in relation to asset man-
agement.

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of Erste Group for the financial year ending on 31 December 2014 and the related comparative
information were prepared in compliance with applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union on the basis of IAS Regulation (EC) No. 1606/2002. This satisfies the requirements of Section 59a of the Austrian Banking Act
and Section 245a of the Austrian Commercial Code.

In accordance with the applicable measurement models prescribed or permitted under IFRS, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a cost (or amortised cost) basis, except for financial assets - available for sale, financial assets and liabilities held for
trading (including derivatives), instruments subject to hedge accounting and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss, all of which have been measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Except for regulatory restrictions on capital distributions stemming from the EU-wide capital requirements regulations applicable to all
financial institutions based in Austria and Central and Eastern Europe, Erste Group does not have any other significant restrictions on its
ability to access or use the assets and settle the liabilities of the Group. Also, the owners of non-controlling interests in Group subsidiaries
do not have protective rights that can significantly restrict the Group’s ability to access or use the assets and settle the liabilities of the
Group.

Except as otherwise indicated, all amounts are stated in millions of euro. The tables in this report may contain rounding differences.

The consolidated financial statements have not been reviewed and accpeted by the supervisory board and the financial statements of Erste
Group Bank AG have not been approved by the supervisory board yet.
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b) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries
All entities directly or indirectly controlled by Erste Group Bank AG are consolidated in the Group financial statements on the basis of
their annual accounts as of 31 December 2014, and for the year then ended.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date when control is obtained until the date when control is lost. Control is achieved when Erste
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the relevant activities of the investee. Relevant activities are those which most significantly affect the variable
returns of an entity.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal. The financial statements of the bank’s subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as that of Erste Group Bank AG and using consistent accounting policies. All intra-Group balances, transactions, income
and expenses as well as unrealised gains and losses and dividends are eliminated.

Non-controlling interests represent those portions of total comprehensive income and net assets that are not attributable directly or indi-
rectly to the owners of Erste Group Bank AG. Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statement of com-
prehensive income and within equity on the consolidated balance sheet. Acquisitions of non-controlling interests as well as disposals of
non-controlling interests that do not lead to a change of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby the difference between
the consideration transferred and the share in the carrying amount of the net assets acquired is recognised as equity.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, an interest in an associ-
ate or joint venture is recognised on the balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
entity. The Group’s share of the associate’s or joint venture’s profit or loss is recognised in the income statement. Entities accounted for
using the equity method are recognised on the basis of annual financial statements as of 31 December 2014 and for the year then ended.

Associates are entities over which Erste Group exercises significant influence (‘associates’). Significant influence is the power to partici-
pate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. As a general rule,
significant influence is presumed to mean an ownership interest of between 20% and 50%.

Joint ventures are joint arrangements over which Erste Group exercises control jointly with one or more other venturers, with the ventur-
ers having rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than to the assets and liabilities relating to the arrangement. Joint control
exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Erste Group is not
involved in joint operations.

Scope of consolidation

As at 31 December 2014, Erste Group Bank AG, as parent entity of Erste Group, includes in its IFRS scope of consolidation a total of
528 subsidiaries (31 December 2013: 549). This includes a total of 47 local savings banks which, alongside Erste Group Bank AG and
Erste Bank der oesterreichischen Sparkassen AG, are members of the Haftungsverbund (cross-guarantee system) of the Austrian savings
bank sector (please refer to “(d) Significant accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates” for further details).

The IFRS scope of consolidation of Erste Group has been increased by a total of 34 entities. Additionally, 18 own-managed investment
funds were included retrospectively as a result of adopting IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” (please refer to “(d) Significant
accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates” and “(e) Application of amended and new IFRS/IAS” for further details, including
the ensuing quantitative impact on the comparatives as at 31 December 2013).

Following the implementation of the new agreements of the cross-guarantee system (please refer to chapter d) Significant accounting
judgements, assumptions and estimates) and the related financial support of the members an ex-ante funds was established. The fund is
managed by a civil law company named IPS GesbR. The assets of the fund — the members of the cross-guarantee system are required to
pay into the fund over a period of ten years - are bound and can be used solely for the purpose to cover loss events of members of the
cross-guarantee system. The company IPS GesbR was included in the scope of consolidation in year 2014.
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Opening balance as of 31 December 2013 549

Additions

Entities newly added to the scope of consolidation 34
Disposals

Companies sold or liquidated 31
Mergers 24
Closing balance as of 31 December 2014 528

Further details regarding the scope of consolidation please refer to Note 54 Details of the companies wholly or partly owned by Erste
Group as of 31 December 2014.

Additions in 2014
No material additions of new subsidiaries occurred during the year 2014.

Disposals in 2014

As of 1 January 2014, the Czech pension fund entity “Transformovany fond penzijniho piipojisténi se statnim piispévkem Ceska
spofitelna — penzijni spolecnost, a.s.” (Transformed pension fund) has been deconsolidated. This deconsolidation was triggered by signifi-
cant amendments to the fund’s investment strategy (due to changes in the fund’s articles of incorporation) that limited the fund manager’s
decision-making powers over relevant fund activities (please refer to “(d) Significant accounting judgements, assumptions and esti-
mates” for further details). This resulted in a loss of control in accordance with IFRS 10. The impact of deconsolidation was a decrease in
Group assets by EUR 1,702 million (thereof financial assets - available-for-sale EUR 608 million, financial assets - held to maturity
EUR 368 million and loans and receivables to credit institutions EUR 710 million) and decrease of the group liabilities by
EUR 1,853 million (thereof financial liabilities measured at amortised cost — deposits from customers EUR 1,829 million).

Additions in 2013
No material additions of new subsidiaries occurred during the year 2013.

Disposals in 2013

Public Company ‘Erste Bank’ (Erste Bank Ukraine). On 29 April 2013, following the signing of the contract in December 2012 and
having received the formal approval of the transaction by the market supervising authorities in Austria and Ukraine, Erste Group finalised
the sale of its 100% participation in Erste Bank Ukraine to FIDOBANK, an unrelated party. Having met the qualifying criteria of IFRS 5
‘Discontinued operations and non-current assets held for sale’, Erste Bank Ukraine was classified as a disposal group held for sale and
included in the consolidated balance sheet items ‘Assets held for sale’ and ‘Liabilities associated with assets held for sale’ in the Annual
Report 2012. Upon the closing of the transaction, these assets and liabilities were derecognised from the balance sheet of Erste Group. The
proceeds from the transaction, all in the form of cash, amounted to EUR 62.3 million (USD 81.8 million), compared to the sold net equity
of Erste Bank Ukraine amounting to EUR 132.5 million as of 31 December 2012. An impairment loss in the amount of EUR 75.0 million
for the negative difference between the selling price and net equity of Erste Bank Ukraine as of 31 December 2012 was already recognised in
the income statement of Erste Group for the financial year 2012. The income statement of Erste Group for the financial year 2013 is affected
by a further negative EUR 76.6 million, resulting mainly from the reclassification of the cumulated negative currency translation reserve in
relation to Erste Bank Ukraine from other comprehensive income to income statement. This impact is recognised in ‘Other operating result’.

c) ACCOUNTING AND MEASUREMENT METHODS

In the financial year 2014 Erste Group has changed its balance sheet and income structure according to the measurement categories as per
IAS 39, to provide more relevant and reliable information on the financial position and performance of the company. A number of disclo-
sures were adjusted accordingly - both presentation format and figures.

The new structure was also introduced to generate synergies with the new IFRS based regulatory requirements (“FINREP”) and to facili-
tate the comparability with published reports of the financial authorities, competitors and Erste Group. In the year 2014 FINREP was
introduced by the European Banking Authority (“EBA”) and represents a regulatory framework on a compulsory basis, which must be
applied by financial institutions within the EU. This harmonization makes the reconciliation of published reports by the regulator with
reports of Erste Group much easier.

The following tables show the relationships between old and new positions of the income statement, of the Group statement of compre-
hensive Income, of the Group balance sheet and of the Group cash flow statement. The values for the old structure were adjusted by
newly consolidated funds (retrospective application of IFRS 10). For further details on the retrospective application according to IFRS
please refer to chapter “b) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION — Subsidiaries”.
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86

Consoli- Reallocation  Switch of
Switch of Switch of Split of dation of Reallo- of customer realised Switch of Switch of
rental equity general nettrading cation of relationship AfS or AfS or off
Published  Switch of and method administ- and fair other amortisation HtM HtM balance
Published IFRS 10 figures dividend leasing investment rative value operating and deposit gains/ measure- sheet
in EUR million figures effect restated income income income expenses result result insurance losses ment provisions
Dec 13
Old structure New structure restated restated
Interest income 7,650.8 11.5 7,662.3 -89.7 -73.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Interest expenses -2,814.5 0.0 -2,814.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Income from equity method investments 21.8 0.0 21.8 0.0 0.0 -21.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Net interest income 4,858.1 11.5 4,869.6 -89.7 -73.1 -21.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Net interest income 4,685.0
Risk provisions for loans and advances -1,763.4 0.0 -1,763.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1,763.4
Fee and commission income 2,305.6 0.0 2,305.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Fee and commission expenses -495.6 -3.6 -499.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Net fee and commission income 1,810.0 -3.6 1,806.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Net fee and commission income 1,806.5
0.0 0.0 0.0 89.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dividend income 89.7
Net trading result 293.2 1.9 295.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -295.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
General administrative expenses -3,653.5 0.0 -3,653.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 3,653.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Other operating result -1,081.9 0.1 -1,081.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 939.5 142.4 0.0 0.0 0.0
Result from financial instruments —
at fair value through profit or loss -76.3 0.0 -76.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 295.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Net trading and fair value result 218.8
Net result from equity method
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 21.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 investments 21.8
Rental income from investment
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 173.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 properties & other operating leases 173.3
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -2,2324 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Personnel expenses -2,232.4
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -1,068.8 0.0 0.0 -77.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 Other administrative expenses -1,146.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -100.2 0.0 -352.3 0.0 0.0 -65.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 Depreciation and amortisation -517.7
Gains/losses from financial assets and
liabilities not measured at fair value
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.3 0.0 56.1 0.0 0.0  through profit or loss, net 62.4
Result from financial assets -
available for sale -13.5 -5.8 -19.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -48.9 68.2 0.0
Result from financial assets -
held to maturity {E5) 0.0 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -7.2 5.7 0.0
Net impairment loss on financial assets
not measured at fair value through profit
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -48.0 -1,726.5 orloss -1,774.4
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -945.7 0.0 0.0 -25.9 -37.0  Other operating result -1,008.6
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -311.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Levies on banking activities -311.0
Pre-tax result from continuing
Pre-tax profit/loss 374.3 4.1 378.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 operations 378.4
Taxes on income -178.5 0.0 -178.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Taxes on income -178.5
Net profit/loss for the period 195.8 4.1 199.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Net result for the period 199.9
Net result attributable to
Attributable to non-controlling interests 134.8 4.8 139.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 non-controlling interests 139.6
Net result attributable to
Attributable to owners of the parent 61.0 -0.7 60.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 owners of the parent 60.3




66

IFRS 10

Published figures

Changes due to

n EUR million Published figures restatement restated new structure Dec 13 restated
Net result for the period 195.8 41 199.9 0.0 199.9
Other comprehensive income
Items that may not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net liability of defined pension plans -6.7 0.0 -6.7 0.0 -6.7
Deferred taxes relating to items that may not be reclassified 2.3 0.0 23 0.0 2.3
Total -4.5 0.0 -4.5 0.0 -4.5
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Available for sale reserve (including currency translation) -114.3 1.2 -113.2 0.0 -113.2
Gain/loss during the period -128.8 7.0 -121.8 0.0 -121.8
Reclassification adjustments 14.5 -5.8 8.7 0.0 8.7
Cash flow hedge reserve (including currency translation) -71.9 0.0 -71.9 0.0 -71.9
Gain/loss during the period -72.4 0.0 -72.4 0.0 -72.4
Reclassification adjustments 0.4 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.4
Currency translation -241.4 0.0 -241.4 0.0 -241.4
Gain/loss during the period -321.2 0.0 -321.2 0.0 -321.2
Reclassification adjustments 79.8 0.0 79.8 0.0 79.8
Deferred taxes relating to items that may be reclassified 44.9 0.0 44.9 0.0 44.9
Gain/loss during the period 41.0 0.0 41.0 0.0 41.0
Reclassification adjustments 4.0 0.0 4.0 0.0 4.0
Total -382.7 1.2 -381.6 0.0 -381.6
Total other comprehensive income -387.2 1.2 -386.0 0.0 -386.0
Total comprehensive income -191.4 53 -186.2 0.0 -186.2
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 16.5 0.8 17.4 0.0 17.4
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent -208.0 4.4 -203.5 0.0 -203.5




00l

Assets
Reallocation
of non-

Reallocation consolidated Reallocation Switch to net Product split

Published of demand subsidiaries of movable book value of into

Published IFRS 10 figures deposits and other loans and measurement

in EUR million figures effect restated (<24h) associates property receivables categories
Dec 13
Old structure New structure restated restated
Cash and balances with central banks 8,670 0 8,670 630 0 0 0 0 Cash and cash balances 9,301

Loans and advances to credit institutions 9,062 0 9,062 -630 0 0 -8,431 0

Loans and advances to customers 127,698 0 127,698 0 0 0 -127,698 0

Risk provisions for loans and advances -7,810 0 -7,810 0 0 0 7,810 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Financial assets - held for trading 12,283
Derivative financial instruments 8,285 1 8,286 0 0 0 0 -1,944 Derivatives 6,342
Trading assets 5,941 0 5,941 0 0 0 0 0 Other trading assets 5,941
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 529 0 529 0 0 0 0 0 Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 529
Financial assets - available for sale 20,581 241 20,822 0 -144 0 0 0 Financial assets - available for sale 20,678
Financial assets - held to maturity 17,781 0 17,781 0 0 0 -2 0 Financial assets - held to maturity 17,779
0 0 0 0 0 0 8,377 0 Loans and receivables to credit institutions 8,377
0 0 0 0 0 0 119,944 0 Loans and receivables to customers 119,945
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,944  Derivatives - hedge accounting 1,944
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items 0
Property and equipment 2,057 0 2,057 0 0 263 0 0 Property and equipment 2,320
Investment properties 951 0 951 0 0 0 0 0 Investment properties 951
Intangible assets 2,441 0 2,441 0 0 0 0 0 Intangible assets 2,441
Equity method investments 208 0 208 0 0 0 0 0 Investments in associates and joint ventures 208
Current tax assets 100 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 Current tax assets 100
Deferred tax assets 719 0 719 0 0 0 0 0 Deferred tax assets 719
Assets held for sale 75 0 75 0 0 0 0 0 Assets held for sale 75
Other assets 2,590 0 2,590 0 144 -263 0 0 Other assets 2,471
Total assets 199,876 242 200,118 0 0 0 0 0 Total assets 200,118




1oL

Liabilities and equity

Published  Reallocation of Product split into
Published figures subordinated Reallocation measurement
in EUR million figures IFRS 10 effect restated liabilities derivatives categories
Old structure New structure restated Dec 13 restated
0 0 0 0 0 0 Financial liabilities - held for trading 6,475
0 0 0 0 6,087 0 Derivatives 6,087
0 0 0 0 0 388 Other trading liabilities 388
0 0 0 0 0 0 Financial liabilities - at fair value through profit or loss 2,339
0 0 0 0 0 0 Deposits from banks 0
0 0 0 0 0 460 Deposits from customers 460
0 0 0 0 0 1,879 Debt securities issued 1,879
0 0 0 0 0 0 Other financial liabilities 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 170,786
Deposits by banks 17,126 0 17,126 173 0 0 Deposits from banks 17,299
Customer deposits 122,442 -27 122,415 0 0 -460 Deposits from customers 121,955
Debt securities issued 27,986 -21 27,965 5,159 0 -1,879 Debt securities issued 31,245
0 0 0 0 0 286 Other financial liabilities 286
0 0 0 0 644 0 Derivatives - hedge accounting 644
Value adjustments from portfolio fair value hedges 734 0 734 0 0 0 Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items 734
Derivative financial instruments 6,731 0 6,731 0 -6,731 0
Trading liabilities 388 0 388 0 0 -388
Provisions 1,448 0 1,448 0 0 0 Provisions 1,448
Current tax liabilities 85 0 85 0 0 0 Current tax liabilities 85
Deferred tax liabilities 169 0 169 0 0 0 Deferred tax liabilities 169
0 0 0 0 0 0 Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 0
Other liabilities 2,654 286 2,940 0 0 -286  Other liabilities 2,654
Subordinated liabilities 5,333 0 5,333 -5,333 0 0
Total equity 14,781 4 14,785 0 0 0 Total equity 14,785
Attributable to non-controlling interests 3,457 9 3,466 0 0 0 Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 3,466
Attributable to owners of the parent 11,324 -5 11,319 0 0 0 Equity attributable to owners of the parent 11,319
Total liabilities and equity 199,876 242 200,118 0 0 0 Total liabilities and equity 200,118

Published figures Changes due to

New structure

in EUR million Published figures IFRS 10 effect restated new structure restated
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 9,740 0 9,740 - 9,740
Cash flow from operating activities -433 0 -433 711 277
Cash flow from investing activities 895 0 895 -52 844
Cash flow from financing activities -1,437 0 -1,437 -28 -1,465
Effect of currency translation -95 0 -95 - -95
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 8,670 0 8,670 630 9,301
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Assets
Reallocation of Switch to
Reallocation non- Reallocation net book  Product split
Published of demand consolidated of movable value of into
Published  IFRS 10 figures deposits subsidiaries other loansand measurement
in EUR million figures effect restated (<24h) and associates property receivables categories
Dec 12
Old structure New structure restated angepasst
Cash and balances with central banks 9,740 0 9,740 0 0 0 0 0 Cash and cash balances 9,740
Loans and advances to credit institutions 9,074 0 9,074 0 0 0 -9,074 0
Loans and advances to customers 131,928 0 131,928 0 0 0 -131,928 0
Risk provisions for loans and advances -7,644 0 -7,644 0 0 0 7,644 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Financial assets - held for trading 15,955
Derivative financial instruments 13,289 0 13,289 0 0 0 0 -2,513 Derivatives 10,777
Trading assets 5,178 0 5,178 0 0 0 0 0 Other trading assets 5,178
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or Financial assets - at fair value through profit or
loss 716 0 716 0 0 0 0 0 loss 716
Financial assets - available for sale 22,418 247 22,665 0 -128 0 0 0 Financial assets - available for sale 22,537
Financial assets - held to maturity 18,975 0 18,975 0 0 0 -3 0 Financial assets - held to maturity 18,972
0 0 0 0 0 0 9,007 0 Loans and receivables to credit institutions 9,008
0 0 0 0 0 0 124,354 0 Loans and receivables to customers 124,353
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,659 Derivatives - hedge accounting 2,659
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items 0
Property and equipment 2,228 0 2,228 0 0 211 0 0 Property and equipment 2,439
Investment properties 1,023 0 1,023 0 0 0 0 0 Investment properties 1,023
Intangible assets 2,894 0 2,894 0 0 0 0 0 Intangible assets 2,894
Equity method investments 174 0 174 0 0 0 0 0 Investments in associates and joint ventures 174
Current tax assets 128 0 128 0 0 0 0 0 Current tax assets 128
Deferred tax assets 658 0 658 0 0 0 0 0 Deferred tax assets 658
Assets held for sale 708 0 708 0 0 0 0 0 Assets held for sale 708
Other assets 2,338 0 2,338 0 128 -211 0 -146 Other assets 2,108
Total assets 213,824 247 214,071 0 0 0 0 0 Total assets 214,071




€0l

Liabilities and equity

Product split

Published Reallocation of into
Published figures subordinated Reallocation measurement
in EUR million figures IFRS 10 effect restated liabilities derivatives categories
Old structure New structure restated Dec 12 angepasst
0 0 0 0 0 0 Financial liabilities - held for trading 10,640
0 0 0 0 10,159 0 Derivatives 10,159
0 0 0 0 0 481 Other trading liabilities 481
Financial liabilities - at fair value through profit or
0 0 0 0 0 0 loss 2,552
0 0 0 0 0 0 Deposits from banks 0
0 0 0 0 0 632 Deposits from customers 632
0 0 0 0 0 1,920 Debt securities issued 1,920
0 0 0 0 0 0 Other financial liabilities 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 177,322
Deposits by banks 21,822 0 21,822 0 0 0 Deposits from banks 21,822
Customer deposits 123,053 -54 122,999 0 0 -633 Deposits from customers 122,367
Debt securities issued 29,427 -21 29,406 5,323 0 -1,920 Debt securities issued 32,810
0 0 0 0 0 323 Other financial liabilities 323
0 0 0 0 719 0 Derivatives - hedge accounting 719
Value adjustments from portfolio fair value hedges 1,220 0 1,220 0 0 427 Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items 1,647
Derivative financial instruments 10,878 1 10,879 0 -10,879 0
Trading liabilities 481 0 481 0 0 -481
Provisions 1,488 0 1,488 0 0 0 Provisions 1,488
Current tax liabilities 53 0 53 0 0 0 Current tax liabilities 53
Deferred tax liabilities 324 0 324 0 0 0 Deferred tax liabilities 324
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 339 0 339 0 0 0 Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 339
Other liabilities 3,077 323 3,400 0 0 -749 Other liabilities 2,651
Subordinated liabilities 5,323 0 5,323 -5,323 0 0
Total equity 16,339 -2 16,337 0 0 0 Total equity 16,337
Attributable to non-controlling interests 3,483 8 3,491 0 0 0 Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 3,491
Attributable to owners of the parent 12,855 -10 12,846 0 0 0 Equity attributable to owners of the parent 12,846
Total liabilities and equity 213,824 247 214,071 0 0 0 Total liabilities and equity 214,071




Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in euro, which is the functional currency of Erste Group Bank AG. The functional
currency is the currency of the primary business environment in which an entity operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

For foreign currency translation, exchange rates quoted by the central banks in each country are used. For Group entities with the euro as
functional currency, these are the European Central Bank reference rates.

(i) Transactions and balances in foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency exchange rate effective as of the date of the transaction.
Subsequently, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency exchange rate as
of the balance sheet date. All resulting exchange differences that arise are recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Net
trading and fair value result’. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates as of the dates of the initial transactions.

(i) Translation of the statements of Group companies

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations (foreign subsidiaries and branches) are translated into Erste Group’s presentation currency, the
euro, at the rate of exchange as of the balance sheet date (closing rate). Their statements of comprehensive income are translated at aver-
age exchange rates calculated on the basis of daily rates. Goodwill, intangible assets recognised on acquisition of foreign subsidiaries (i.e.
customer relationships and brand) and fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities on the acquisition are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries and are translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising on translation are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the cumulative amount of translation differences recog-
nised in other comprehensive income is recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Other operating result’.

Financial instruments — recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is any contract giving rise to a financial asset of one party and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
party. In accordance with IAS 39, all financial assets and liabilities — which also include derivative financial instruments — have to be
recognised on the balance sheet and measured in accordance with their assigned categories.

Erste Group uses the following categories of financial instruments:
_ financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
_ available-for-sale financial assets
_ held-to-maturity investments
_ loans and receivables
_ financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

IAS 39 categories of financial instruments are not necessarily the line items presented on the balance sheet. Relationships between the
balance sheet line items and categories of financial instruments are described in the table at point (xi).

(i) Initial recognition

Financial instruments are initially recognised when Erste Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way (spot) purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised at the settlement date, which is the date that an asset is delivered. The
classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their characteristics as well as the purpose and management’s
intention for which the financial instruments were acquired.

(ii) Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value including transaction costs. In the case of financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss, however, transaction costs are not included but are recognised directly in profit or loss. Subsequent measurement is
described in the chapters below.

(iii) Cash and cash balances

Cash balances include only claims (deposits) against central banks and credit institutions that are repayable on demand. Repayable on
demand means that they may be withdrawn at any time or with a term of notice of only one business day or 24 hours. Mandatory mini-
mum reserves are also shown under this item.
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(iv) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used by Erste Group to manage exposures to interest rate, foreign currency and other market price
risks. Derivatives used by Erste Group include mainly interest rate swaps, futures, forward rate agreements, interest rate options, currency
swaps and currency options as well as credit default swaps.

For presentation purposes derivatives are split into
_Derivatives — held for trading; and
_Derivatives — hedge accounting

Derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value (dirty price) on the Consolidated Balance Sheet - regardless of whether they are
held for trading or hedge accounting purposes. Derivatives are carried as assets if their fair value is positive and as liabilities if their fair
value is negative.

Derivatives — held for trading are those which are not designated as hedging instruments for hedge accounting. They are presented in the
line item ‘Derivatives’ under the heading ‘Financial assets / financial liabilities — held for trading’. All kinds of non-hedging derivatives
without regard to their internal classification, i.e. both derivatives held in the trading book and banking book are presented in this line item.

Changes in the fair value (clean price) of derivatives held for trading are reported in the income statement in the line item ‘Net trading and
fair value result’. Interest income/expense related to derivatives — held for trading is recognised in the income statement under the line
item ‘Net interest income’ if held in the banking book or under the line item ‘Net trading and fair value result’ if held in the trading book.

Derivatives — hedge accounting are those which are designated as hedging instruments in hedge accounting relationships fulfilling the
conditions of IAS 39 (please refer to Hedge Accounting). In the balance sheet, they are presented in the line item ‘Derivatives - hedge
accounting’ on asset or liability side.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives (clean price) in fair value hedges are recognised in the income statement in the line item ‘Net
trading and fair value result’. Interest income/expense related to derivatives in fair value hedges is reported in the income statement in the
line item ‘Net interest income’.

The effective part of changes in the fair value (clean price) of derivatives in cash flow hedges is reported in other comprehensive income
in the line item ‘Cash flow hedge reserve’. The ineffective part of changes in the fair value (clean price) of derivatives in cash flow hedges
is recognised in profit or loss under the line item ‘Net trading and fair value result’. Interest income/expense from hedging derivatives in
cash flow hedges is disclosed in the income statement in the line item ‘Net interest income’.

v) Financial assets and financial liabilities - held for trading
Financial assets and financial liabilities — held for trading comprise derivatives and other trading assets and liabilities. Treatment of deriv-
atives — held for trading is discussed above in (iv).

Other trading assets and liabilities are non-derivative instruments. They include debt securities as well as equity instruments acquired or
issued principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. In the balance sheet, they are presented as ‘Other trading
assets’ or ‘Other trading liabilities’ under the heading ‘Financial assets / financial liabilities — held for trading’ .

Changes in fair value (clean price for debt instruments) resulting from other trading assets and liabilities are reported in the income state-
ment under the line item ‘Net trading and fair value result’. Interest income and expenses are reported in the income statement under the
line item ‘Net interest income’. Dividend income is shown under the line item ‘Dividend income’.

If securities purchased under agreement to resell or borrowed through securities lending transactions are subsequently sold to third parties,
the obligation to return the securities is recorded as a short sale within ‘Other trading liabilities’.

(vi) Financial assets or financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by management on initial recognition
(fair value option).
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Erste Group uses the fair value option in the case of financial assets managed on a fair value basis. In accordance with a documented
investment strategy, the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and regularly reported to the management board. The portfolio contains
mostly items of Asset Backed Securities (predominantly Mortgage Backed Securities), Funds, Financials and Sovereigns.

Financial assets - designated at fair value through profit or loss are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value under the line item ‘Finan-
cial assets - designated at fair value through profit or loss’, with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement under the line
item ‘Net trading and fair value result’. Interest earned on debt instruments is reported under the line item ‘Net interest income’. Dividend
income on equity instruments is shown under the line item ‘Dividend income’.

Furthermore, Erste Group uses the fair value option in the case of some hybrid financial liabilities. This is relevant when:
_ such classification eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch between the financial liability otherwise measured at
amortised cost and the related derivative measured at fair value; or
_ the entire hybrid contract is designated at fair value through profit or loss due to the existence of an embedded derivative.

The amount of fair value change attributable to changes in own credit risk for financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss is calculated by the method described by IFRS 7. This amount is the difference between the present value of the liability and the
observed market price of the liability at the end of the period. The rate used for discounting the liability is the sum of the observed
(benchmark) interest rate at the end of the period and the instrument-specific component of the internal rate of return determined at the
start of the period.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are reported on the balance sheet under the line item ‘Financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss’ further broken down into ‘Deposits’ (both from customers and banks), ‘Debt securities
issued’ and ‘Other financial liabilities’. Changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Net trading and
fair value result’. Interest incurred is reported under the line item ‘Net interest income’.

(vii) Financial assets — available for sale

Available-for-sale financial assets include debt and equity securities as well as other interests in entities with lower than significant influ-
ence. Equity investments classified as available for sale are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and that may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. On the balance sheet, available-for-sale financial assets are disclosed under
the line item ‘Financial assets — available for sale’.

Unrealised gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and reported in the ‘Available for sale reserve’ until the finan-
cial asset is disposed of or impaired. If available-for-sale assets are disposed of or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recog-
nised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss and reported in the line item ‘Gains/losses on financial assets and
liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net’ in the case of sale or in the line item ‘Net impairment loss on financial
assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss’ in the case of impairment.

Interest income on available-for-sale financial assets is reported under the line item ‘Net interest income’. Dividend income is reported
under the line item ‘Dividend income’.

If the fair value of investments in non-quoted equity instruments cannot be measured reliably, they are recorded at cost less impairment.
This is the case when the range of reasonable fair value estimates as calculated by valuation models is significant and the probabilities of
the various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed. There is no market for such investments.

(viii) Financial assets — held to maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity and reported
on the balance sheet as ‘Financial assets — held to maturity’ if Erste Group has the intention and ability to hold them until maturity. After
initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount, premium and/or transaction costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Interest earned on financial assets held to maturity is reported in the income statement under the line item ‘Net interest income’. Losses
arising from impairment of such financial assets are presented as ‘Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value
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through profit or loss’. Occasional realised gains or losses from selling are recognised in the income statement under the line item
‘Gains/losses on financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net’.

(ix) Loans and receivables

In dem Bilanzposten "Kredite und Forderungen an Kreditinstitute" werden finanzielle Vermogenswerte erfasst, die der Kategorie Kredite
und Forderungen zugeordnet sind und eine vertragliche Laufzeit von mehr als 24 Stunden haben. In dem Bilanzposten "Kredite und For-
derungen an Kunden" werden finanzielle Vermdgenswerte mit unabhéngigen vertraglichen Laufzeit erfasst, die der Kategorie Kredite und
Forderungen zugeordnet sind. Furthermore, finance lease receivables that are accounted for using IAS 17 are presented under these bal-
ance sheet line items.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets (including debt securities) with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market, other than:

_ those that Erste Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that Erste Group upon initial recognition designates as

at fair value through profit or loss;

_ those that Erste Group, upon initial recognition, designates as available for sale; or

_ those for which Erste Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit deterioration.
After initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost. Finance lease receivables are subsequently measured as
specified in the chapter 'Leasing'. Interest income earned is included under the line item ‘Net interest income’ in the income statement.

Impairment losses arising from loans and receivables are recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Net impairment loss on
financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss ’.

(x) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

For presentation on the balance sheet, the line item ‘Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost’ is used. The liabilities are further
broken down by ‘Deposits from banks’, ‘Deposits from customers’, ‘Debt securities issued” and ‘Other financial liabilities’.

Interest expenses incurred are reported in the line item ‘Net interest income’ in the income statement. Gains and losses from derecognition
(mainly repurchase) of financial liabilities at amortised cost are reported under the line item ‘Gains/losses from financial assets and liabili-

ties not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net’.

(xi) Relationships between balance sheet items, measurement methods and categories of financial instruments:

Measurement principle

Balance sheet position Fair value At amortised cost Other Financial instrument category
ASSETS
Cash and cash balances X Nominal value n/a / Loans and receivables
Financial assets - held for trading
Derivatives X Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Other trading assets X Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss X Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets - available for sale X Available for sale financial assets
Financial assets - held to maturity X Held to maturity investments
Loans and receivables to credit institutions X Loans and receivables
thereof Finance lease IAS 17 n/a
Loans and receivables to customers X Loans and receivables
thereof Finance lease IAS 17 n/a
Derivatives - hedge accounting X n/a
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial liabilities - held for trading
Derivatives X Financial liabilities - at fair value through profit or loss
Other trading liabilities X Financial liabilities - at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities - at fair value through profit or loss X Financial liabilities - at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost X Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Derivatives - hedge accounting X n/a

Furthermore, two additional classes of financial instruments which are not presented in the table above are part of IFRS 7 disclosures.
These are financial guarantees and irrevocable credit commitments.
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Embedded derivatives
Erste Group, as part of its business, is confronted with debt instruments containing structured features. Structured features mean that a
derivative is embedded in the host instruments. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host debt instruments if
_ the economic characteristics of the derivatives are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host debt instru-
ments;
_ the embedded derivative meets the IAS 39 definition of derivative; and
_ the hybrid instrument is not a financial asset or liability held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives that are separated are accounted for as stand-alone derivatives and presented on the balance sheet under the line
item ‘Derivatives’ in financial assets — held for trading and financial liabilities — held for trading.

At Erste Group, derivatives that are not closely related and are separated are predominantly embedded in issued host debt instruments
recognised as liabilities. The most typical cases are issues of bonds and deposits that contain interest caps, floors or collars in the money,
CMS bonds without appropriate cap, contractual features linking payments to non-interest variables such as FX rates, equity and com-
modity prices and indices, or third-party credit risk.

Reclassifications of financial assets

IAS 39 provides various possibilities to reclassify financial assets between categories of financial instruments. It also places restrictions
on some reclassifications. Erste Group makes use of reclassification alternatives only in the case of held-to-maturity financial assets. If a
significant credit deterioration in a held-to-maturity financial asset results in a change in the intention and ability to hold the asset until
maturity, the asset is reclassified into the available-for-sale financial assets category. Furthermore, reclassifications are done in case of
sales, which are performed closed to the maturity date. Such reclassifications are not included in the limit that triggers automatic reclassi-
fication of the entire held-to-maturity portfolio.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset (or where applicable part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
_ the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
_ Erste Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ ar-
rangement; and either:
_ it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards connected with the ownership of the asset, or
_ has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards connected with the ownership of the asset but has trans-
ferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Transactions where securities are sold under an agreement to repurchase at a specified future date are also known as ‘repos’ or ‘sale and
repurchase agreements’. Securities sold are not derecognised from the balance sheet, as Erste Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership because the securities are repurchased when the repo transaction ends. Furthermore, Erste Group is the beneficiary
of all the coupons and other income payments received on the transferred assets over the period of the repo transactions. These payments
are remitted to Erste Group or are reflected in the repurchase price.

The corresponding cash received is recognised on the balance sheet with a corresponding obligation to return it as a liability under the line
item ‘Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost’, sub-items ‘Deposits from banks’ or ‘Deposits from customers’ reflecting the trans-
action’s economic substance as a loan to Erste Group. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as interest expense
and recorded in the income statement under the line item ‘Net interest income’ and is accrued over the life of the agreement. Financial
assets transferred out by Erste Group under repurchase agreements remain on the Group’s balance sheet and are measured according to
the rules applicable to the respective balance sheet item.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date are not recognised on the balance sheet. Such trans-
actions are also known as ‘reverse repos’. The consideration paid is recorded on the balance sheet under the respective line items ‘Loans
and receivables to credit institutions’ or ‘Loans and receivables to customers’, reflecting the transaction’s economic substance as a loan by
Erste Group. The difference between the purchase and resale prices is treated as interest income and is accrued over the life of the agree-
ment and recorded in the income statement under the line item ‘Net interest income’.
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Securities lending and borrowing

In securities lending transactions, the lender transfers ownership of securities to the borrower on the condition that the borrower will
retransfer, at the end of the agreed loan term, ownership of instruments of the same type, quality and quantity and will pay a fee deter-
mined by the duration of the lending. The transfer of the securities to counterparties via securities lending does not result in derecognition.
Substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by Erste Group as a lender because the securities are received at the end
of the securities lending transaction. Furthermore, Erste Group is the beneficiary of all the coupons and other income payments received
on the transferred assets over the period of the securities lendings.

Securities borrowed are not recognised on the balance sheet unless they are then sold to third parties. In this case, the obligation to return
the securities is recorded as ‘Other trading liability’.

Impairment of financial assets and credit risk losses of contingent liabilities

Erste Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Erste Group uses the Basel I definition of default as a primary indicator of loss events. Default, as a loss event, occurs when
_ the obligor is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation;
_ as a result of specific information or an event, the obligor is unlikely to fulfil its credit obligations in full, without recourse to actions
such as realising security;
_ the obligor is subject to distressed restructuring, i.e. a change in contract terms, for clients in financial difficulties, resulting in a mate-
rial loss;
_ the obligor is subject to bankruptcy or similar protection proceedings.
For assessment at portfolio level, Erste Group uses the incurred but not reported losses concept. It identifies the time period between the
moment of the loss event causing future problems and actual detection of the problems by the bank at the moment of default.

Credit risk losses resulting from contingent liabilities are recognised if it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources to settle a
credit risk bearing contingent liability that will result in a loss.

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Erste Group first assesses individually for significant loans and held-to-maturity securities whether objective evidence of impairment
exists. If no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, Erste Group includes the asset in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually as-
sessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. The calculation of the present value
of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset also reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral.

Impairment losses on financial assets carried at amortised cost are recognised as loss allowance. On the balance sheet, loss allowances
decrease the value of the assets. L.e. the net carrying amount of the financial asset presented on the balance sheet is the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the cumulative loss allowance. This treatment holds for loss allowances for loans and receivables and for
incurred but not reported losses (i.e. portfolio allowances) on held-to-maturity financial assets. Reconciliation of changes in these loss
allowance accounts is disclosed in the notes. However, individual loss allowances for held to maturity financial assets are treated as direct
reduction of the asset carrying amount and therefore reconciliation of changes is not disclosed in the notes.

In the income statement, impairment losses and their reversals are presented in the line item ‘Net impairment loss on financial assets’.

Loans together with the associated allowance are removed from the balance sheet when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collaterals have been realised by Erste Group.
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If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases, the previously recognised impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the loss allowance.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

In cases of debt instruments classified as available for sale, Erste Group assesses individually whether there is objective evidence of im-
pairment based on the same criteria as used for financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is
the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in the income statement. On recognising impairment, any loss retained in the other comprehensive income
item ‘Available for sale reserve’ is reclassified to the income statement and shown as an impairment loss under the line item ‘Net impair-
ment loss on financial assets’.

Wenn sich der Fair Value eines Schuldinstruments in einer der folgenden Perioden erhoht und sich diese Erhéhung objektiv auf ein positi-
ves Ereignis zuriickfithren ldsst, das nach der ergebniswirksamen Verbuchung der Wertminderung eingetreten ist, wird der Betrag der
Wertauftholung in der Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung in dem Posten "Wertberichtigungen fiir nicht erfolgswirksam zum Fair Value bilan-
zierte finanzielle Vermdgenswerte (netto)" erfasst. In der Bilanz werden Wertminderungsverluste und etwaige Wertautholungen unmittel-
bar gegen den Vermogenswert verrechnet.

In cases of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective evidence also includes a ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline
in the fair value of the investment below its cost. For this purpose at Erste Group, ‘significant’ decline means a market price below
80% of the acquisition cost and ‘prolonged’ decline refers to a market price that is permanently below the acquisition cost for a
period of nine months up to the reporting date.

Where there is evidence of impairment on equity investments, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the income statement, is shown as an
impairment loss in the income statement under the line item ‘Net impairment loss on financial assets’. Any loss previously recognised
under the other comprehensive income item ‘Available for sale reserve’ has to be reclassified to the income statement as part of an im-
pairment loss under the line item ‘Net impairment loss on financial assets’.

Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the income statement; increases in the fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income. Impairment losses and their reversals are recognised directly against the assets on the
balance sheet.

For investment in unquoted equity instruments carried at cost because their fair value cannot be determined reliably, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses shall not be reversed.

(iii) Contingent liabilities

Provisions for credit losses of contingent liabilities (particularly financial guarantees as well as credit commitments) are included under
the balance sheet line item ‘Provisions’. The related expense or its reversal is reported in the income statement under the line item ‘Other
operating result’.

Hedge accounting

Erste Group makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. At inception of a
hedge relationship, the bank formally documents the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including the
nature of the risk, the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge and the method that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the
hedging relationship. A hedge is expected to be highly effective if the changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk
during the period for which the hedge is designated are expected to offset the fair value changes of the hedging instrument in a range of
80% to 125%. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception and throughout the term of each hedging relationship. Exact conditions for
particular types of hedges and for testing the hedge effectiveness by Erste Group are specified internally in the hedge accounting policy.

(i) Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges are employed to reduce market risk. For qualifying and designated fair value hedges, the change in the fair value (clean
price) of a hedging instrument is recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Net trading and fair value result’. Interest income
and expenses on hedging derivatives are reported under the line item ‘Net interest income’. The change in the fair value of the hedged
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item attributable to the hedged risk is also recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Net trading and fair value result’ and
adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item.

Erste Group also applies portfolio fair value hedges of interest rate risk as regulated by IAS 39.AG114-AG132. Currently only interest
rate risk from issued bonds is being hedged (i.e. no assets are included as hedged items). The change in the fair value of the hedged items
attributable to the hedged interest risk is presented on the balance sheet under the line item ‘Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged
items’. Erste Group does not make use of the relaxation of hedge accounting requirements provided for portfolio fair value hedges by the
EU carve-out.

If the hedging instrument expires, is sold, is terminated or is exercised, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge account-
ing, the hedge relationship is terminated. In this case, the fair value adjustment of the hedged item is amortised to the income statement
under the line item ‘Net interest income’ until maturity of the financial instrument.

(ii) Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are used to eliminate uncertainty in the future cash flows in order to stabilise net interest income. For designated and
qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in other comprehensive
income and reported under the ‘Cash flow hedge reserve’. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recog-
nised in the income statement under the line item ‘Net trading and fair value result’. For determination of the effective and ineffective
portions, the derivative is considered at its clean price, i.e. excluding the interest component. If the hedged cash flow affects the income
statement, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is reclassified from other comprehensive income on the corresponding income or
expense line item in the income statement (mainly ‘Net interest income’). As far as accounting for hedged items in cash flow hedges is
concerned there is no change compared to the situation when no hedging is applied.

When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, is terminated, is exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the hedge relationship is terminated. In this case, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that has been recognised in other
comprehensive income remains in ‘Cash flow hedge reserve’ until the transaction occurs.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported on the balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Determination of fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received if an asset were sold or paid, if a liability were transferred in an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date.

Details on valuation techniques applied for fair value measurement and on the fair value hierarchy are disclosed in Note 46 Fair value of
assets and liabilities.

Leasing

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in return for a pay-
ment or series of payments. A finance lease at Erste Group is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset. All other lease agreements at Erste Group are classified as operating leases.

Erste Group as a lessor

The lessor in the case of a finance lease reports a receivable from the lessee under the line item ‘Loans and receivables to customers’ or
‘Loans and receivables to credit institutions’. The receivable is equal to the present value of the contractually agreed payments taking into
account any residual value. Interest income on the receivable is reported in the income statement under the line item ‘Net interest in-
come’.

In the case of operating leases, the leased asset is reported by the lessor in ‘Property and equipment’ or in ‘Investment properties’ and is
depreciated in accordance with the principles applicable to the assets involved. Lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the lease term in the income statement under the line item ‘Rental income from investment properties & other operating leases’.

Lease agreements in which Erste Group is the lessor almost exclusively comprise finance leases.
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Erste Group as a lessee
As a lessee, Erste Group has not entered into any leases meeting the conditions of finance leases. Operating lease payments are recognised
as an expense in the income statement on the line item ‘Other administrative expenses’ on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Business combinations and goodwill

(i) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. Goodwill represents the future economic benefits
resulting from the business combination, arising from assets that are not individually identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is
measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests and the fair value of the
previously held equity interest over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired as well as the liabilities
assumed. At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are generally recognised at their fair values.

If, after reassessment of all components described above, the calculation results in a negative amount, it is recognised as a bargain pur-
chase gain and reported in the income statement under the line item ‘Other operating result’ in the year of acquisition.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests in the acquiree are measured at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another I[FRS. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included under the income statement line item ‘Other operating result’.

(i) Goodwill and goodwill impairment testing

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established as of the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually in November, or whenever there is an indication of possible im-
pairment during the year, with any impairment determined recognised in profit or loss. The impairment test is carried out for each cash-
generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash in-
flows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Goodwill is tested for impairment by comparing the recoverable amount of each CGU to which goodwill has been allocated with its car-
rying amount. The carrying amount of a CGU is based on the amount of net asset value allocated to the CGU taking into account any
goodwill and unamortised intangible assets recognised for the CGU at the time of business combination.

The recoverable amount is the higher of a CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Where available, the fair value less
costs of disposal is determined based on recent transactions, market quotations or appraisals. The value in use is determined using a dis-
counted cash flow model (DCF model), which incorporates the specifics of the banking business and its regulatory environment. In de-
termining value in use, the present value of future earnings distributable to shareholders is calculated.

The estimation of future earnings distributable to shareholders is based on financial plans for the CGUs as agreed by the management
while taking into account the fulfilment of the respective regulatory capital requirements. The planning period is five years. Any forecast-
ed earnings beyond the planning period are derived on the basis of the last year of the planning period and a long-term growth rate. The
present value of such perpetual earnings growing at a stable rate (referred to as terminal value) takes into consideration macroeconomic
parameters and economically sustainable cash flows for each CGU. Values for the long-term growth rates are disclosed in Note 27 Intan-
gible assets in the subsection ‘Development of goodwill’.

The cash flows are determined by subtracting the annual capital requirement generated by a change in the amount of risk-weighted assets
from the net profit. The capital requirement was defined through the target tier 1 ratio in light of the expected future minimum regulatory
capital requirements.

The value in use is determined by discounting the cash flows at a rate that takes into account present market rates and the specific risks of
the CGU. The discount rates have been determined based on the capital asset pricing model (CAPM). According to the CAPM, the dis-
count rate comprises a risk-free interest rate together with a market risk premium that itself is multiplied by a factor that represents the
systematic market risk (beta factor). Furthermore, a country-risk premium component is considered in calculation of the discount rate.
The values used to establish the discount rates are determined using external sources of information. Discount rates applied to determine
the value in use are disclosed in Note 27 Intangible assets in the subsection ‘Development of goodwill’.

Where the recoverable amount of a CGU is less than its carrying amount, the difference is recognised as an impairment loss in the income
statement under the line item ‘Other operating result’. The impairment loss is allocated first to write down the CGU’s goodwill. Any
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remaining impairment loss reduces the carrying amount of the CGU’s other assets, though not to an amount lower than their fair value
less costs of disposal. No impairment loss is recognised if the recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than or equal to its carrying
amount. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

The goodwill included in the acquisition cost of investments in associates and joint ventures is not tested separately by performing the
recurring impairment assessments applicable to goodwill. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of fair value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount
(after application of the equity method) whenever relevant objective evidence of impairment is identified. Such evidence includes infor-
mation about significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technological, market, economic or legal environ-
ments in which associates and joint ventures operate, indicating that the cost of the investment may not be recovered.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment. Borrowing costs for qualifying
assets are capitalised into the costs of property and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on the line item ‘Depreciation and amortisation’ and

impairment under the line item ‘Other operating result’.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Useful lifein years

Buildings 15-50
Office furniture and equipment 4-10
Passenger cars 4-8
Computer hardware 4-6

Land is not depreciated.

Property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Other operating result’.

Investment properties

Investment property is property (land and buildings or part of a building or both) held for the purpose of earning rental income or for
capital appreciation. In the case of partial own use, the property is investment property only if the owner-occupied portion is insignificant.
Investments in land and buildings under construction, where the future use is expected to be the same as for investment property, are
treated as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Investment property is presented on the balance sheet in the line item
‘Investment properties’.

Rental income is recognised in the line item ‘Rental income from investment properties and other operating leases’. Depreciation is pre-
sented in the income statement in the line item ‘Depreciation and amortisation’ using the straight-line method over an estimated useful
life. The useful lives of investment properties are identical to those of buildings reported under property and equipment. Any impairment
losses, as well as their reversals, are recognised under the income statement line item ‘Other operating result’.

Property Held for Sale (Inventory)

The Group also invests in property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business or property in the process of construction or
development for such sale. This property is presented as ‘Other assets’ and is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

The cost of acquiring inventory includes not only the purchase price but also all other directly attributable expenses, such as transportation

costs, customs duties, other taxes and costs of conversion of inventories, etc. Borrowing costs are capitalised to the extent to which they
directly relate to the acquisition of real estate.
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Sales of these assets/apartments are recognised as revenues under the income statement line item ‘Other operating result’, together with
costs of sales and other costs incurred in selling the assets.

Intangible assets

In addition to goodwill, Erste Group’s intangible assets include computer software and customer relationships, the brand, the distribution
network and other intangible assets. An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the bank.

Costs of internally generated software are capitalised if Erste Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility and intention of completing
the software, the ability to use it, how it will generate probable economic benefits, the availability of resources and the ability to measure
the expenditures reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as of the date of acquisition. In the case of Erste Group,
these are brands, customer relationships and distribution networks, and they are capitalised on acquisition if they can be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives using the straight-line method. The amortisation period
and method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end and adjusted if necessary. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with

finite lives is recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Depreciation and amortisation’.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Useful lifein years

Computer software 4-8
Customer relationships 10-20
Distribution network 5.5

Brands are not amortised as they are assumed to have an indefinite useful life. An intangible asset has an indefinite useful life, if there are
no legal, contractual, regulatory or other factors limiting that useful life. Brands are tested for impairment annually within the cash-
generating unit to which they belong, and impairment is recognised if appropriate. Furthermore, each period brands are reviewed as to
whether current circumstances continue to support the conclusion as to indefinite life. In the event of impairment, impairment losses are
recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Other operating result’.

Impairment of non-financial assets (property and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets)

The bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. Testing for impairment
is done at individual asset level if the asset generates cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. The typical case
is investment property. Otherwise the impairment test is carried out at the level of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. For specific rules related to impairment of goodwill and impairment allocation rules for CGUs
please see the chapter ‘Business combinations and goodwill’, part (ii) Goodwill and goodwill impairment testing.

If any indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the bank estimates the asset’s recovera-
ble amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. If the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recovera-
ble amount. In measuring value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

At each reporting date an assessment is made as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the bank estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. The previ-
ously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount or does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Impairments and their reversals are recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Other operating result’.
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Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if they can be sold in their present condition and the sale is highly probable within 12
months of classification as held for sale. If assets are to be sold as part of a group that may also contain liabilities (e.g. a subsidiary) they
are referred to as disposal group held for sale.

Assets classified as held for sale and assets belonging to disposal groups held for sale are reported under the balance sheet line item ‘As-
sets held for sale’. Liabilities belonging to the disposal groups held for sale are presented on the balance sheet under the line item ‘Liabili-
ties associated with assets held for sale’.

Non-current assets and disposal groups that are classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Should the impairment loss in a disposal group exceed the carrying amount of the assets that are within the scope of IFRS 5
measurement requirements, there is no specific guidance on how to treat such a difference. Erste Group recognises this difference as a
provision under the balance sheet line item ‘Provisions’.

Financial guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, Erste Group provides financial guarantees, consisting of various types of letters of credit and guaran-
tees. According to IAS 39, a financial guarantee is a contract that requires the guarantor to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs in case a specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument.

If Erste Group is in a position of being a guarantee holder, the financial guarantee is not recorded on the balance sheet but is taken into
consideration as collateral when determining impairment of the guaranteed asset.

Erste Group as a guarantor recognises financial guarantees as soon as it becomes a contracting party (i.e. when the guarantee offer is
accepted). Financial guarantees are initially measured at fair value. Generally, the initial measurement is the premium received for a guar-
antee. If no premium is received at contract inception, the fair value of a financial guarantee is nil, as this is the price that would be paid to
transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial guarantee con-
tract is reviewed for the possibility that provisioning will be required under IAS 37. Such provisions are presented on the balance sheet
under the line ‘Provisions’.

The premium received is recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Net fee and commission income’ on a straight-line basis
over the life of the guarantee.

Defined employee benefit plans

Defined employee benefit plans operated by Erste Group are for pensions, severance and jubilee benefits. From IAS 19 categorisation
perspective pension and severance benefits qualify as post-employment defined benefits plans whereas jubilee benefits are other long-
term employee benefits.

The defined benefit pension plans relate only to retired employees. The pension obligations for current employees were transferred to
external pension funds in previous years. Remaining with Erste Group is a defined-benefit obligation for entitlements of former employ-
ees who were already retired as of 31 December 1998 before the pension reform took effect, and for those former employees who retired
only in 1999 but remained entitled to a direct pension from Erste Group under individual agreements. Also included are entitlements to
resulting survivor pensions. Severance benefit obligations exist in relation to Austrian employees who entered the Group’s employment
before 1 January 2003. The severance benefit is one-time remuneration to which employees are entitled when their employment relation-
ship ends. The entitlement to this severance payment arises after three years of employment. Defined-benefit plans include jubilee benefits.
Jubilee payments (payments for long service and/or loyal service) are remuneration tied to the length of an employee’s service to the employ-
er. The entitlement to jubilee benefits is established by collective agreement, which defines both the conditions and amount of the entitlement.

Obligations ensuing from defined employee benefit plans are determined using the projected unit credit method. Future obligations are
determined based on actuarial expert opinions. The calculation takes into account not only those salaries, pensions and vested rights to
future pension payments known as of the balance sheet date but also anticipated future rates of increase in salaries and pensions. The
liability recognised under a defined-benefit plan represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of the
plan assets available for the direct settlement of obligations. For all plans, the present value of the obligation exceeds the fair value of the
plan assets. The resulting defined benefit liability is reported on the balance sheet under the line item ‘Provisions’. At Erste Group, the
plan assets consist of qualifying insurance policies purchased to back severance and jubilee benefit provisions.
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Remeasurements consist of actuarial gains and losses on the defined benefit obligations and the return on plan assets. Remeasurements of
pension and severance defined-benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive income. Remeasurements of jubilee defined-benefit
plans are recognised in the income statement under the line item ‘Personnel expenses’.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
On the balance sheet, provisions are reported under the line item ‘Provisions’. They include credit risk loss provisions for contingent
liabilities (particularly financial guarantees and loan commitments) as well as provisions for litigation and restructuring. Expenses or
income related to provisions are reported under the line item ‘Other operating result’.

Taxes

(i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured as the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amounts are those enacted by the balance sheet date.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised for temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts as of the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred taxes are not recognised on tempo-
rary differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liabil-
ity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted as of the balance sheet date. For the subsid-
iaries, local tax environments apply.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income and not in the
income statement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right to offset exists and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxation authority.

Treasury shares and contracts on treasury shares

Equity instruments of Erste Group that it or any of its subsidiaries acquire (referred to as treasury shares) are deducted from equity. Con-
sideration paid or received on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of Erste Group’s own equity instruments, including transaction
costs, is recognised directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of its own equity instruments.

Fiduciary assets
The Group provides trust and other fiduciary services that result in the holding or investing of assets on behalf of its clients. Assets held in
a fiduciary capacity are not reported in the financial statements, as they are not the assets of Erste Group.

Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by Erste Group’s shareholders.

Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can be reliably measured. The de-
scription and revenue recognition criteria of the line items reported in the income statement are as follows:
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(i) Net interest income

Interest income and interest expense is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The calculation includes origination fees
resulting from the lending business as well as transaction costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of
the EIR (apart from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss), but no future credit losses. Interest income from individually
impaired loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets is calculated by applying the original effective interest rate used to
discount the estimated cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Interest income includes interest income on loans and receivables to credit institutions and customers, on cash balances and on bonds and
other interest-bearing securities in all financial assets categories. Interest expenses include interest paid on deposits from customers, de-
posits from banks, debt securities issued and other financial liabilities in all financial liabilities categories.

Net interest income also includes interest on derivative financial instruments held in the banking book. In addition, net interest cost on
severance payment, pension and jubilee obligations is presented here.

(ii) Net fee and commission income
Erste Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services that it provides to its customers.

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include lending fees, guarantee
fees, commission income from asset management, custody and other management and advisory fees as well as fees from insurance bro-
kerage, building society brokerage and foreign exchange transactions.

Fee income earned from providing transaction services, such as arranging the acquisition of shares or other securities or the purchase or
sale of businesses, is recognised upon completion of the underlying transaction.

(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

This line item includes dividend from shares and other equity-related securities in all portfolios as well as income from other investments
in companies categorised as available for sale. It also contains dividends from subsidiaries and from associates or joint ventures that are
not consolidated or not accounted for using the equity method due to their insignificance.

(iv) Net trading and fair value result

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in the fair value (clean price) of financial assets and fi-
nancial liabilities classified as held for trading, including all derivatives not designated as hedging instruments. In addition, for derivative
financial instruments held in the trading book, the net trading result also contains interest income or expense. However, interest income or
expenses related to non-derivative trading assets and liabilities and to derivatives held in the banking book are not part of the net trading
result as they are reported as ‘Net interest income’. The net trading result also includes any ineffective portions recorded in fair value and
cash flow hedge transactions as well as foreign exchange gains and losses.

The fair value result relates to changes in the clean price of assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.
(v) Net result from equity method investments
The line item contains result from associates and joint ventures recorded by applying the equity method (measured as the investor’s share

of profit or loss in the associates and joint ventures).

However, impairment losses, reversal of impairment losses and realised gains and losses on investments in associates or joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method are reported under the line item ‘Other operating result’.

(vi) Rental income from investment properties & other operating leases
Rental income from investment properties and other operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(vii) Personnel expenses

Personnel expenses include wages and salaries, bonuses, statutory and voluntary social security contributions, staff-related taxes and
levies. They also include service cost for severance payment, pension and jubilee obligations and remeasurements of jubilee obligations.
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(viii) Other administrative expenses

Other administrative expenses include information technology expenses, expenses for office space, office operating expenses, advertising
and marketing, expenditures for legal and other consultants as well as sundry other administrative expenses. Furthermore the line item
contains deposit insurance contributions expenses.

(ix) Depreciation and amortisation
This line item comprises depreciation of property and equipment, depreciation of investment property and amortisation of intangible assets.

(x) Gains/losses on financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net

This line item includes selling and other derecognition gains or losses on available-for-sale and held-to-maturity financial assets, loans
and receivables and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. However, if such gains/losses relate to individually impaired financial
assets they are included as part of net impairment loss.

(xi) Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss

Net impairment losses on financial assets comprise impairment losses and reversals of impairment on loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity and available-for-sale financial assets. Net impairment losses relate to allowances recognised both at individual and portfolio
(incurred but not reported) level. Direct write-offs are considered as part of impairment losses. This line item also includes recoveries on
written-off loans removed from the balance sheet.

(xii) Other operating result
The other operating result reflects all other income and expenses not directly attributable to Erste Group’s ordinary activities. Further-
more, levies on banking activities are considered as part of the other operating result.

The other operating result includes impairment losses or any reversal of impairment losses as well as results on the sale of property and
equipment and intangible assets. Also included here are any impairment losses on goodwill.

In addition, the other operating result encompasses the following: expenses for other taxes; income from the release of and expenses for
allocations to provisions; impairment losses (and their reversal if any) as well as selling gains and losses on equity investments accounted
for using the equity method; and gains or losses from derecognition of subsidiaries.

d) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

The consolidated financial statements contain amounts that have been determined on the basis of judgements and by the use of estimates
and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions used are based on historical experience and other factors, such as planning as well as
expectations and forecasts of future events that are currently deemed to be reasonable. As a consequence of the uncertainty associated
with these assumptions and estimates, actual results could in future periods lead to adjustments in the carrying amounts of the related
assets or liabilities. The most significant uses of judgements, assumptions and estimates are as follows:

Control

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” defines the investor’s control over an investee in terms of the investor having all of the
following: (a) power to direct the relevant activities of the investee, i.e. activities that significantly affect the investee’s returns; (b) expo-
sure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns.

Hence, assessing the existence of control under this definition may require considerable accounting judgements, assumptions and esti-
mates, notably in non-standard situations such as: (1) power stemming both from voting rights and from contractual arrangements (or
mostly from the latter); (2) exposure stemming both from on-balance investments and from off-balance commitments or guarantees (or
mostly from the latter); or (3) variable returns stemming both from readily identifiable income streams (e.g. dividends, interest, fees) and
from cost savings, economies of scale and/or operational synergies (or mostly from the latter) .

In the case of Erste Group, such accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates have been primarily relevant for the assessment of the
following cases:

(i) The savings bank members of the Austrian cross-guarantee system (Haftungsverbund)

Erste Group Bank AG is a member of the Haftungsverbund (cross-guarantee system) of the Austrian savings bank sector. As of the bal-
ance sheet date, all of Austria’s savings banks, in addition to Erste Group Bank AG and Erste Bank der oesterreichischen Sparkassen AG,
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formed part of this cross-guarantee system. The provisions of the agreement governing the Haftungsverbund are implemented by the
steering company Haftungsverbund GmbH. Erste Group Bank AG always holds directly and indirectly at least 51% of the voting rights of
the steering company, through Erste Bank der oesterreichischen Sparkassen AG and through savings banks in which the Group holds the
majority of voting rights.

In 2013, collaboration with savings banks was further strengthened by way of an additional agreement. The purpose of the agreement
concluded in 2013 and effective as of 1 January 2014 is not only to broaden the regulatory options available to Erste Group Bank AG but
also to ensure compliance with point 127 of Article 4 (1) (1) CRR and Article 113 (7) CRR with a view to allowing recognition of minori-
ty interests at consolidated level in acc. with Article 84 (6) CRR. Savings banks that are party to the agreement concluded in 2013 also
include Allgemeine Sparkasse Oberdsterreich, which forms an institutional protection scheme as defined under Article 113 (7) CRR with
the other members of the Haftungsverbund.

For all savings banks in which Erste Group holds less than 50% of the voting rights, an assessment of whether control is achieved through
the provisions of the Haftungsverbund agreement has been performed.

Based on the contractual agreement, Haftungsverbund GmbH as the steering company is vested with the following substantive rights
related to the savings banks:

_ participation in the appointment of board members

_ approval of budgets including capital decisions

_ provision of binding guidelines in the areas of risk and liquidity management as well as internal audit

_ determination of thresholds for capital requirement including the payout of dividends

Furthermore, taking into account the magnitude of Erste Group’s involvement with the member banks - whether in the form of synergies,
investments, commitments, guarantees, or access to common resources - the Group has significant exposure to each of the member banks’
variable returns. As Haftungsverbund GmbH is able to affect the variable returns through its power, it has been assessed that Haftungsver-
bund GmbH has control over the savings banks.

As Erste Group Bank AG controls the steering company, it exercises control over the members of the cross-guarantee system.

(ii) Investment funds under own management

The Group has assessed whether the investment funds it manages through its asset management subsidiaries are controlled and hence
shall be consolidated. This assessment has been made on the basis that power over such investment funds is generally conferred based on
the contractual arrangements appointing an Erste Group subsidiary as fund manager, without any substantive removal rights the by fund’s
investors. Furthermore, Erste Group made the conclusive judgement that its exposure to such own-managed funds’ variable returns shall
be considered as significant if, additionally to the exposure through management fees, the Group is also exposed in the form of at least
20% investment in the fund. Furthermore, in its capacity as fund manager, Erste Group is also able to affect the returns of the funds
through its power. Following this assessment, investment funds under own management in which the Group - directly or through its sub-
sidiaries - has significant unit holdings are deemed to be controlled and included in the scope of consolidation

(iii) Pension funds under own management

The Group has assessed whether the contractual arrangements appointing an Erste Group subsidiary as pension fund manager (with no
substantive removal rights by the fund’s participants) are generally expected to confer power over such funds, followed by an assessment
of the Group’s exposure/rights to the pension fund’s variable returns. The relevant legal requirements regulating the activities of such
pension funds in their respective jurisdictions were also considered, notably in assessing the significance of the rights to variable returns
from management fees, as well as of the exposure to losses from any guarantees that the fund manager may be legally bound to.

As a result of this review, the Czech pension fund “Transformovany fond penzijniho piipojisténi se statnim prispévkem Ceska spotitelna —
penzijni spolecnost, a.s” (the “Transformed pension fund”) has been deconsolidated with effect from with 2014, as a result of significant
statutory changes in the fund’s articles of incorporation. These changes resulted in the narrowing of the fund manager’s investment man-
date, limiting the scope of the fund manager’s decision making authority and restricting the manager’s (and therefore Erste Group’s)
exposure to the fund’s variability of returns and other interests (including guarantees).

Joint control and classification of joint arrangements

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” defines joint control as a contractual sharing of control whereby decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Furthermore, IFRS 11 distinguishes between joint operations and joint ven-
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tures. Joint operations are defined as joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. Joint ventures are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

Hence, assessing either the existence of joint control or the type of joint arrangement (or both) under these definitions may require con-
siderable accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates.

In the case of Erste Group, such accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates have been primarily relevant for the assessment of the
Group’s involvement in partnerships and ventures in the commercial real estate sector (development, management, leasing), notably
through Erste Group Immorent AG.

As a result of such assessment, only one company has been identified as a joint arrangement in force as at 31 December 2014. This com-
pany is structured as a separate vehicle qualifying for treatment as a joint venture under the terms of the aforementioned definitions, and it
has an immaterial carrying amount (below EUR 1 million). For the ensuing IFRS 12-driven disclosure requirements, please refer to Note
23 Equity method investments.

For the ensuing IFRS 12-driven disclosures applicable to joint ventures (and associates), please refer to Note 23 Equity method investments.

Significant influence

IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” defines significant influence as the power to participate in the financial and operat-
ing policy decisions of the investee without having control or joint control of those policies. Furthermore, IAS 28 indicates that if an
entity holds, directly or indirectly 20% or more of the voting power of the investee, it is presumed that the entity has significant influence,
unless it can be clearly demonstrated that this is not the case.

In the case of Erste Group, all equity method investments are direct or indirect investments in associates and joint ventures over which the
Group exercises significant influence or joint control stemming from voting power higher than 20% up to 50%.

Interests in structured entities

IFRS 12 “Interests in Other Entities” defines structured entities as entities that have been designed so that voting or similar rights are not
the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to the administrative tasks only and the
relevant activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements. IFRS 12 defines the interests as contractual and non-contractual
involvements exposing an entity to the variability of returns from the performance of the other entity. However, such interests may not
necessarily arise solely because of a typical customer supplier relationship.

Hence, assessing which entities are structured entities, and which involvements in such entities are interests, may require considerable
accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates. In the case of Erste Group, such accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates
have been primarily relevant for assessing involvements with securitisation vehicles and investment funds. In respect to securitisation
vehicles, Erste Group assessed that on-balance or off-balance exposures to entities involved in securitisation activities meet the definition
of interests in structured entities. For investment funds, Erste Group concluded that such investment funds would typically satisfy the
characteristics of a structured entity - irrespective of whether they are own-managed funds or third party managed funds. Moreover, the
Group reached the conclusion that direct Group investments higher than 0% would typically indicate an interest in these structured enti-
ties. In alignment with the accounting judgement described under the paragraph “Investment funds under own management” above, inter-
ests below 20% are not consolidated due to lack of control. Own-managed funds with all fund units held by third-party (non-Group)
investors, without any other type of sponsorship by any entity within the Group, were considered as only reflecting an involvement typical
in a customer/-supplier relationship, hence they do not meet the definition of interests in structured entities.

Additionally, all on-balance or off-balance exposures to investment funds managed by third parties -mostly in the form of units held in
such funds- were considered as being interests in structured entities.

For the ensuing IFRS 12-driven disclosures applicable to structured entities, please refer to Note 24 Unconsolidated structured entities.
Fair value of financial instruments
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they

are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are de-
rived from observable market data where possible, but where observable market data is not available judgement is required to establish

120



fair values. Disclosures for valuation models, the fair value hierarchy and fair values of financial instruments can be found in Note 46 Fair
value of assets and liabilities.

In 2014 no Funding Value Adjustment (FVA) was considered for the valuation of OTC derivatives. Erste Group is currently analyzing the
different developments on the market. The observations will be considered in the future methodology.

Impairment of financial assets

Erste Group reviews its financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss at each balance sheet date to assess whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement. In particular, it is required to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of a loss event occurring after initial recognition and to estimate the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining an impairment loss.

Disclosures concerning impairment are provided in Note 44 Risk management in the ‘Credit risk’ subsection entitled — ‘Non-performing
credit risk exposure, risk provisions and collateral’. The development of loan loss provisions is described in Note 21 Impairment loss for
financial instruments.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Erste Group reviews its non-financial assets at each balance sheet date to assess whether there is an indication of impairment loss that
should be recorded in the income statement. Furthermore, cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated are tested for impairment
on a yearly basis. Judgement and estimates are required to determine the value in use and fair value less costs of disposal by estimating
the timing and amount of future expected cash flows and the discount rates. Assumptions and estimates used for impairment on non-
financial asset calculations are described in the parts ‘Business combinations and goodwill” and ‘Impairment of non-financial assets
(property and equipment, investment property, intangible assets)’ in the Accounting Policies. Inputs used for goodwill impairment testing
and their sensitivities can be found in Note 27 Intangible assets in the section ‘Development of goodwill’.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies. For this
purpose a planning period of 5 years is used. Disclosures concerning deferred taxes are in Note 28 Tax assets and liabilities.

Defined benefit obligation plans
The cost of the defined benefit pension plan is determined using an actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making assump-
tions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Assump-
tions, estimates and sensitivities used for the defined benefit obligation calculations as well as related amounts are disclosed in Note 34 a
Long-term employee provisions.

Provisions

Recognition of provisions requires judgement with respect to whether Erste Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and
whether it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Furthermore,
estimates are necessary with respect to the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the amount of provisions. Provisions
are disclosed in Note 27 Provisions and further details on provisions for contingent credit liabilities in Note 44.5 Credit risk. Legal pro-
ceedings that do not meet the criteria for recognition of provisions are described in Note 49 Contingent liabilities.

Leases
From Erste Group’s perspective as a lessor, judgement is required to distinguish whether a given lease is a finance or operating lease based
on the transfer of substantially all the risk and rewards from the lessor to the lessee. Disclosures concerning leases are in Note 39 Leases.

e) APPLICATION OF AMENDED AND NEW IFRS/IAS
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the previous financial year except for standards and interpretations that

became effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014. As regards new standards and interpretations and their amend-
ments, only those that are relevant for the business of Erste Group are listed below.
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Effective standards and interpretations
The following standards and their amendments have been mandatory since 2014:
_ Amendments to IAS 32 — Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities
_ Amendments to IAS 39 - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
_ Amendments to IAS 36 — Recoverable Amounts Disclosures for Non-financial Assets
_ IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
_IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
_ IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
_ Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 — Transition guidance
_ Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 — Investment entities
_ IAS 27 (revised 2011) Separate Financial Statements
_ IAS 28 (revised 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to IAS 32 — Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities

These amendments clarify the meaning of ’currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and the criteria for non-simultaneous set-
tlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting and is applied retrospectively. The amended rights of set-off must not only
be legally enforceable in the normal course of business and for the whole contract period, but must also be enforceable in the event of
default and the event of bankruptcy or insolvency. These amendments have no impact on the Group, since none of the entities in the
Group has offsetting arrangements which would have qualified for offsetting based on these clarifications.

Amendments to IAS 39 - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Amendments to IAS 39 were issued in June 2013 and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.Under the
amendments there is no need to discontinue hedge accounting if a hedging derivative is novated, provided certain criteria are
met.Application of these amendments did not have any significant impact on Erste Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 36 — Recoverable Amounts Disclosures for Non-financial Assets

IAS 36 removed the requirement to disclose recoverable amounts of assets or CGUs for periods when there has been no impairment or
reversal of impairment. Furthermore, the amendments extend the disclosure requirements when the recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is based on fair value less cost of disposal. Erste Group incorporated these new disclosure requirements accordingly (see Note 9
Other operating result and Note 27 Intangible assets). There is no impact on the Group’s financial position or results.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial StatementsIFRS 10 replaces the guidance on control and consolidation in IAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” and in SIC 12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. As a result of IFRS 10 application as of
1 January 2014, Erste Group started with consolidation of 18 investment funds managed by asset management companies of the Group. In
all of them, Erste Group is also a significant investor, when considering investments held by individual Erste Group entities. Based on
SIC 12, these funds did not meet the consolidation criteria up to 31 December 2013. The consolidation has been applied retrospectively,
hence all affected 2013 comparative figures have been restated. As a result of the retrospective application, total assets increased by
EUR 247 million and total equity decreased by EUR 2 million per 1 January 2013. As of 31 Dezember 2013 the retrospective application
of IFRS 10 resulted in an increase of otal assets in the amount of EUR 242 million and an increase in the total equity by EUR 4 million.
The overall result increased by EUR 5 million in the fiscal year 2013.

For further details on the retrospective application of IFRS 10 please refer to chapter “c) ACCOUNTING AND MEASUREMENT
METHODS”.

When notes have been adjusted in the course of the retrospective application of IFRS 10, this was marked with “adjusted” in the respec-
tive Note.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 sets out the requirements for disclosures relating to an entity's interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and uncon-
solidated structured entities. The standard requires entities to disclose significant judgements and assumptions made in determining
whether an entity controls, jointly controls, significantly influences or has some other interests in other entities. Furthermore, entities are
required to provide disclosures relating to interests in structured entities. The requirements in IFRS 12 are more comprehensive than the
previous disclosure requirements. Therefore, the application of IFRS 12 resulted in new disclosures in the consolidated financial state-
ments, which are provided in Note 23 Equity method investments, Note 24 Unconsolidated structured entities, Note 25 Non Controlling
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Interests and chapter “d) Significant accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates”. There is no impact on the Group’s financial
position or results.

Application of other standards and amendments had no material effect on the financial statements of Erste Group.

Standards and interpretations not yet effective
The standards, amendments and interpretations shown below were issued by the IASB but are not yet effective.

Following standards, amendments and interpretations are not yet endorsed by the EU:
_ IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
_ IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
_ IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers
_ Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
_ Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
_ Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
_ Amendments to IFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in Joint Operations
_ Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
_ Amendments to IAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

Following standards, amendments and interpretations are already endorsed by the EU:
_ Amendments to IAS 19 — Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
_IFRIC 21 Levies
_ Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 2012 and 2011 2013 Cycle
_ Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 Cycle
In December 2013, the IASB issued two sets of amendments to various standards. The amendments are effective for annual periods be-
ginning on or after 1 July 2014.Application of these amendments does not have a significant impact on Erste Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (IASB Effective Date: 1 January 2018)
IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.IFRS 9 addresses three main areas
of accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.

IFRS 9 introduces two classification criteria for financial assets: 1) an entity’s business model for managing the financial assets, and 2) the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. As a result, a financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both the
following conditions are met: a) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pay-
ments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding and b) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows. Measurement of a fair value through other comprehensive income is applicable to finan-
cial assets that meet condition a) but the business model applied to them is focused both on holding the assets to collect contractual cash
flows and selling the assets. All other financial assets are measured at fair value with changes recognised in profit or loss. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, an entity may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure them at fair
value with changes recognised in other comprehensive income.

IFRS 9 does not change classification and measurement principles for financial liabilities compared to IAS 39. The only change is related
to financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value option). The fair value changes related to the credit risk of
such liabilities will be presented in other comprehensive income.

The standard provides a uniform impairment model applied to both financial assets and off-balance sheet credit risk bearing exposures
(loan commitments and financial guarantees). At initial recognition of financial instruments loss allowance to reflect credit loss is recog-
nised in the form of 12-month expected losses. Lifetime expected losses are to be recognised for all instrument whose credit risk increases
subsequently after initial recognition. Furthermore the standard brings new rules for accounting for losses resulting from modification of
contractual conditions of financial assets.

The objective of the new hedge accounting model is to reflect in accounting actual risk management practices of entities hedging risks.
For Erste Group, the following areas are expected to be relevant to achieve this objective: only the prospective effectiveness test is re-
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quired and the retrospective effectiveness test with the 80%-125% corridor was abandoned; when options are used as hedging instru-
ments, the volatility of the time value is recognised through OCI rather than profit or loss; the possibility of hedging synthetic items con-
taining derivatives.

This standard will have a significant effect on balance sheet items and measurement methods for financial instruments. The contractual
cash flow characteristics of financial assets will have to be reviewed and Erste Group faces the risk that part of its loan portfolio will have
to be measured at fair value through profit or loss. On the other hand, some debt securities currently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive may be measured at amortised cost due to the "held-to-collect contractual cash’ flows business model applied to them. In
the area of impairment loss, allowances are expected to increase significantly. In 2015 Erste Group will start with determing the quantita-
tive impacts resulting from the application of IFRS 9.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (IASB Effective Date: 1 January 2016)

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts permits an entity which is a first-time adopter of International Financial Reporting Standards to
continue to account, with some limited changes, for 'regulatory deferral account balances' in accordance with its previous GAAP, both on
initial adoption of IFRS and in subsequent financial statements. The Group does not expect any significant impact from application of
IFRS 14.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (IASB Effective Date: 1 January 2017)

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. IFRS 15 specifies how and when
an entity recognises revenue from contracts with customers. It also requires such entities to provide users of financial statements with more
informative and more relevant disclosures. The standard provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts
with customers. As the standard is not focused on recognition of revenues from financial services, application of this standard is not ex-
pected to have a significant impact on Erste Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (IASB Effective
Date: 1 January 2016 to be amended)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 were issued in September 2014 and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016.These amendments deal with the sale or contribution of assets or subsidiaries in a transaction between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised only when the assets or the
subsidiaries constitute a business.Application of these amendments is not expected to have a significant impact on Erste Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (IASB Effective Date:
1 January 2016)

The amendments confirm that the exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements for an intermediate parent entity is available
to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. Also,
they clarify that when applying the equity method to an associate or a joint venture, a non-investment entity investor in an investment entity
may retain the fair value measurement applied by the associate or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries. Application of these amend-
ments is not expected to have a significant impact on Erste Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation (IASB Effective Date:
1 January 2016)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 were issued in May 2014 and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.The
amendments prohibit the use of revenue-based depreciation for property, plant and equipment and significantly limiting the use of revenue-
based amortisation for intangible assets. Application of these amendments is not expected to have a significant impact on Erste Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in Joint Operations (IASB Effective Date: 1 January 2016)

Amendments to IFRS 11 were issued in May 2014 and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.The amend-
ments specify that the acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a business, as defined in IFRS 3, is re-
quired to apply all of the principles on business combinations accounting in IFRS 3 and other IFRSs with the exception of those principles
that conflict with the guidance in IFRS 11.Application of these amendments is not expected to have a significant impact on Erste Group’s
financial statements.
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Amendments to IAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (IASB effective date: 1 January 2016)
Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1) makes the following changes:

_Materiality

The amendments clarify that (1) information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing immaterial information, (2) materiali-
ty considerations apply to the all parts of the financial statements, and (3) even when a standard requires a specific disclosure, materiality
considerations do apply.

_Statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

The amendments (1) introduce a clarification that the list of line items to be presented in these statements can be disaggregated and aggre-
gated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these statements and (2) clarify that an entity's share of OCI of equity-accounted
associates and joint ventures should be presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or not it will subsequently be reclassi-
fied to profit or loss.

Notes
The amendments add additional examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify that understandability and comparability
should be considered when determining the order of the notes and to demonstrate that the notes need not be presented in the order so far
listed in paragraph 114 of IAS 1. The IASB also removed guidance and examples with regard to the identification of significant account-
ing policies that were perceived as being potentially unhelpful.

These changes and clarifications are not expected to trigger significant changes in the presentation of Group’s IFRS consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 — Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

Amendments to IAS 19 were issued in November 2013 and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. The
amendments clarify that contributions from employees or third parties that are linked to service must be attributed to periods of service
using the same attribution method as used for the gross benefit. However, the contribution may be recognised as a reduction in the service
cost if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service. Application of these amendments does not have a
significant impact on Erste Group’s financial statements.

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant
legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be
anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached. Retrospective application is required for IFRIC 21. This interpretation has
no impact on the Group as it has applied the recognition principles under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
consistent with the requirements of IFRIC 21 in prior years.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 2012 and 2011 2013 Cycle

In December 2013, the IASB issued two sets of amendments to various standards. The amendments are effective for annual periods be-
ginning on or after 1 July 2014. Application of these amendments is not expected to have a significant impact on Erste Group’s financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (IASB effective date: 1 January 2016)

In September 2014, the IASB issued a set of amendments to various standards. The amendments are effective for annual periods begin-
ning on or after 1 January 2016.Application of these amendments is not expected to have a significant impact on Erste Group’s financial
statements.
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C. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND THE BALANCE SHEET OF
ERSTE GROUP

1. Net interest income

11213
in EUR million restated 1-12 14
Interest income
Financial assets - held for trading 521.9 326.3
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 8.7 3.2
Financial assets - available for sale 509.6 473.6
Financial assets - held to maturity 686.3 610.8
Loans and receivables 5,269.3 4,875.7
Derivatives - hedge accounting, interest rate risk -45.8 -17.3
Other assets 34.3 28.7
Total interest income 6,984.3 6,301.1
Interest expenses
Financial liabilities - held for trading -159.7 -84.3
Financial liabilities - at fair value through profit or loss -59.7 -39.2
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost -2,546.4 -2,106.9
Derivatives - hedge accounting, interest rate risk 469.4 463.9
Other liabilities -2.8 -39.4
Total interest expense -2,299.3 -1,805.9
Net interest income 4,685.0 4,495.2

For financial assets or liabilities that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, the total interest income amounted to
EUR 5,988.9 million (2013: EUR 6,499.6 million) and the total interest expense to EUR —2,146.3 million (2013: EUR -2,549.2 mil-
lion). Net interest income for these items is therefore EUR 3,842.7 million (2013: EUR 3,950.3 million).

2. Net fee and commission income

11213
in EUR million restated 11214
Securities 157.3 185.4
Own issues 31.1 16.7
Transfer orders 114.5 153.5
Other 11.7 15.1
Clearing and settlement 3.5 9.2
Asset management 198.5 217.8
Custody 67.9 44.3
Fiduciary transactions 1.9 22
Payment services 903.7 896.8
Card business 210.5 2151
Other 693.3 681.7
Customer resources distributed but not managed 157.9 180.3
Collective investment 7.5 19.7
Insurance products 99.7 110.7
Building society brokerage 22.9 18.3
Foreign exchange transactions 231 19.4
Other 4.7 12.2
Structured finance 0.0 0.1
Servicing fees from securitization activities 1.5 0.0
Lending business 259.0 233.3
Guarantees given, guarantees received 25.9 43.0
Loan commitments given, loan commitments received 65.5 62.0
Other lending business 167.6 128.3
Other 55.2 100.5
Net fee and commission income 1,806.5 1,869.8
Fee and commission income 2,305.6 2,354.7
Fee and commission expenses -499.1 -484.8
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3. Dividend income

in EUR million 11213 11214
Financial assets - held for trading 5.1 1.5
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 4.9 3.4
Financial assets - available for sale 66.7 43.8
Dividend income from equity investments 131 25.5
Dividend income 89.7 74.2
4. Net trading and fair value result
11213
in EUR million restated 11214
Net trading result 231.9 314.8
Securities and derivatives trading -2.6 131.5
Foreign exchange transactions 234.5 183.4
Result from financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss -13.1 -72.6
Result from measurement/sale of financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 10.5 8.7
Result from measurement/sale of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss -23.6 -81.3
Net trading and fair value result 218.8 242.3

From cashflow and fair value hedges, an amount of EUR 30.8 million (2013: EUR 7.4 million) is reported under the line item ‘Net trading
result’.

The amounts of the fair value changes that are attributable to changes in own credit risk can be found in the Notes 32 Financial liabilities — at
fair value through profit and loss. Additional information to hedge relationships are described in detail in Note 45 Hedge Accounting.

5. Rental income from investment properties & other operating leases

in EUR million 11213 11214
Investment properties 79.3 85.4
Other operating leases 94.0 95.2
Rental income from investment properties & other operating leases 173.3 180.6
6. General administrative expenses
in EUR million 11213 11214
Personnel expenses -2,232.4 -2,184.2
Wages and salaries -1,643.6 -1,628.4
Compulsory social security -401.7 -423.9
Long-term employee provisions -48.0 -21.0
Other personnel expenses -139.1 -110.9
Other administrative expenses -1,146.0 -1,136.9
Deposit insurance contribution -77.2 -87.6
IT expenses -258.9 -262.5
Expenses for office space -256.4 -248.3
Office operating expenses -138.7 -117.2
Advertising/marketing -164.0 -167.8
Legal and consulting costs -138.2 -128.3
Sundry administrative expenses -112.6 -125.3
Depreciation and amortisation -517.7 -466.1
Software and other intangible assets -146.8 -150.4
Owner occupied real estate -84.1 -77.4
Investment properties -100.2 -103.4
Customer relationships -65.2 -37.0
Office furniture and equipment and sundry property and equipment -121.3 -97.8
General administrative expenses -3,896.1 -3,787.3

Personnel expenses include expenses of EUR 60.7 million (2013: EUR 49.5 million) for defined contribution plans, of which
EUR 0.9 million (2013: EUR 0.9 million) relates to members of the management board.
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Average number of employees during the financial year (weighted according to the level of employment)

11213 11214
Domestic 15,810 15,593
Erste Group, EB Oesterreich and subsidiaries 8,481 8,330
Haftungsverbund savings banks 7,329 7,263
Abroad 31,033 30,403
Ceska spotitelna Group 10,629 10,471
Banca Comerciala Romana Group 7,418 7,066
Slovenska sporitelfia Group 4,247 4,223
Erste Bank Hungary Group 2,770 2,789
Erste Bank Croatia Group 2,551 2,714
Erste Bank Serbia Group 929 959
Erste Bank Ukraine 374 0
Savings banks subsidiaries 1,126 1,149
Other subsidiaries and foreign branch offices 989 1,032
Total 46,843 45,996

7. Gains/losses from financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net

in EUR million 11213 1-12 14
From sale of financial assets available for sale 48.9 32.2
From sale of financial assets held to maturity 7.2 3.6
From sale of loans and receivables 0.8 -0.8
From repurchase of liabilities measured at amortised cost 5.5 -16.8
Gains/losses from financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 62.4 18.3

The carrying amount of investments in equity instruments measured at cost that were sold during the period was EUR 2.5 million
(2013: EUR 1.9 million). The resulting gain on sale was EUR 0 million (2013: EUR 1.0 million).

8. Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss

11213

in EUR million restated 112 14
Financial assets - available for sale -42.2 -39.3
Loans and receivables -1,726.5 -2,120.4

Allocation to risk provisions -3,321.0 -4,117.3

Release of risk provisions 1,733.6 2,023.9

Direct write-offs -257.3 -227.5

Recoveries recorded directly to the income statement 118.2 200.5
Financial assets - held to maturity 5.7 0.4
Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss -1,774.4 -2,159.2
9. Other operating result

11213

in EUR million restated 11214
Result from properties/movables/other intangible assets other than goodwill -59.2 -580.4
Allocation to/release of other provisions -40.3 -57.7
Allocation to/release of provisions for commitments and guarantees given -36.9 -16.2
Levies on banking activities -311.0 -256.3

Banking tax -256.6 -210.0

Financial transaction tax -54.4 -46.3
Other taxes -18.7 -26.0
Impairment of goodwill -383.0 -475.0
Result from other operating expenses/income -159.4 -341.5
Other operating result -1,008.6 -1,752.9

Operating expenses (including repair and maintenance) for ‘Investment properties’ not held for rental income totalled EUR 1.0 million
(2013: EUR 3.5 million).

Operating expenses (including repair and maintenance) for ‘Investment properties’ held for rental income totalled EUR 12.0 million (2013:
EUR 2.8 million).
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The amount of impairment loss on assets held for sale recognised in the result from other operating expenses/income is EUR -7.4 million
(2013: EUR -2.9 million).

In the line item ‘Result from other operating expenses/income’ an amount of EUR 76.6 million was recognised for the disposal of Erste
Bank Ukraine in 2013.

Foreign currency denominated loans in Hungary

As a result of a law formally passed by the Hungarian Parliament early in July 2014, Erste Bank Hungary is required to compensate its
customers in the area of consumer loans provided since May 2004. The compensation refers to bid-ask exchange rate spreads applied by
the bank for disbursements and repayments of foreign exchange denominated loans and unilateral interest rate increases for both FX and
HUF loans.

During November and December 2014 the Hungarian National Bank released three decrees stipulating the manner of settlement and
calculation methods for the compensation payments to affected customers. Based on these rules, the expense for compensating customers
regarding the bid-ask exchange rate spreads applied for disbursements and repayments amounts to EUR 304.4 million, disclosed under
other operating result. Thereof EUR 238 million (‘Result from other operating expenses/income’) relate to active loans and were netted
with the respective exposures. The residual expense of EUR 66.4 million relating to already closed loans is disclosed under “Other provi-
sions”.

In November 2014 the Hungarian parliament issued the Conversion Law stipulating the compulsory conversion of defined fx denominat-
ed loans in February 2015 at a fixed exchange rate. As of the balance sheet date, the affected loans were translated with the legally fixed
exchange rate. The application of the law resulted in an expense of EUR 32.4 million shown under other operating result. On the other
hand an income from fx translation amounting to EUR 32.4 million (‘Result from other operating expenses/income’) is reported under net
trading and fair value result.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles

Banca Comerciala Romana SA (BCR) significantly lowered its expectations of recovery for several large packages of non-performing
loans. In addition based on the instructions of the Romanian National Bank the sale of such non-performing portfolios has been accelerat-
ed. In the light of the low price offers received for benchmark sales during the second quarter of 2014 the collaterals for such loans had to
be reassessed. This subsequently led to a significant rise of the risk costs and a decrease in the planned interest income on such non-
performing loans. Due to these developments the residual goodwill as well as the customer list and the brand were fully impaired in the
first half of 2014. In the course of the preparation of the annual report 2014 the underlying assumptions from the first half-year of 2014
have been reviewed. This did not lead to any changes.

Erste Bank Croatia (“EBC”) had to accommodate local regulations introduced in 2014 regarding higher capital requirements, therefore
indicating a potential decrease in EBC's future cash-generating capacity and distributable dividends. This indication was deemed as po-
tentially further affecting the cash generating unit of Steiermérkische Bank und Sparkassen Aktiengesellschaft (“STMK”), which holds a
significant participation in Erste Bank Croatia. As a result the goodwill Erste Bank Croatia (EBC) as well as the goodwill allocated to
Steiermédrkische Bank und Sparkassen Aktiengesellschaft (STMK) has already been fully impaired in the first half of 2014.

The goodwill allocated to Girocredit was fully impaired in 2014 as a result of the impairment test performed.

The development of the goodwill of all subsidiaries (cash generating units) for 2014 is presented in Note 27 Intangible Assets. In addition,
the key parameters and assumptions on which the impairment tests are based are summarized in this note.

Other impairments

The main classes of assets affected by impairment losses where property plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and
foreclosed assets. The main events that led to the recognition of impairment losses can be summarized as:

_the intention to sell fixed assets and accordingly their re-measurement before reclassifying them based on IFRS 5,

_not fully occupied buildings that triggered a lower recoverable amount

_recurring measurement for foreclosed assets at the balance sheet date and

_concessions and other intangibles for which measurable economic benefits are no longer expected in the future
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10. Taxes on income

Taxes on income are made up of current taxes on income calculated in each of the Group companies based on the results reported for tax
purposes, corrections to taxes on income for previous years, and the change in deferred taxes.

in EUR million 11213 11214
Current tax expense / income -311.1 -312.4
current period -284.8 -287.8
prior period -26.3 -24.5
Deferred tax expense / income 132.6 -197.0
current period 117.8 -195.6
prior period 14.7 -1.5
Total -178.5 -509.4

The following table reconciles the income taxes reported in the income statement to the pre-tax profit/loss multiplied by the nominal
Austrian tax rate.

in EUR million 11213 11214
Pre-tax profit/loss 378.4 -803.2
Income tax expense for the financial year at the domestic statutory tax rate (25%) -94.6 200.8
Impact of different foreign tax rates and special tax regimes 41.5 -105.6
Impact of tax-exempt earnings of investments and other tax-exempt income 132.3 139.1
Tax increases due to non-deductible expenses, additional business tax and similar elements -160.9 -147.0
Impact of the goodwill impairment loss recognized at Group level, added back to theoretical tax -95.8 -118.7
One-off release of loan loss risk provision related deferred tax liabilities 127.7 0.0
Impact from tax deductible participations impairment eliminated upon consolidation (before related valuation assessment) 61.7 345.8
Impact of current non-valued fiscal losses and temporary differences for the year -97.0 -439.2
Net Impairment of deferred tax assets from previously valued carried forward fiscal losses and temporary deductible differences -81.9 -358.6
Tax expense not atributable to the reporting period -11.5 -26.0
Total -178.5 -509.4

Group's effective tax expense for the year 2014 has been adversely impacted by write-offs of deferred tax assets which had been recog-
nised as at the end of prior year, as well as by non-valuations of deductible temporary differences and tax losses of the current year.

The main reasons of this impact are described in further detail in Note 28 Tax assets and liabilities.

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income:

1-12 13 restated 11214

Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
in EUR million amount Tax benefit amount amount Tax benefit amount
Available for sale-reserve (including currency translation) -115.5 27.6 -87.9 581.2 -180.8 400.4
Cash flow hedge-reserve (including currency translation) -71.9 17.4 -54.6 172.8 -17.5 155.3
Remeasurement of net liability of defined pension plans -6.7 2.3 -4.5 -188.2 54.8 -133.4
Currency translation -241.4 0.0 2414 -63.1 0.0 -63.1
Other comprehensive income -435.5 47.2 -388.4 502.7 -143.5 359.2

11. Appropriation of profit

For the year 2014, Erste Group Bank AG posted a post-tax loss of EUR 5,822.8 million under the Austrian accounting regulations, which
reduced its distributable capital accordingly (2013: EUR 170.6 million post-tax distributable profit). Most of this loss (EUR 5,554.0 million)
arose from a group internal merger between EGB Ceps Beteiligungen GmbH and EGB Ceps Holding GmbH with Erste Group Bank AG.

Consequently, no dividend distributions will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of Erste Group Bank AG
(EUR 0.20/share, amounting to a total pay-out of EUR 85,960,000.00 for 2013).

The participation capital was fully redeemed in August 2013, when dividends of 8% per annum (in a total amount of EUR 84,659,712.00)
were paid out for the last time.
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12. Cash and cash balances

in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Cash on hand 2,327 2,467
Cash balances at central banks 6,343 4,509
Other demand deposits 630 859
Cash and cash balances 9,301 7,835

A portion of ‘Balances with central banks’ represents mandatory reserve deposits that are not available for use in the day-to-day opera-

tions of Erste Group.

13. Derivatives — held for trading

As of 31 December 2013 restated

As of 31 December 2014

Positive fair Negative fair Positive fair Negative fair
in EUR million Notional value value value Notional value value value
Derivatives held in the trading book 182,478 5,269 5,223 159,252 6,134 5,942

Interest rate 151,475 4,463 4,546 127,497 5,450 5,403
Equity 734 50 13 801 35 5
Foreign exchange 29,601 746 653 29,981 628 508
Credit 331 0 6 362 1 4
Commodity 252 2 4 402 19 21
Other 84 8 1 209 1 0
Derivatives held in the banking book 38,241 1,073 864 34,726 1,040 1,246
Interest rate 21,175 720 608 18,473 781 928
Equity 1,860 41 40 1,512 83 66
Foreign exchange 14,354 254 141 13,588 127 237
Credit 496 9 8 600 13 12
Commodity 44 4 5 74 2 1
Other 313 45 63 478 34 3
Total 220,719 6,342 6,087 193,978 7,173 7,188
14. Other trading assets
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Equity instruments 273 185
Debt securities 5,668 3,124
General governments 3,397 2,377
Credit institutions 1,960 333
Other financial corporations 21 154
Non-financial corporations 289 260
Loans and advances 0 49
Other trading assets 5,941 3,357
15. Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Equity instruments 207 211
Debt securities 322 139
General governments 63 6
Credit institutions 125 83
Other financial corporations 7 49
Non-financial corporations 127 1
Loans and advances 0 0
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 529 350
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16. Financial assets - available for sale

Dec 13
in EUR million restated Dec 14
Equity instruments 1,236 1,272
Debt securities 19,442 21,102
General governments 10,439 13,814
Credit institutions 3,434 3,658
Other financial corporations 1,285 878
Non-financial corporations 4,284 2,752
Loans and advances 0 0
Financial assets - available for sale 20,678 22,373

The carrying amount of investments in equity instruments measured at cost is EUR 68 million (2013: EUR 196 million). Of this, Erste
Group intends to dispose of investments in carrying amount of EUR 2 million (82 million in 2013) through direct sales.

17.Financial assets — held to maturity

Gross carrying amount Collective allowances Net carrying amount
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14 Dec 13 Dec 14 Dec 13 Dec 14
General governments 15,195 15,024 -2 0 15,194 15,023
Credit institutions 1,529 1,024 0 -1 1,529 1,023
Other financial corporations 229 242 0 0 229 241
Non-financial corporations 828 590 0 -1 828 590
Total 17,781 16,879 -2 -2 17,779 16,877

18. Securities

Financial assets

Loans and
advances to At fair value
customers and through profit or
credit institutions Trading assets loss Available for sale Held to maturity Total
Dec 13 Dec 13 Dec Dec 13 Dec 13 Dec 13 Dec 13
in EUR million restated Dec 14 restated 2014 restated Dec 14 restated Dec 14 restated Dec 14 restated Dec 14
Bonds and other interest-
bearing securities 831 694 5,668 3,124 322 139 18,795 21,102 17,779 16,878 43,395 41,937
Listed 0 0 3,448 2,475 286 98 16,995 18,285 17,033 15,535 37,761 36,393
Unlisted 831 694 2,220 649 36 41 1,800 2,817 746 1,343 5,634 5,543
Equity-related securities 0 0 273 185 207 211 1,622 1,204 0 0 2,102 1,600
Listed 0 0 86 57 151 44 874 716 0 0 1,112 817
Unlisted 0 0 186 128 56 167 748 488 0 0 991 783
Equity holdings 0 0 0 0 0 0 261 68 0 0 261 68
Total 831 694 5,941 3,309 529 350 20,678 22,373 17,779 16,878 45,758 43,604

Investment funds are disclosed within equity-related securities.

Held-to-maturity financial assets include bonds and other interest-bearing securities that are quoted in active markets and are intended to
be held to maturity.

Securities lending and repurchase transactions are disclosed in Note 42 Transfers of financial assets — repurchase transactions and securi-
ties lending.

During the financial year 2014, bond investments with a carrying amount of EUR 273.4 million (2013: EUR 29.1 million) were reclassi-
fied from the category HtM to AfS, of which EUR 228.9 million (2013: EUR 25.6 million) was sold up to year-end. Reclassifications
(and subsequent sales) in the amount of EUR 206.2 million were made considering that the related securities were maturing within 2
months from the sale dates.

Consequently, a total adverse net effect of EUR 0.2 million (2013: EUR 9.8 million) was recognised in the income statement for the year,

whilst a further adverse effect of EUR 3.6 million (2013: nil) was reflected in other comprehensive income in respect of reclassified bonds
not yet sold at year-end.

132



19. Loans and receivables to credit institutions

Loans and receivables to credit institutions

Gross carrying Specific Collective Net carrying
in EUR million amount allowances allowances amount
As of 31 December 2014
Debt securities 442 0 -1 440

Central banks 74 0 0 74
Credit institutions 368 0 -1 366
Loans and receivables 7,019 -15 -3 7,002
Central banks 2,163 0 0 2,162
Credit institutions 4,857 -15 -2 4,840
Total 7,461 -15 -4 7,442
As of 31 December 2013
Debt securities 526 0 0 526
Central banks 76 0 0 76
Credit institutions 450 0 0 450
Loans and receivables 7,906 -54 -1 7,851
Central banks 1,278 0 0 1,278
Credit institutions 6,627 -54 -1 6,573
Total 8,431 -54 -1 8,377

In the balance sheet, loans and receivables to credit institutions are disclosed with the carrying amount net of any. impairments. In the previ-
ous financial statements the carrying amount was reported before any impairments. The comparative figures for 2013 restated accordingly.

Allowances for loans and receivables to credit institutions

Interest Recoveries
income from Exchange rate of amounts
impaired and other Amounts previously
in EUR million As of  Allocations Use Releases loans changes (+/-) As of written off written off
Dec 13 Dec 14
Specific allowances -54 -5 46 64 0 -66 -15 -8 4
Debt securities 0 0 0 3 0 -3 0 0 0
Central banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Credit institutions 0 0 0 3 0 -3 0 0 0
Loans and receivables -54 -5 46 62 0 -64 -15 -8 4
Central banks 0 0 0 1 0 -1 0 0 0
Credit institutions -54 -5 46 60 0 -62 -15 -8 4
Collective allowances -1 -7 0 8 0 -4 -3 0 0
Debt securities 0 -1 0 0 0 0 -1 0 0
Central banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Credit institutions 0 -1 0 0 0 0 -1 0 0
Loans and receivables -1 -6 0 8 0 -4 -2 0 0
Central banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Credit institutions -1 -6 0 8 0 -4 -2 0 0
Total -55 -12 46 73 0 -70 -17 -8 4
Dec 12 Dec 13
Specific allowances -61 -2 7 2 0 0 -54 -13 6
Debt securities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -3 2
Central banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Credit institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -3 2
Loans and receivables -61 -2 7 2 0 0 -54 -10 4
Central banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Credit institutions -61 -2 7 2 0 0 -54 -10 4
Collective allowances -6 -16 0 20 0 0 -1 0 0
Debt securities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Central banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Credit institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loans and receivables -6 -16 0 20 0 0 -1 0 0
Central banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Credit institutions -6 -16 0 20 0 0 -1 0 0
Total -67 -18 7 22 0 0 -55 -13 6
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20. Loans and receivables to customers

Loans and receivables to customers

Gross carrying Specific Collective Net carrying
in EUR million amount allowances allowances amount
As of 31 December 2014
Debt securities with customers 269 -13 -2 254

General governments 108 0 -1 107
Other financial corporations 25 0 0 25
Non-financial corporations 135 -13 -1 122
Loans and advances to customers 128,056 -6,710 -766 120,580
General governments 7,701 -6 -14 7,681
Other financial corporations 5,249 -142 -25 5,082
Non-financial corporations 54,319 -4,134 -440 49,745
Households 60,786 -2,428 -287 58,071
Total 128,325 -6,723 -768 120,834
As of 31 December 2013
Debt securities with customers 306 -9 -2 294
General governments 36 0 0 36
Other financial corporations 0 0 0 0
Non-financial corporations 270 -9 -2 258
Loans and advances to customers 127,392 -7,093 -649 119,650
General governments 6,864 -6 -1 6,848
Other financial corporations 4,164 -187 -17 3,960
Non-financial corporations 59,571 -4,551 -365 54,655
Households 56,793 -2,348 -257 54,188
Total 127,698 -7,102 -651 119,945

In the balance sheet, loans and receivables to customers are disclosed with the carrying amount net of any. impairments. In the previous
financial statements the carrying amount was reported before any impairments. The comparative figures for 2013 were restated accordingly.
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Allowances for loans and receivables to customers

Interest Recoveries
income from Exchange rate of amounts
impaired and other Amounts previously
in EUR million As of Allocations Use Releases loans changes (+/-) As of written off written off
Dec 13 Dec 14
Specific allowances -7,102 -3,522 2,101 1,439 202 160 -6,723 -220 196
Debt securities with customers -9 -11 4 0 0 3 -13 -14 11
General governments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other financial corporations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non-financial corporations -9 -1 4 0 0 3 -13 -14 11
Loans and advances to customers -7,092 -3,511 2,096 1,439 202 157 -6,710 -206 185
General governments -6 -6 3 3 1 -1 -6 0 1
Other financial corporations -183 -95 91 48 3 -5 -142 -2 2
Non-financial corporations -4,594 -2,274 1,431 837 109 357 -4,134 -163 149
Households -2,310 -1,137 572 551 90 -194 -2,428 -40 33
Collective allowances -651 -583 0 512 0 -47 -768 0 0
Debt securities with customers -2 0 0 0 0 0 -2 0 0
General governments 0 0 0 0 0 -1 -1 0 0
Other financial corporations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non-financial corporations -2 0 0 0 0 2 -1 0 0
Loans and advances to customers -649 -583 0 512 0 -48 -766 0 0
General governments -1 -7 0 5 0 -1 -14 0 0
Other financial corporations -16 -27 0 21 0 -2 -25 0 0
Non-financial corporations -363 -310 0 237 0 -4 -440 0 0
Households -258 -239 0 250 0 -41 -287 0 0
Total -7,753 -4,105 2,101 1,951 202 112 -7,491 -220 196
Dec 12 Dec 13
Specific allowances -6,879 -2,975 1,153 1,355 270 -26 -7,102 -257 118
Debt securities with customers -3 -7 0 0 0 0 -9 0 0
General governments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other financial corporations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non-financial corporations -3 -7 0 0 0 0 -9 0 0
Loans and advances to customers -6,876 -2,968 1,153 1,355 270 -26 -7,092 -257 118
General governments -4 -7 1 4 0 0 -6 0 0
Other financial corporations -26 -88 13 3 1 -85 -183 -2 19
Non-financial corporations -4,528 -2,390 879 1,076 215 154 -4,594 -210 78
Households -2,319 -483 261 271 54 -94 -2,310 -44 21
Collective allowances -695 -326 0 356 0 14 -651 0 0
Debt securities with customers -2 0 0 0 0 0 -2 0 0
General governments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other financial corporations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non-financial corporations -2 0 0 0 0 0 -2 0 0
Loans and advances to customers -693 -326 0 356 0 14 -649 0 0
General governments -10 -2 0 3 0 -3 -1 0 0
Other financial corporations -4 -5 0 9 0 -16 -16 0 0
Non-financial corporations -451 -266 0 278 0 75 -363 0 0
Households -229 -52 0 66 0 -43 -258 0 0
Total -7,574 -3,301 1,153 1,711 270 -12 -7,753 -257 118
21. Impairment loss for financial instruments
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14 Position in statement of comprehensive income
Loans and advances to credit institutions 24 19 Netimpairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss*
Loans and advances to customers 3,553 4,325 Netimpairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss*
Financial assets - available for sale 54 53  Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss*
Financial assets - held to maturity 16 1 Netimpairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss*
Contingent credit risk liabilities ) 217 279  Sundry provisions (Note 34b)**

* Amounts presented under these items are not directly reconcilable with Note 8. Note 8 presents profit or loss impairment effects consisting of allocation, release of risk provisions, direct writte off expenses and income on loss
and advances written off. Note 21 discoloses effects on impairment loss consisting of only allocations of risk provisions and dirrect write offs..
** Amounts presented under this item are not directly reconcilable with Note 9. Under Note 21, only impairment loss is considered, unlike note 9 where also reversal of impairment is considered.
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22. Derivatives —

hedge accounting

As of 31 December 2013

As of 31 December 2014

Positive fair

Negative fair

Positive fair

Negative fair

in EUR million Notional value value value Notional value value value
Fair value hedges 31,023 1,870 605 29,184 2,689 724
Interest rate 30,693 1,866 594 29,142 2,689 712
Equity 0 0 0 0 0 0
Foreign exchange 260 2 10 42 0 12
Credit 0 0 0 0 0 0
Commodity 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other 70 2 1 0 0 0
Cash flow hedges 5,328 74 40 4,327 183 2
Interest rate 4,866 73 32 3,760 181 1
Equity 0 0 0 0 0 0
Foreign exchange 443 1 7 567 2 1
Credit 0 0 0 0 0 0
Commodity 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other 20 1 1 0 0 0
Total 36,351 1,944 644 33,511 2,872 726
The nominal values as of 31 December 2013 for foreign exchange derivatives in fair value hedges were corrected.
23. Equity method investments
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Credit institutions 93 86
Financial institutions 3 45
Non-credit institutions 111 63
Total 208 195
The table below shows the aggregated financial information of companies accounted for using the equity method:
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Total assets 3,278 3,998
Total liabilities 2,716 3,499
Income 436 16
Profit/loss 60 -68

As of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, none of Erste Group’s investments accounted for using the equity method published

price quotations.
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Significant equity method investments were the Erste Group has strategic interest

VBV - Betriebliche Altersvorsorge

Prva stavebna Let's Print Holding AG AG
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14 Dec 13 Dec 14 Dec 13 Dec 14
Country of Incorporation Slovakia Slovakia Austria Austria Austria Austria
Place of business Slovakia Slovakia Austria Austria Austria Austria
Financing building ~ Financing building
Main business activity society society Printing Office Printing Office Insurance Insurance
Ownership% held 35% 35% 42% 42% 30% 30%
Voting rights held% 35% 35% 42% 42% 27% 27%
IFRS Classification (JV/A) Associate Associate Associate Associate Associate Associate
Reporting currency Euro Euro Euro Euro Euro Euro
Dividend income received 0 0 0 0 7 5
Impairment loss recognized (cumulative basis) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairment loss recognized (for the reporting year) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loan commitments, financial guarantees and
other commitments given 0 0 0 0 0 0
Investee's financial information for the reporting year
Cash and cash balances 1 0 7 6 7 15
Other current assets 524 412 38 34 12 8
Non-current assets 1,831 2,160 97 96 39 38
Current liabilities 482 549 33 29 0 0
Non-current liabilities 1,626 1,782 81 78 4 7
Operating Income 81 74 245 237 2 2
Post-tax result from continuing operations 27 19 7 4 7 6
Post-tax result from discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other comprehensive income -1 3 0 0 0 0
Total comprehensive income 26 22 7 4 7 6
Depreciation and amortization -3 -3 -12 -8 0 0
Interest income 111 109 0 0 0 0
Interest expense -49 -53 -2 -3 0 0
Tax expense/income -9 -7 -1 -1 0 0
Reconciliation of investee's net assets against
equity investment's carrying amount
Net assets attributable to Erste Group 87 84 11 13 16 16
Carrying goodwill included in the cost of
investment 0 0 6 6 0 0
Impairments (cumulative basis) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Carrying amount 87 84 18 20 16 16
Insignificant equity method investments
Associates Joint Ventures
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14 Dec 13 Dec 14
Investees' aggregated key financial information
Post-tax result from continuing operations 19 20 0 0
Post-tax result from discontinued operations 0 0 0 0
Other comprehensive income 3 3 0 0
Total comprehensive income 22 23 0 0
Loan commitments, financial guarantees and other commitments given 0 0 0 0
Carrying amount 87 75 0 0

24. Unconsolidated structured entities

Erste Group is involved as an investor in a number of unconsolidated public or private investment funds registered in Austria, Central and
Eastern Europe or other foreign jurisdictions. A majority of these funds are managed by unrelated third parties, whilst the rest are retail
funds managed by asset management subsidiaries of the Group and in which the Group is not a significant investor. The interests of the
Group in these funds mostly take the form of redeemable fund unit investments measured at fair value on the Group’s balance-sheet, and
are classified as either available for sale or held for trading equity instruments. The Group is also customarily involved in trading deriva-
tive deals with own-managed unconsolidated funds. Also, for shorter or longer periods, some of the own-managed unconsolidated funds
may make placements in debt securities issued by Erste Group entities or in bank deposits held with Erste Group banks. In limited in-
stances, Erste Group Bank AG provides capital performance guarantees to unconsolidated own-managed funds.
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Erste Group is also involved as an investor in a number of unconsolidated securitisation vehicles sponsored and managed by unrelated
third parties in foreign jurisdictions. The interests of the Group in these entities mostly take the form of bond investments, the majority of
which are classified as available for sale and therefore measured at fair value on the Group’s balance-sheet. Almost 95% of the exposure
on unconsolidated securitisations relates to bond investments maturing beyond 1 year. The bonds classified as Held to Maturity have legal
maturities (underlying pool-driven) ranging from 7 to 40 years with effect from 31 December 2014. The remaining weighted average life
until legal (underlying pool-driven) maturity of the Group’s bond investments in securitizations is around 12.5 years as at year-end. How-
ever, given the seniority ranking of the related debt tranches, the HtM investments in securitisations are expected to mature (be realized)
earlier.

To a lesser extent, Erste Group is also exposed (notably as lender) to unconsolidated structured entities having other business activities,
primarily real estate project-based.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to losses from its interests in unconsolidated structured entities is equal to the total
fair value of its fund units, bond investments, trading derivative assets, provided loans and off-balance-sheet commitments and guarantees.

The table below summarises the Group’s interests in unconsolidated structured entities as at 31 December 2014 per asset/liability class,
business activity and business location. The summary includes the assets identified as impaired at year-end, as well as related net impair-
ment losses/gains incurred during the year 2014. The carrying amounts of the exposures summarized below are mostly referring to assets
already measured at fair value in the balance-sheet of the Group. The carrying amounts of the remaining exposures (notably HtM invest-
ments) are materially similar to their fair values.

Dec 14 Investment Funds Securitization vehicles
Oown- Third-party Own-  Third-party

in EUR million managed managed Total managed managed Total Other Total

Assets:

Equity instruments, thereof: 359 694 1,053 0 0 0 0 1,053
Available for sale 308 426 734 0 0 0 0 734
Fair value through profit or loss 51 268 319 0 0 0 0 319

Debt securities, thereof: 1 0 1 0 1,221 1,221 0 1,221
Available for sale 1 0 1 0 1,071 1,071 0 1,072
Fair value through profit or loss 0 0 0 0 38 38 0 38

Held to maturity 0 0 0 0 112 112 0 112

Loans and receivables 0 0 0 0 0 0 101 101

Trading derivatives 39 0 39 0 0 0 4 43

Non-current equities held for sale 0 53 53 0 0 0 0 53

Total assets 399 747 1,146 0 1,221 1,221 105 2,472

thereof impaired 12 20 32 0 51 51 0 83

Net Impairment (losses)/gains for the year -1 -2 -2 0 3 3 0 0

On-balance sheet exposure analysis

per jurisdiction

Austria 341 490 830 0 0 0 0 830

Central and Eastern Europe 58 30 88 0 0 0 105 193

Other jurisdictions 0 228 228 0 1,221 1,221 0 1,449

399 747 1,146 0 1,221 1,221 105 2,472

Liabilities

Debt securities issued 186 0 186 0 0 0 0 186

Deposits 308 0 308 0 0 0 14 322

Trading derivatives 6 0 6 0 0 0 0 6

Total liabilities 499 0 499 0 0 0 14 513

Off balance-sheet commitments 87 0 87 0 0 0 6 93

The magnitude of the Group’s equity interests in unconsolidated investment funds may vary in the future depending on the future perfor-
mance of their respective underlying assets, relevant market circumstances and opportunities, or regulatory requirements. During the year
2015, regulatory-driven divestitures in the amount of EUR 52.8 million are contemplated in respect of the Group’s interests in private
equity funds registered in foreign jurisdictions (please refer to Note 29 Assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for
sale for further details). In the above summary, these interests are separately presented in the line “Non-current equities held for sale”.

Group’s bond interests in unconsolidated securitization vehicles, except some for those classified as held-to maturity, are expected to be
gradually disposed of throughout the next three years.
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25. Non controlling interest

Dec 14 HV Savings Banks, thereof:

in EUR million Total ASK STMK KTN
Country of Incorporation Austria Austria Austria Austria
Place of business Austria Austria Austria Austria
Main business activity Banking Banking Banking Banking
Ownership% held by NCI 50.1%-100% 60% 75% 75%
Reporting currency Euro Euro Euro Euro
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent 92 4 4 0
Net result attributable to non-controlling interests 179 17 42 12
Accumulated NCI 3,252 464 729 185
Subsidiary-level stand-alone key financial information

Current assets 18,060 4,624 1,285 440
Non-current assets 41,328 7,590 11,601 3,331
Current liabilities 28,735 8,090 2,111 776
Non-current liabilities 25,871 3,352 9,803 2,748
Operating income 1,482 271 314 94
Profit or loss from continuing operations 184 29 56 17
Total comprehensive income 88 22 72 20
Dec 13 HV Savings Banks, thereof:

in EUR million Total ASK STMK KTN
Country of Incorporation Austria Austria Austria Austria
Place of business Austria Austria Austria Austria
Main business activity Banking Banking Banking Banking
Ownership% held by NCI 50.1%-100% 70% 75% 75%
Reporting currency Euro Euro Euro Euro
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent 30 7 5 0
Net result attributable to non-controlling interests 109 26 38 0
Accumulated NCI 3,094 530 732 171
Subsidiary-level stand-alone key financial information

Current assets 16,109 4,130 4,022 188
Non-current assets 41,647 8,305 8,910 3,556
Current liabilities 27,639 6,710 6,252 779
Non-current liabilities 25,555 4,970 5,704 2,737
Operating income 1,414 269 301 85
Profit or loss from continuing operations 156 37 50 0
Total comprehensive income 289 1 4 -6
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26. Property, equipment and Investment properties

A) At cost
Property and equipment - Acquisition and production costs
Land and  Office and plant

buildings (used equipment / other IT assets Movable other Property and Investment
in EUR million by the Group) fixed assets (hardware) property equipment properties
Balance as of 01.01.2013 2,863 1,199 704 321 5,087 1,510
Additions in current year (+) 133 62 54 175 424 42
Disposals (-) -156 -250 -96 -98 -600 -37
Acquisition of subsidiaries (+) 15 1 0 25 41 82
Disposal of subsidiaries (-) 0 0 -1 - -1 -100
Reclassification (+/-) 0 0 0 - 0 0
Assets held for sale (-) 0 0 0 - 0 0
Currency translation (+/-) -72 -21 -17 -4 -114 -53
Balance as of 31.12.2013 2,783 990 645 419 4,837 1,444
Additions (+) 135 48 42 130 355 91
Disposals (-) -24 -57 -54 -96 -232 -39
Acquisition of subsidiaries (+) 12 3 0 34 48 26
Disposal of subsidiaries (-) -1 0 0 -3 -4 -27
Reclassification (+/-) -95 1 2 49 -42 -41
Assets held for sale (-) -92 0 0 -10 -102 -17
Currency translation (+/-) -13 -4 -4 9 -12 -5
Balance as of 31.12.2014 2,704 982 632 532 4,849 1,432

B) Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment - Accumulated depreciation
Land and  Office and plant

buildings (used equipment / other IT assets Movable other Property and Investment
in EUR million by the Group) fixed assets (hardware) property equipment properties
Balance as of 01.01.2013 -1,063 -894 -581 -110 -2,648 -487
Amortisation and depreciation (-) -84 -69 -52 -73 -278 -27
Disposals (+) 78 181 86 48 393 32
Acquisition of subsidiaries (-) -6 -1 0 -19 -26 -38
Disposal of subsidiaries (+) 0 0 0 0 0 36
Impairment (-) -4 -1 -1 -3 -9 -26
Reversal of impairment (+) 0 0 0 0 0 1
Reclassification (+/-) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Assets held for sale (+) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Currency translation (+/-) 25 14 10 2 51 15
Balance as of 31.12.2013 -1,053 -769 -538 -156 -2,516 -494
Amortisation and depreciation (-) -79 -53 -46 -70 -248 -30
Disposals (+) 35 59 52 57 203 16
Acquisition of subsidiaries (-) -4 -2 0 -12 -18 -6
Disposal of subsidiaries (+) 1 1 0 3 4 4
Impairment (-) -13 0 -1 -1 -16 -13
Reversal of impairment (+) 2 0 0 1 3 4
Reclassification (+/-) 39 -17 0 -29 -7 34
Assets held for sale (+) 2 0 0 0 2 1
Currency translation (+/-) 5 3 4 -4 8 2
Balance as of 31.12.2014 -1,065 -779 -530 =211 -2,585 -481

C) Carrying amounts

Property and equipment — carrying amounts
Land and  Office and plant

buildings (used equipment / other IT assets Movable other Property and Investment
in EUR million by the Group) fixed assets (hardware) property equipment properties
Balance as of 31.12.2013 1,729 221 107 263 2,319 951
Balance as of 31.12.2014 1,639 203 101 321 2,264 950

The carrying amount of investment properties includes investment properties under operating leases in the amount of EUR 198 million
(2013: EUR 184 million).

In the reporting period, borrowing costs of EUR 6.3 million (2013: EUR 3.6 million) were capitalised. The related interest rates ranged
from 0.5 % to 1.5 % (2013: 2.8%).
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The carrying amount of expenditure recognised in the items fixed assets and investment properties during their construction is
EUR 42.9 million (2013: EUR 11.2 million). The contractual commitments for purchase of fixed assets and investment properties are
EUR 123.9 million (2013: EUR 301.3 million).

27.Intangible assets

A) At cost
Intangible assets - Acquisition and production costs
Self-constructed Others
Customer Software software within (licenses,
in EUR million Goodwill relationships Brand acquired the Group patents, etc.) Total
Balance as of 01.01.2013 3,950 772 291 1,317 273 518 7,120
Additions in current year (+) 0 3 0 128 64 13 208
Disposals (-) 0 0 0 -172 0 -97 -269
Acquisition of subsidiaries (+) 0 0 0 2 0 0 2
Disposal of subsidiaries (-) -21 0 0 0 0 0 -22
Reclassification (+/-) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Assets held for sale (-) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Currency translation (+/-) -4 -3 -2 -37 -5 -24 -75
Balance as of 31.12.2013 3,924 771 289 1,237 333 411 6,965
Additions (+) 0 0 0 133 50 6 189
Disposals (-) 0 0 0 -43 -20 -5 -69
Acquisition of subsidiaries (+) 0 0 0 2 0 0 2
Disposal of subsidiaries (-) 0 0 3 4 0 2 9
Reclassification (+/-) 0 0 0 -53 53 -3 -3
Assets held for sale (-) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Exchange-rate changes (+/-) 8 3 -1 -11 3 -3 -1
Balance as of 31.12.2014 3,932 774 291 1,268 419 408 7,092
B) Accumulated depreciation
Intangible assets - Accumulated depreciation
Self-constructed Others
Customer Software software within (licenses,
in EUR million Goodwill relationships Brand acquired the Group patents, etc.) Total
Balance as of 01.01.2013 -2,324 -412 0 -916 -229 -345 -4,226
Amortisation and depreciation (-) 0 -65 0 -115 -1 -21 -212
Disposals (+) 0 0 0 173 0 78 251
Acquisition of subsidiaries (-) 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1
Disposal of subsidiaries (+) 21 0 0 0 0 0 21
Impairment (-) -383 -3 0 -10 -2 0 -398
Reversal of impairment (+) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassification (+/-) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Assets held for sale (+) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Currency translation (+/-) 0 0 0 20 -6 25 39
Balance as of 31.12.2013 -2,685 -480 (1] -847 -248 -263 -4,525
Amortisation and depreciation (-) 0 -37 0 -103 -28 -18 -187
Disposals (+) 0 0 0 21 20 4 45
Acquisition of subsidiaries (-) 0 0 0 -1 0 0 -1
Disposal of subsidiaries (+) 0 0 -3 -3 0 -2 -8
Impairment (-) -475 -193 -291 -4 -6 -19 -988
Reversal of impairment (+) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassification (+/-) 0 0 0 28 -44 19 2
Assets held for sale (+) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Currency translation (+/-) 0 -2 3 7 0 3 10
Balance as of 31.12.2014 -3,161 -712 -291 -904 -306 -276 -5,650
C) Carrying amounts
Intangible assets - carrying amounts
Self-constructed Others
Customer Software  software within (licenses,
in EUR million Goodwill relationships Brand acquired the Group patents, etc.) Total
Balance as of 31.12.2013 1,239 291 289 390 85 147 2,441
Balance as of 31.12.2014 771 62 0 364 113 132 1,442
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As of 31 December 2014, the customer relationship and distribution network of Erste Card Club d.d. Croatia in particular amounted to
EUR 1.2 million (2013: EUR 6.1 million), and the customer relationships of Ringturm Kapitalanlagegesellschaft m.b.H to EUR 57 million
(2013: EUR 61.1 million). The remaining amortisation period of customer relationships in Ringturm Kapitalanlagegesellschaft m.b.H is
13.8 years.

The customer relationship of Banca Comerciala Romana was fully impaired in 2014 and consequently amounted to EUR 0 million as of
31 December 2014 (2013: EUR 199.0 million).

The item ‘Brand’ of Banca Comercialda Romand was fully impaired in 2014 and consequently amounted to EUR 0 million as of
31 December 2014 (2013: EUR 288.8 million).

Development of goodwill
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, as well as gross amounts and accumulated impairment losses of goodwill, for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are shown below by country of subsidiary:

Czech Other
in EUR million Romania Republic Slovakia Hungary Croatia Austria countries Total
Balance as of 1 Jan 2013 600 544 226 0 114 142 0 1,626
Acquisitions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairment losses -283 0 0 0 -52 -48 0 -383
Exchange rate changes -4 0 0 0 0 0 0 -4
Balance as of 31 Dec 2013 313 544 226 0 61 94 0 1,239
Gross amount of goodwill 2,245 544 226 313 114 363 120 3,924
Cumulative impairment -1,932 0 0 -313 -52 -269 -120 -2,685
Balance as of 1 Jan 2014 313 544 226 0 61 94 0 1,239
Acquisitions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairment losses -319 0 0 0 -61 -94 0 -475
Exchange rate changes 6 1 0 0 1 0 0 8
Balance as of 31 Dec 2014 0 545 226 0 0 0 0 771
Gross amount of goodwill 2,251 545 226 313 114 363 120 3,932
Cumulative impairment ) -2,251 0 0 -313 -114 -363 -120 -3,161

In the goodwill development summary presented above, all relevant entities (cash generating units) are grouped by country of domicile of
the relevant subsidiaries.

The gross amounts of the goodwill elements presented above are the amounts as determined at the time of the related acquisitions, less
accumulated amortisations up to 31 December 2004, including the effects of exchange rate changes.

The goodwill elements having non-nil carrying amounts as at 31 December 2013 have been assessed for impairment on a quarterly basis
throughout the year 2014. Thus, the goodwill impairment assessment for the year 2014 addressed the following subsidiaries (cash generat-
ing units):

_ Banca Comerciala Romana SA (‘BCR’)

_ Ceska spofitelna a.s. (‘CSAS’)

_ Erste & Steiermarkische Bank d.d., Erste Bank Croatia (‘EBC”)

_ Slovenska sporitel'na a.s. (‘SLSP’)

_ Steiermérkische Bank und Sparkassen Aktiengesellschaft (‘STMK”)
_ Erste Group Bank AG — Girocredit (‘GIRO”)

The analysis per subsidiary (cash generating unit) of both the carrying goodwill as at 31 December 2014 (1 January 2014) and of the
impairment losses recognised for the year 2014 (2013) is presented in the table below. The table also summarizes the key elements of the

approach taken in designing and performing the goodwill impairment test as at the end of 2014.

In respect of the assessed subsidiaries (cash generating units) BCR, EBC and STMK, the impairment losses presented below had already
been recognised as at 30 June 2014 based on the assessments performed at mid-year using the input parameters applicable at that time.
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BCR CSAS EBC SLSP STMK GIRO
Carrying amount of goodwill
as of 1 January 2014 313 544 61 226 40 54
Effect of exchange rate changes
for the year 2014 6 1 1 0 0 0

Basis upon which recoverable amount has
been determined

Value in Use (discounted cash flow model based)

Key input parameters into the discounted
cash flow model

Description of approach to determining value
assigned to risk free rate

Risk Free Rate, Terminal Growth Rate, § Factor, Market Risk Premium
Risk Free Rate has been set at 1.93% p.a. throughout relevant Group's CGUs based on relevant financial statistics
published by Deutsche Bundesbank as at the reference date 14 November 2014

Description of approach to determining
values assigned to terminal growth rate

For Austrian CGUs: Terminal Growth Rate has been equated to 1.00% reflecting the expected Austrian annual average long-
term inflation rate

For non-Austrian (CEE) CGUs: Terminal Growth Rate has been equated to 3.00%, representing the recommended cap level
for the Terminal Growh Rate, as per the report ESMA/2013/2 "European Enforcers Review of Impairment of Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets in the IFRS Financial Statements" published by the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA).

Description of approach to determining
values assigned to 3 factor

Set as the median value of a group of levered § factors attributable to a sample of ‘peer banks’ representative of the tested
banks (CGUs), as published by Bloomberg as of the reference date 14 November 2014.

Description of approach to determining
values assigned to market risk premium

Period of cash flow projection (years)

Set at 6.25% throughout relevant Group's CGUs based on publicly available evaluations by the Austrian Chamber of
Commerce (Kammer der Wirtschaftstreuhander).
5 years (2015 -2019); extrapolation to perpetuity based on Terminal Growth Rate

Discount rate applied to cash flow projections

(pre-tax) 14.04% 12.17% 14.49% 12.91% 12.28% 15.30%
The value assigned to B Factor 1.121 1.121 1.121 1.121 1.379 1.033
Amount of goodwill impairment loss

recognised in profit or loss for the year 2014 -319 0 -61 0 -40 -54
Post-impairment carrying amount of goodwill

as of 31 December 2014 0 544 0 226 0 0

In respect of the assessed cash generating units located outside the eurozone, an inflation differential rate of 1% per annum has been

considered in the determination of the discount rates applicable to the related 2014-2018 cash flow projections.

The comparative subsidiary-level summary as at 31 December 2013 is presented below:

BCR CSAS EBC SLSP STMK GIRO
Carrying amount of goodwill
as of 1 January 2013 600 544 114 226 57 85
Effect of exchange rate changes
for the year 2013 -4 0 0 0 0 0

Basis upon which recoverable amount has
been determined

Key input parameters into the discounted
cash flow model

Value in Use (discounted cash flow model based)

Risk Free Rate, Terminal Growth Rate, § Factor, Market Risk Premium

Description of approach to determining value
assigned to risk free rate

Risk Free Rate has been set at 2.73% p.a. throughout relevant Group's CGUs based on relevant financial statistics
published by Deutsche Bundesbank as at the reference date 29 November 2013

Description of approach to determining
values assigned to terminal growth rate

Description of approach to determining
values assigned to §3 factor

Description of approach to determining
values assigned to market risk premium

For Austrian CGUs: Terminal Growth Rate has been equated to 1.00% reflecting expected the Austrian annual average
long-term inflation rate

For non-Austrian (CEE) CGUs: Terminal Growth Rate has been equated to 3.00%, representing the recommended cap level
for the Terminal Growh Rate, as per the report ESMA/2013/2 "European Enforcers Review of Impairment of Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets in the IFRS Financial Statements" published by the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA).
Set as the median value of a set of levered (3 factors attributable to a representative sample of "peer banks" representative
for each tested bank (CGU), as published by Bloomberg as at the reference date 29 November 2013. Thus, the B values
used have been set at 1,223 for Austrian tested entities and 1,218 for non-Austrian (CEE) tested entities.

Set at 6.0% throughout relevant Group's CGUs based on publicly available evaluations by Austrian Chamber of Commerce
(Kammer der Wirtschaftstreuhander).

Period of cash flow projection (years)

5 years (2014 -2018); extrapolation to perpetuity based on Terminal Growth Rate

Discount rate applied to cash flow projections

(pre-tax) 15.76% 13.96% 16.98% 14.67% 11.70% 15.30%
Amount of goodwill impairment loss

recognised in profit or loss for the year 2013 -283 0 -52 0 -17 -31
Post-impairment carrying amount of goodwill

as of 31 December 2013 313 544 61 226 40 54
Recoverable amount (value in use)

as of 31 December 2013 (100%) 2,516 5,680 1,037 2,099 1,227 54

In connection with those tested cash-generating units for which no goodwill impairment loss was determined as existing as of

31 December 2014, the table below summarises the outcome of the sensitivity analysis performed to determine by how much the key

input parameters into the applied discounted cash flow models would need to vary adversely in order to cause the unit’s calculated recov-

erable amount to decrease down to its related carrying amount:
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Growth rates CSAS SLSP

Amount by which recoverable amount exceeds carrying amount 1,834 341
Risk free rate increase that would cause recoverable amount to equal carrying amount (basis points) 327 169
Terminal growth rate decrease that would cause recoverable amount to equal carrying amount (basis points) -1,445 -624
B factor increase that would cause recoverable amount to equal carrying amount (coefficient value) 0.524 0.271
Market risk premium increase that would cause recoverable amount to equal carrying amount (basis points) 292 151

As at 31 December 2013, the comparative sensitivity analysis figures were as follows:

Growth rates CSAS SLSP
Amount by which recoverable amount exceeds carrying amount 1,296 614
Risk free rate increase that would cause recoverable amount to equal carrying amount (basis points) 282 374
Terminal growth rate decrease that would cause recoverable amount to equal carrying amount (basis points) -1,122 -1,360
B factor increase that would cause recoverable amount to equal carrying amount (coefficient value) 0.471 0.623
Market risk premium increase that would cause recoverable amount to equal carrying amount (basis points) ) 232 307

28. Tax assets and liabilities

Net variance 2014

Through
other
Tax Tax Through compre-
Tax assets  Tax assets liabilities liabilities profit or hensive
in EUR million 2014 2013 2014 2013 Total loss income
Temporary differences relate to the following items:
Loans and advances to credit institutions and customers 227 212 -24 -107 98 98 0
Financial assets - available for sale 2 62 -334 -169 -225 -44 -181
Property and equipment 25 17 -31 -24 0 0 0
(Amortisation of) investments in subsidiaries (tax-effective in
subsequent years) 46 217 0 0 -171 -171 0
Financial liabilities at amortized cost (deposits and bond
issues) 97 47 0 -2 52 52 0
Long-term employee provisions 117 88 -3 -9 34 -20 55
Sundry provisions 53 60 -7 -8 -6 -6 0
Carry forward of tax losses 104 202 0 0 -98 -98 0
Customer relationships, brands and other intangibles 3 11 -14 -103 81 81 0
Other 206 379 -261 -323 -111 -87 -17
Effect of netting gross deferred tax position -577 -576 577 576 0 0 0
Total deferred taxes 301 719 -99 -169 -347 -197 -143
Current taxes 107 100 -91 -85 0 =312 0
Total taxes 409 819 -190 -254 -347 -509 -143

Out of the total net amount of EUR 347 million representing the year-on-year adverse variance in Group's consolidated net deferred tax
position, an amount of EUR 197 million is reflected as net deferred tax expense in Group's income statement for the year 2014, whilst an
amount of EUR 143 million reflects as unfavorable impact in Group's other comprehensive income for the year. The remaining EUR 7
million are attributable to other categories of variances in the consolidated net deferred tax position, notably due to direct movements
through equity, foreign exchange differences, and changes in the consolidation scope.

The most significant non-recurring elements having contributed to the EUR 347 million net deferred tax position decrease for the year are
(a) a EUR 393 million unfavorable impact from one-off mid-year and year-end impairments of deferred tax assets of Erste's Austrian Tax
Group (mostly in connection with deferred tax assets previously recognized relating to the Austrian taxation rule that impairments of
investments in subsidiaries must be distributed evenly over seven years for tax deduction purposes) and (b) an EUR 80 million favorable
impact from the one-off release of group-level deferred tax liabilities, due to the mid-year full impairment of the related intangible assets
(BCR brand and customer relationships). Those factors were at the same time the main contributors to the significant increase in total tax
expense (2014: EUR 509 million, 2013: EUR 178,5 million). Further information on total tax expense is provided in Note 10.

Group's consolidated deferred tax asset position in amount of EUR 301 million as at 31 December 2014 is expected to be recoverable in
the foreseeable future. This expectation has resulted from year-end recoverability assessments undertaken by Group's entities, either at
individual level, or at relevant taxation sub-group level. Such assessments involved comparing net temporary deductible differences and
available fiscal losses at year-end versus fiscal profit forecasts for a group-wide unified time horizon of 5 years (end of 2013: 5 to 10
years depending on the fiscal jurisdiction and applicable facts and circumstances). Group's decision of applying a five year capping to the
fiscal forecasts used in the recoverabilty assessments performed starting with 2014 was taken in order to align them to the standard hori-
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zon used for long-term budgeting throughout the Group ,as well as to consider an expected increase in future volatility and uncertainty in
legal/economic frameworks, although in most jurisdictions (notably Austria), accumulated tax losses continue to be available for carrying-
forward and future deductibility indefinitely.

The deferred tax positions presented above at the granularity level of their respective underlying sources (these are: temporary differences
between the accounting and the tax values of assets and liabilities, and accumulated tax losses) are measured prior to subsidiary-level
balance-sheet netting of attributable gross deferred tax assets and gross deferred tax liabilities. This netting effect is separately disclosed
in the last line of the summary presented above. Also, except for the deferred tax assets attributable to carried forward tax losses and to
amortization of investments in subsidiaries (tax-effective in subsequent years), to which the non-valuation impacts of the afore-described
recoverability assessments could be distinctly allocated, the amounts presented above are before those non-valuation impacts on the re-
spective potential deferred tax asset positions, which are calculated at subsidiary-level. Consistently with prior periods' presentation, the
remaining non-valued components, which could not be distinctly allocated, are included in "Other" and therefore reduce the deferred tax
asset amounts which are attributed to that position in the above summary.

In compliance with IAS 12.39, no deferred tax liabilities were recognised for temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
in the amount of EUR 1,016 million (31 December 2013: EUR 1,179 million - prior year amount adjusted due to the availability of more
detailed data), as they are not expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2014, no deferred tax assets were recog-
nized for tax losses carried forward and deductible temporary differences in total amount of EUR 6,336 million, of which EUR 3,107
million related to tax losses carried forward (31 December 2013: EUR 4,377 million - prior year amount adjusted due to the availability
of more detailed data, of which EUR 2,414 million related to tax losses carried forward), as they are not expected to be realized in the
foreseeable future. The figure includes an amount of EUR 412 million (31 December 2013: EUR 1,065 million - prior year amount ad-
justed due to the availability of more detailed data) representing temporary differences in connection with investments in subsidiaries for
which no deferred tax assets have been recognised in accordance with IAS 12.44.

29. Assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale

in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Assets held for sale 75 291
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 0 0

As of the end of 2014, ‘Assets held for sale’ include mainly land and buildings (EUR 169 million). Also, movable properties in the
amount of EUR 69 million are held for sale as of the end of 2014. Furthermore, the private equity portfolio of investments in the amount
of EUR 53 million is presented in this line item due to forthcoming regulatory driven divestiture. As of the end of 2014 there were no
liabilities associated with assets held for sale.

30. Other assets

in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Prepayments and accrued income 296 218
Inventories 462 471
Sundry assets 1,713 934
Other assets 2,471 1,623

‘Sundry assets’ consist mainly of clearing items from the settlement of securities and payment transactions as well as advanced payments
for assets under construction.

31. Other trading liabilities

in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Short positions 335 422

Equity instruments 201 139

Debt securities 134 283
Debt securities issued 52 47
Sundry trading liabilities 0 88
Other trading liabilities 388 558
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32. Financial liabilities — at fair value through profit and loss

Delta between carrying amount

Carrying amount Amount repayable and amount repayable

in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14 Dec 13 Dec 14 Dec 13 Dec 14

Financial liabilities -

at fair value through profit or loss 2,339 2,073 2,412 2,503 -73 -431
Deposits from banks 0 0 0 0 0 0
Deposits from customers 460 320 466 748 -6 -428
Debt securities issued 1,879 1,753 1,946 1,755 -67 -3
Other financial liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fair value changes that are attributable to changes in own credit risk

For reporting period Cumulative amount
in EUR million 1-1213 1-12 14 Dec 13 Dec 14
Financial liabilities - at fair value through profit or loss -53.8 =e4il -54.3 O3Y2
Deposits from banks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Deposits from customers -3.3 -0.5 1.7 1.2
Debt securities issued -50.5 -2.7 -56.0 -54.4
Other financial liabilities 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Debt securities issued
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Subordinated liabilities 275 276
Subordinated issues and deposits 275 276
Supplementary capital 0 0
Hybrid issues 0 0
Other debt securities issued 1,604 1,477
Bonds 1,206 1,086
Certificates of deposit 0 0
Other certificates of deposits/name certificates 71 77
Mortgage covered bonds 327 315
Public sector covered bonds 0 0
Other 0 0
Debt securities issued 1,879 1,753
33. Financial liabilities measured at amortised costs
Deposits from banks
Dec 13
in EUR million restated Dec 14
Overnight deposits 4,264 1,913
Term deposits 10,311 11,975
Repurchase agreements 2,724 914
Deposits from banks 17,299 14,803
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Deposits from customers

Dec 13
in EUR million restated Dec 14
Overnight deposits 65,090 65,103
Savings deposits 21,192 17,314
General governments 0 0
Other financial corporations 194 165
Non-financial corporations 1,420 1,556
Households 19,578 15,592
Non-savings deposits 43,897 47,790
General governments 3,158 3,301
Other financial corporations 2,464 3,396
Non-financial corporations 14,427 14,576
Households 23,849 26,517
Term deposits 55,990 56,609
Deposits with agreed maturity 51,856 52,013
Savings deposits 33,283 35,725
General governments 0 0
Other financial corporations 861 1,221
Non-financial corporations 1,266 1,258
Households 31,155 33,246
Non-savings deposits 18,574 16,289
General governments 1,860 1,260
Other financial corporations 1,247 2,965
Non-financial corporations 5,725 3,930
Households 9,741 8,133
Deposits redeemable at notice 4,134 4,595
General governments 56 0
Other financial corporations 105 43
Non-financial corporations 493 108
Households 3,480 4,444
Repurchase agreements 876 550
General governments 706 290
Other financial corporations 0 213
Non-financial corporations 169 48
Households 0 0
Deposits from customers 121,955 122,263
General governments 5,780 4,851
Other financial corporations 4,871 8,003
Non-financial corporations 23,501 21,476
Households 87,803 87,933
Debt securities issued
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Subordinated liabilities 4,884 5,482
Subordinated issues and deposits 3,304 4,182
Supplementary capital 1,218 942
Hybrid issues 363 357
Other debt securities issued 26,361 23,905
Bonds 14,283 13,017
Certificates of deposit 811 281
Other certificates of deposits/name certificates 1,829 591
Mortgage covered bonds 7,055 6,911
Public sector covered bonds 2,116 2,838
Other 267 266
Debt securities issued 31,245 29,387

In 1998, Erste Group Bank AG launched a EUR 30,000,000,000 Debt Issuance Programme (DIP). The current DIP is a programme for
issuing debt instruments in various currencies and maturities with a limited range of interest rate structures. In 2014, 125 new bonds with
a total volume of approximately EUR 1.5 billion were issued under the DIP.

In July 2013 the Credit Linked Notes Programme was implemented. In 2014, 68 new bonds with a total volume of EUR 148.3 million

were issued. At the same time the Equity Linked Notes Programme was implemented, under which 107 new bonds with a total volume of
EUR 378.4 million were issued.
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Furthermore, secured and senior unsecured registered notes (“Namenspfandbriefe” and “Namensschuldverschreibungen™), as well as
other bonds that were not part of the above mentioned programmes were issued with a volume of EUR 185.1 million.

The Euro Commercial Paper and Certificates of Deposit Programme has an overall volume of EUR 10 billion. In all, 15 issues amounting
to EUR 0.6 billion were placed in 2014. Issues totalling approximately EUR 0.6 billion were redeemed over the same period.

34. Provisions

in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Long-term employee provisions 1,032 1,158
Pending legal issues and tax litigation 172 163
Commitments and guarantees given 218 241
Provisions for guarantees - off balance sheet (defaulted customers) 119 141
Provisions for guarantees - off balance sheet (non-defaulted customers) 99 99
Other provisions 25 91
Provisions for onerous contracts 0 5
Other 25 86
Provisions 1,448 1,653
a) Long-term employee provisions
Severance Jubilee
in EUR million Pensions payments payments Total
Present value of long-term employee benefit obligations, 31 Dec 2010 833 405 73 1,311
Present value of long-term employee benefit obligations, 31 Dec 2011 825 397 73 1,295
Present value of long-term employee benefit obligations, 31 Dec 2012 823 410 76 1,309
Increase from acquisition of subsidiaries 0 0 0 0
Decrease from disposal of subsidiaries 0 0 0 0
Settlements 0 0 0 0
Curtailments 0 -6 0 -6
Service cost -1 13 5 17
Interest cost 29 15 3 47
Payments -71 -38 -6 -115
Exchange rate difference 0 1 0 1
Components recognised in other comprehensive income (Remeasurements)
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 0 0 0 0
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes from experience assumptions 7 0 0 7
Actuarial gains/losses recognised in income 0 0 -2 -2
Present value of long-term employee benefit obligations, 31 Dec 2013 787 395 76 1,258
Obligations covered by plan assets 0 194 32 226
Obligations covered by provisions 0 201 44 245
Less fair value of plan assets 0 194 32 226
Provisions as of 31 Dec 2013 787 201 44 1,032
Present value of long-term employee benefit obligations, 31 Dec 2013 787 395 76 1,258
Increase from acquisition of subsidiaries 0 0 0 0
Decrease from disposal of subsidiaries 0 0 0 0
Settlements 0 0 0 0
Curtailments 0 -6 0 -6
Service cost 0 12 5 17
Interest cost 27 14 2 43
Payments -69 -26 -6 -101
Exchange rate difference 0 0 0 0
Components recognised in other comprehensive income (Remeasurements) 0 0 0 0
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 114 75 0 189
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes from experience assumptions -1 2 0 1
Actuarial gains/losses recognised in income 0 0 0 0
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 0 0 1 11
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes from experience assumptions 0 0 -1 -1
Present value of long-term employee benefit obligations, 31 Dec 2014 858 466 87 1,411
Obligations covered by plan assets 0 219 34 253
Obligations covered by provisions 0 247 53 300
Less fair value of plan assets 0 219 34 253
Provisions as of 31 Dec 2014 858 247 53 1,158
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Actuarial assumptions
The actuarial calculation of pension obligations is based on the following assumptions:

in % Dec 13 Dec 14
Interest rate 3.65 2.0
Expected increase in retirement benefits ) 20 2.0

The expected retirement age for each employee was individually calculated on the basis of the changes set out in the Budget Implementa-
tion Act of 2003 (Austrian Federal Law Gazette Vol. I No. 71/2003) regarding the increase in the minimum retirement age. The currently
applicable legislation on the gradual raising of the retirement age for men and women to 65 was taken into consideration.

The actuarial calculation of severance payment and jubilee provisions is based on the following assumptions:

in % Dec 13 Dec 14
Interest rate 3.65 2.0
Average increase in salary (incl. career trend and collective agreement trend) 2.9 2.9

Obligations were calculated in accordance with the Pagler & Pagler mortality tables entitled ‘AVO 2008 P — Rechnungsgrundlagen fiir die
Pensionsversicherung’. The effects of CEE countries are insignificant compared to Austrian entities for which the data is in the table.
Interest rates in the following ranges were used for these countries 2.25% (previously: 2.72%) to 4.4% (previously: 5.75%).

The movement in plan assets during the reporting period was as follows:

Severance Jubilee

in EUR million payments payments Total
Fair value of plan assets as of 31 Dec 2012 184 29 213
Addition 13 3 16
Interest income on plan assets 7 1 8
Contributions by the employer 9 3 12
Benefits paid -19 -4 -23
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income

(excluding amounts already recognised in interest income) - remeasurements 0 0 0
Return on plan assets recognised in P&L 0 0 0
Fair value of plan assets as of 31 Dec 2013 194 32 226
Addition 0 0 0
Interest income on plan assets 7 1 8
Contributions by the employer 29 5 34
Benefits paid -15 -4 -19
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income

(excluding amounts already recognised in interest income) - remeasurements 4 0 4
Return on plan assets recognised in P&L 0 0 0
Fair value of plan assets as of 31 Dec 2014 219 34 253

In 2015, the expected contributions for the severance and jubilee benefit obligations will amount to EUR 10.3 million (2014:
EUR 10.9 million).

In 2014, the actual gain (loss) on plan assets amounted to EUR 12.0 million (2013: EUR 7.8 million).

Investment strategy

The primary investment strategy of Erste Group is the continuous optimization of plan assets and the effective coverage of existing enti-
tlements. The Group works with professional fund managers for the investment of plan assets. The Investment Fund Act applies as a
requirement with respect to specific investment guidelines relating to the investment of plan assets.

Additionally, the Investment Committee which is composed of senior staff in the financial sector and representatives of the S-
Versicherung and Erste Asset Management meets once a year.

Control and Risk

The effective allocation of plan assets is determined by the administering body including the relevant existing economic and market con-
ditions as well as considering specific risks of the individual asset classes and the risk profile.
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Moreover the Investment Committee is responsible for monitoring the mandate guidelines and the investment structure, the supervision,
which may arise from regulatory or other legal requirements, as well as the monitoring of demographic changes. As an additional steering
tool the fund management generates a report, which is transmitted on a quarterly basis to the Group.

Overall, the Group tries to minimize the impact caused by market movements on the pension plans

Asset Allocation in the different asset classes
The following table presents the asset allocation of pension plans in the different asset classes.

Dec 13 Dec 14
Europe- Europe- Other Europe- Europe- Other

in EUR million EMU non EMU USA countries Total EMU non EMU USA countries Total
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 13
Equity instruments 1 1 9 4 15 1 1 9 4 15
Investment-grade bonds'

Government 45 1 1 4 51 50 1 1 5 57

Non-government bonds 36 13 0 0 49 40 14 0 0 55
Non-investment-grade bonds

Government 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Non-government bonds 58 15 4 0 78 65 17 5 0 87
Alternatives

Commodities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other 0 1 0 9 10 0 1 0 10 12
Derivatives (Market risk)

Interest rate risk 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Credit risk 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Equity price risk 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Foreign exchange risk 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 14
Plan assets 31.12.2014 0 0 0 0 226 0 0 0 0 253
1) Investment-grade means BBB and above.
The following table presents profit or loss effects for post- employment defined- benefits plans (pensions and severance payments).
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Curtailments 6 6
Service cost -12 -17
Net interest -36 -35
Total -42 -46

Curtailments and service costs are included in the income statement under the line item ‘General administrative expenses’. Net interest is
included in the income statement under the line item ‘Net interest income’. In 2014 the cumulative amount of remeasurements recognised
in other comprehensive income was EUR -572.9 million (2013: EUR -388.6 million).

Sensitivity to Key Assumption

The following table presents, the sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption showing how the defined benefit obligation
would have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions that were reasonably possible at the balance sheet date.

Severance
in EUR million Pensions payments Total
Change in discount rate + 1.0 % 779 395 1,174
Change in discount rate -1.0 % 936 500 1,436
Change in future salary increases + 0.5 % 851 470 1,321
Change in future salary increases -0.5 % 851 418 1,269
Change in future benefit increases + 0.5 % 920 443 1,363
Change in future benefit increases -0.5 % 787 443 1,230
Increase in survival rate by aprox. 10% 906 0 906
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Impact on Cash Flows
The following table reflects the benefits expected to be paid by the defined benefit plans in each of the respective periods:

Severance
in EUR million Pensions payments Total
2015 66 12 78
2016 64 11 75
2017 61 17 78
2018 58 22 80
2019 55 32 87
2020-2024 23 213 236

Duration
The following table presents the weighted average duration of the defined-benefit obligations as of year-end 2014:

Severance
in years Pensions payments Total
Duration 8.89 11.46 9.77

b) Sundry provisions

Sundry provisions 2014

Interest income Exchange rate

As of from impaired and other As of
in EUR million Dec 13 Allocations Use Releases loans changes (+/-) Dec 14
Pending legal issues and tax litigation 172 32 -4 -28 0 -6 164
Commitments and guarantees given 218 279 -7 -263 1 11 240
Provisions for guarantees -
off balance sheet (defaulted customers) 119 140 -6 -122 1 9 141
Provisions for guarantees -
off balance sheet
(non-defaulted customers) 99 138 0 -140 0 2 99
Other provisions 25 62 -5 -8 0 9 83
Provisions for onerous contracts 0 5 0 0 0 0 )
Other 25 57 -5 -8 0 9 77
Provisions 415 372 -16 -299 1 14 488

Under position pending legal issues and tax litigations out of lending business, asset management or litigations with customer protection
association, which normally occur in banking business, are disclosed. Erste Group does not expect that these legal cases will have a mate-
rial impact on the Group’s financial position.

Except for onerous contracts, other provisions refer mostly to Hungarian provisions. For additional detail, please see note 9 Other operat-
ing result. The level of sundry provisions is the best possible estimate of expected outflow of economic benefits at the reporting date,
while taking into account the risks and uncertainties underlying the commitment to fulfill the obligation. Risks and uncertainties are taken
into account in the estimate.

Sundry provisions 2013

Interest income Exchange rate

As of from impaired and other As of
in EUR million Dec 12 Allocations Use Releases loans changes (+/-) Dec 13
Pending legal issues and tax litigation' 146 57 -7 -29 0 4 172
Commitments and guarantees given 186 217 -13 -180 1 8 218
Provisions for guarantees -
off balance sheet (defaulted customers) 107 112 -14 -96 1 9 119
Provisions for guarantees -
off balance sheet
(non-defaulted customers) 79 105 0 -84 0 -1 99
Other provisions 60 21 -21 -7 0 -28 25
Provisions for onerous contracts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other 60 21 -21 -7 0 -29 25
Provisions 392 296 -41 -216 1 -17 415

1) For a more detailed presentation, provisions for legal proceedings and provisions for litigations were reclassified from other risk provisions and other provisions and constitute a separate item now.
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35. Other liabilities

in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Deferred income and accrued fee expenses 304 233
Sundry liabilities 2,350 2,076
Other liabilities 2,654 2,310

Sundry liabilities consist mainly of clearing items from the settlement of securities and payment transactions.

36. Total equity

Dec 13

in EUR million restated Dec 14
Subscribed capital 860 860

Share capital 860 860

Participation capital 0 0
Additional paid-in capital 7,037 1,478
Retained earnings 3,422 7,500
Owners of the parent 11,319 9,838
Non-controlling interests 3,466 3,605
Total' 14,785 13,444

1) Details on equity are provided in Section lll, Statement of Changes in Total Equity.

As of 31 December 2014, subscribed capital (also known as registered capital) consists of 429,800,000 (2013: 429,800,000) voting bearer
shares (ordinary shares). The pro rata amount of registered capital, per no-par value share, was EUR 2.00. Additional paid-in capital (or
share premium) represents the amount by which the issue price of the shares exceeded their par value. Retained earnings and other re-
serves represent accumulated net profit brought forward, as well as income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income.

Participation capital

In April 2009, Erste Group Bank AG issued participation capital for subscription. Within the context of this offer, Erste Group Bank AG
placed EUR 540 million of participation capital with private and institutional investors. In March 2009, the Republic of Austria subscribed to
EUR 1.0 billion of participation capital and in May 2009, another EUR 224 million of participation certificates. In total, the participation
capital issued in measures to strengthen the bank at that time amounted to EUR 1.76 billion. The participation capital securities are perpetual
and non-transferable. The notional amount of each participation capital security is EUR 1,000.00. Erste Group is entitled to repay the partici-
pation capital securities only if the repayment amount would not be below 100% (or 150% after 1 January 2019) of the nominal amount.
Participation capital participates in losses of Erste Group in the same manner as does share capital, but the holders of participation capital
have no voting rights. The participation capital securities confer no conversion right for ordinary shares of Erste Group. Dividend pay-
ments to holders of participation capital securities were made prior to distributions of dividends to shareholders of Erste Group.

Redemption of participation capital and implementation of a capital increase

The management and supervisory boards of Erste Group Bank AG resolved on 24 June 2013 to fully redeem the outstanding participation
capital of EUR 1.76 billion, of which EUR 1.205 billion was held by the Republic of Austria and EUR 559 million by private investors, in
the third quarter of 2013 The full redemption took place on 8 August 2013.

Against this backdrop, a capital increase against cash contributions was implemented with gross proceeds of approximately EUR 660.6
million. The capital increase was carried out by offering qualified institutional investors new shares by way of an accelerated bookbuild-
ing offer (‘pre-placement to institutional investors’) followed by a subscription offering to existing shareholders of Erste Group Bank AG
(“subscription offering’).

On 2 July 2013, Erste Group Bank AG successfully placed 35.2 million new shares by way of an accelerated bookbuilding offering with
gross proceeds of EUR 660.6 million. On 2 July 2013, the management board, with the consent of the supervisory board, set the offer
price for the accelerated bookbuilding offering and the subscription price for the subsequent subscription offering at EUR 18.75 per share
and resolved to issue 35,231,353 new shares, to increase the share capital from EUR 789,137,294 by EUR 70,462,706 to
EUR 859,600,000 and to offer existing shareholders subscription rights at a ratio of 4 new shares for each 45 shares held. The supervisory
board also approved the amendments to the Articles of association resulting from the above resolutions. The capital increase and the
amendments to the articles of association were entered in the Companies Register on 4 July 2013.
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Changes in number of shares and participation capital securities

Dec 13
Shares in units restated Dec 14
Shares outstanding as of 1 January 375,715,367 415,076,934
Acquisition of treasury shares -13,131,830 -26,726,833
Disposal of treasury shares 17,262,044 21,590,534
Capital increases due to ESOP and MSOP 0 0
Capital increase 35,231,353 0
Shares outstanding as of 31 December 415,076,934 409,940,635
Treasury shares 14,723,066 19,859,365
Number of shares as of 31 December 429,800,000 429,800,000
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 411,553,048 427,533,286
Dilution due to MSOP/ESOP 0 0
Dilution due to options 0 0
Weighted average number of shares taking into account the effect of dilution 411,553,048 427,533,286
Dec 13
Participation capital securities in units restated Dec 14
Participation capital securities outstanding as of 1 January 1,763,694 0
Acquisition of own participation capital securities -1,768,437 0
Disposal of own participation capital securities 4,743 0
Participation capital securities outstanding as of 31 December 0 0
Participation capital securities 0 0
Number of participation capital securities as of 31 December 0 0

Transactions and shares held by the management board and supervisory board

Information on shares held and transactions in Erste Group Bank AG shares by members of the management board (in number of shares):

Managing board member Dec 13 Additions Disposals Dec 14
Andreas Treichl 164,640 0 0 164,640
Franz Hochstrasser 15,260 0 0 15,260
Herbert Juranek 656 0 0 656
Gernot Mittendorfer 2,100 7,900 0 10,000
Manfred Wimmer (until 8/2013) 0 0 0 0
Andreas Gottschling 0 0 0 0

Supervisory board members held the following numbers of Erste Group Bank AG shares as of the balance sheet date of 31 December 2014:

Supervisory board member Dec 13 Additions Disposals Dec 14
Friedrich Rodler 1,702 0 0 1,702
Georg Winckler 2,500 0 0 2,500
Jan Homan 4,400 0 0 4,400
Elisabeth Bleyleben Koren (from 21. Mai 2014) 0 10,140 0 10,140
Wilhelm Rasinger 15,303 3,000 0 18,303
John James Stack 32,761 0 0 32,761
Markus Haag 160 0 0 160
Andreas Lachs 52 0 0 52
Friedrich Lackner (until 11. December 2014) 500 0 500 0
Bertram Mach 95 0 0 95
Barbara Pichler 281 0 0 281
Karin Zeisel 35 0 0 35

The shares of supervisory board members, whose office term began or ended during the financial year, held as at the date of inception or

termination of their term in office were recognised as additions or disposals.

As of 31 December 2014, supervisory board members did not hold options in Erste Group Bank AG shares. Persons related to members
of the management board or supervisory board held 3,786 shares of Erste Group Bank AG as of 31 December 2014.
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Remaining authorised and contingent capital as of 31 December 2014

Clause 5 of the articles of association authorises the management board until 21 May 2019, to increase the registered capital of the compa-
ny with the consent of the supervisory board - including in several tranches - by an amount of up to EUR 171,800,000 by issuing up to
85,900,000 voting no-par value bearer shares in return for contributions in cash and/or in kind, with the issue price and the issuing condi-
tions being determined by the management board with the consent of the Supervisory Board.

Furthermore, the management board is authorized to fully or partly exclude the statutory subscription right of the shareholders with the
consent of the supervisory board if the capital increase is in return for a cash contribution and the shares issued while excluding the sub-
scription right of the shareholders, taken together, do not exceed EUR 43,000,000 and/or if the capital increase is in return for contributions
in kind.

The measures in sections 5.1.1 (capital increase against cash contribution) to 5.1.2 (capital increase against contributions in kind) can also
be combined. The aggregate pro rata amount of registered capital represented by shares in respect of which the shareholders® subscription
rights are excluded under this authorisation in section 5.1 (authorised capital) together with the pro rata amount of registered capital at-
tributable to shares to which conversion or subscription rights or obligations relate under bonds that were issued and sold on the basis of the
authorisation in section 8.3, subject to an exclusion of subscription rights, on or after 21 May 2014 must not, however, exceed the amount of
EUR 171,800,000 .

Clause 6.3 of the articles of association states that conditional capital based on the resolutions of the management board in 2002 and 2010
with a nominal value of EUR 21,923,264 persists that can be consumed by issuing up to 10,961,632 ordinary bearer shares or ordinary
registered shares with an issue price of at least EUR 2.00 per share against cash contribution and by excluding the subscription rights of the
current shareholders. This conditional capital is used for granting options to staff, management and members of the management board of
the entity or of one of its related undertakings.

Under clause 6.4 of the articles of association, the company has conditional capital of EUR 124,700,000.00 available, which may be utilised
by issuing up to 62,350,000 bearer shares. This conditional capital can be used for granting conversion or subscription rights to holders of
convertible bonds. In case the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds provide for a mandatory conversion, it shall also serve to cover
the mandatory conversion .According to clause 7 of the articles of association, currently no authorized conditional capital exists.

37. Segment reporting

Erste Group’s segment reporting is based on IFRS 8 Operating Segments, which adopts the management approach. Accordingly, segment
information is prepared on the basis of internal management reporting that is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to
assess the performance of the segments and make decisions regarding the allocation of resources. Within Erste Group the function of the
chief operating decision maker is exercised by the management board.

Structural change

Following a strategic review, the segment structure as well as the methodology for capital allocation was changed. Erste Group therefore
introduced a new segment reporting, starting from 1 January 2014. It is based on the matrix organisation (business and geographical in-
formation) and provides comprehensive information to assess the performance of the business and geographical segments.

However, the segmentation criteria for corporate business were changed as well with no retrospective adjustments. The former local large
corporate business (included in the SME segment in 2013) was reallocated either to the Large Corporates segment or to the SME segment,
depending on annual turnover thresholds.

As a result of IFRS 10 application as of 1 January 2014, Erste Group started with consolidation of 18 investment funds. The consolidation
has been applied retrospectively, hence all affected 2013 comparative figures have been restated. Details are described in section B. “Sig-
nificant accounting policies”/(d) Significant accounting judgments, assumptions and estimates and (e) Application of amended and new
IFRS/IAS of the Notes to the Group Financial Statements.
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Business segmentation
The segment reporting comprises nine business segments reflecting Erste Group’s management structure and its internal management
reporting in 2014.

Erste Group — business segments

Retail SME ALM & Savings Large Commercial Other Group CSrro:r’;te | Intragroup |
Local CC Banks Corporates Real Estate Corporate Markets C:nter EEIiminationE
Retail

The Retail segment comprises the entire business with private individuals, free professionals and micros in the responsibility of account
managers in the retail network of the local banks cooperating with their specialized subsidiaries (such as factoring, leasing and asset man-
agement companies). Retail products and services including current and savings accounts, mortgage and consumer loans, investment
products, credit cards and cross selling products such as leasing, insurance, and building society products are offered via various distribu-
tion channels (branch networks and digital banking).

SME

The SME segment comprises the business with micros, small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), small public sector companies, and
small financial institutions (e.g. third party leasing companies) in the responsibility of local corporate account managers. Local banks
cooperate with specialized subsidiaries such as factoring and leasing companies. The turnover threshold for SMEs varies from country to
country within the range of EUR 0.7 million and EUR 75 million.

Asset/Liability Management & Local Corporate Center

The Asset/Liability Management & Local Corporate Center (ALM & LCC) segment includes all asset/liability management functions
(local and Erste Group Bank AG) as well as the local corporate centers which comprise internal service providers that operate on a non-
profit basis and reconciliation items to local entity results. The corporate center of Erste Group Bank AG is included in the Group Corpo-
rate Center segment.

Savings Banks
The Savings Banks segment includes the savings banks which are members of the Haftungsverbund (cross-guarantee system) of the Aus-
trian savings banks sector except for Erste Bank Oesterreich, Tiroler Sparkasse, Salzburger Sparkasse, Sparkasse Hainburg.

Large Corporates
The Large Corporates (LC) segment comprises the business with large corporate customers whose annual turnover exceeds a defined
threshold that starts from EUR 25 million and EUR 75 million respectively, depending on the country.

Commercial Real Estate

The Commercial Real Estate (CRE) segment covers the real estate value chain (lending, leasing, real estate investment, project develop-
ment and construction services as well as infrastructure business) for corporate clients, project developers, real estate investors, munici-
palities and other public sector agencies.

Other Corporate

The Other Corporate segment consists of two operating segments — International Business and Investment Banking — that are below the
threshold criteria defined by IFRS 8. International Business comprises all lending and investing activities outside Erste Group’s core
markets (including the branches in London, Hong Kong and New York) and is responsible for business development with and credit line
management for banks and non-banking financial institutions. Investment Banking covers equity-related business focusing mainly on
corporate finance, equity capital markets services, equity brokerage (institutional sales) and merchant banking.

Group Markets

The Group Markets (GM) segment comprises the divisionalised business units Group Treasury and Capital Markets (except Equity Capi-
tal Markets) and includes the treasury activities of Erste Group Bank AG, the CEE subsidiaries, foreign branch offices in Hong Kong,
New York, Berlin and Stuttgart as well as the business with institutional clients of Erste Asset Management. The focus is on client-
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oriented business with institutional clients. Group Markets is the internal trading unit for all classic treasury (such as FX, commodities
and money market) and capital market products (such as bonds, interest rate derivatives, credit products).

Group Corporate Center

The Group Corporate Center (GCC) segment covers mainly centrally managed activities and items that are not directly allocated to other
segments. It comprises the corporate center of Erste Group Bank AG (and thus dividends and the refinancing costs from participations,
general administrative expenses), internal non-profit service providers (facility management, IT, procurement), amortisation of customer
relationships at Banca Comerciala Roméana, Erste Card Club d.d. and Ringturm KAG, goodwill impairments, the banking tax of Erste
Group Bank AG, free capital of Erste Group (defined as the difference of the total average IFRS equity and the average economical equity
allocated to the segments) as well as the result of Erste Bank Ukraine which was sold in 2013.

In 2014 the write-down of the entire remaining value of customer relationships and brand in Romania totalled EUR 470.7 million. Good-
will impairments amounted to EUR 475.0 million (in 2013: EUR 380.8 million), whereby Romania accounted for EUR 319.1 million (in
2013: EUR 281.0 million), Croatia for EUR 61.4 million (in 2013: EUR 52.2 million) and Austrian participations for EUR 94.5 million
(in 2013: EUR 47.6 million).

Intragroup Elimination

Intragroup Elimination (IC) is not defined as a segment but is the reconciliation to the consolidated accounting result. It includes all in-
tragroup eliminations between participations of Erste Group (e.g. intragroup funding, internal cost charges). Intragroup eliminations with-
in partial groups are disclosed in the respective segments.

Geographical segmentation
For the purpose of segment reporting by geographical areas the information is presented based on the location of the booking entity (not
the country of risk). In case of information regarding a partial group, the allocation is based on the location of the respective parent entity.

Geographical areas are defined according to the country markets in which Erste Group operates. Based on the locations of the banking
and other financial institution participations, the geographical areas consist of two core markets, Austria and Central and Eastern Europe
and a residual market Other that comprises the remaining business activities of Erste Group outside its core markets as well as the recon-
ciliation to the consolidated accounting result.

Erste Group — geographical segmentation

Austria Central and Eastern Europe Other
EBOe & Savings Other Czech . . . .
Subsidiaries Banks Austria Republic Slovakia Romania Hungary Croatia Serbia

The geographical area Austria consists of the following three segments:

The Erste Bank Oesterreich & Subsidiaries (EBOe & Subsidiaries) segment comprises Erste Bank der oesterreichischen Sparkassen
AG (Erste Bank Oesterreich) and its main subsidiaries (e.g. sBausparkasse, Salzburger Sparkasse, Tiroler Sparkasse, Sparkasse Hainburg).

The Savings banks segment is identical to the business segment Savings banks.

The Other Austria segment comprises Erste Group Bank AG (Holding) with its Large Corporates, Commercial Real Estate, Other Cor-
porate and Group Markets business, Erste Group Immorent AG and Erste Asset Management GmbH.

The geographical area Central and Eastern Europe (CEE) consists of six segments covering Erste Group’s banking subsidiaries located in
the respective CEE countries:
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_ Czech Republic (comprising Ceska spofitelna Group)

_ Slovakia (comprising Slovenska sporitel’ia Group)

_ Romania (comprising Banca Comerciala Romana Group)
_ Hungary (comprising Erste Bank Hungary Group)

_ Croatia (comprising Erste Bank Croatia Group), and

_ Serbia (comprising Erste Bank Serbia Group).

The residual segment Other consists mainly of centralized service providers, the Group Asset/Liability Management and the Corporate
Center of Erste Group Bank AG as well as the reconciliation to the consolidated accounting result (e.g. intercompany elimination, divi-
dend elimination), goodwill impairments, amortisation of customer relationships and free capital.

Measurement
The profit and loss statement of the segment report is based on the measures reported to the Erste Group management board for the pur-
pose of allocating resources to the segments and assessing their performance.

Management reporting as well as the segment report for Erste Group, is based on IFRS. Accounting standards and methods as well as
measurements used in segment reporting are the same as for the consolidated financial statement of accounting.

Capital consumption per segment is regularly reviewed by the management of Erste Group to assess the performance of the segments.
The average allocated equity is determined by the credit risk, market risk and operational risk.

According to the regular internal reporting to Erste Group management board, total assets and total liabilities as well as risk weighted
assets and allocated equity are disclosed per segment.

For measuring and assessing the profitability of segments, Erste Group also uses the return on allocated equity defined as net result for the
period before minorities in relation to the average allocated equity of the respective segment. In addition the cost/income ratio is calculat-
ed for each segment as operating expenses (general administrative expenses) in relation to operating income (total of net interest income,
net fee and commission income, dividend income, net trading and fair value result, net result from equity method investments, rental
income from investment properties and other operating lease).
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8G1

Business segments (1)

Retail SME ALM & LCC Savings Banks Large Corporates Commercial Real Estate

in EUR million 112 13* 11214 112 13* 112 14 1-1213* 11214 1-1213* 11214 112 13* 11214 112 13* 11214
Net interest income 2,216.8 21751 671.0 569.4 220.5 164.7 814.7 891.8 185.3 2141 170.0 150.1
Net fee and commission income 1,053.4 1,050.3 231.2 198.4 -102.6 -65.3 396.4 419.3 86.0 99.2 14.3 15.8
Dividend income 2.1 0.5 2.7 25 17.6 22.4 43.6 24.7 0.0 0.0 2.3 5.1
Net trading and fair value result 62.2 59.8 291 31.9 -92.2 24.7 22.0 1.1 8.4 9.3 5.9 -6.2
Net result from equity method investments 11.3 8.2 0.0 0.0 4.5 3.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.7
Rental income from investment properties & other operating
leases 15.2 23.5 3.9 30.4 38.9 35.0 27.8 42.0 0.0 0.0 84.2 40.3
General administrative expenses -1,839.2 -1,814.3 -288.0 -292.8 -120.6 -112.9 -926.5 -932.1 -67.7 -85.0 -134.0 -88.2

thereof depreciation and amortization -194.9 -191.1 -24.6 -40.8 -23.7 -22.9 -68.4 -75.9 -6.6 -6.0 -56.9 -19.7
Gains/losses from financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 0.1 0.6 5.7 3.3 37.3 -16.4 24.3 27.7 -6.3 0.7 0.4 0.0
Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair
value through profit or loss -466.0 -671.7 -455.0 -461.1 -5.0 1.2 -229.2 -199.4 -229.2 -386.2 -380.5 -364.3
Other operating result -93.1 -393.7 -39.9 -2.8 -122.4 -197.7 -28.0 -43.1 -28.2 141 -50.7 -45.9

Levies on banking activities -67.6 -59.1 -16.7 -10.6 -64.4 -64.2 -8.9 -15.9 -2.8 -3.2 -0.5 -0.4
Pre-tax result from continuing operations 962.7 438.2 160.8 79.4 -124.0 -141.2 145.1 232.0 -51.8 -133.9 -288.1 -292.7
Taxes on income -200.5 -158.0 -48.2 -33.2 136.8 -36.1 -53.9 -54.7 9.1 11.0 242 4.2
Net result for the period 762.2 280.2 112.6 46.2 12.8 -177.3 91.1 177.3 -42.7 -122.9 -263.9 -288.5
Net result attributable to non-controlling interests 23.2 8.5 27 -4.2 -7.9 25 68.7 158.9 2.4 -9.8 -6.9 -8.9
Net result attributable to owners of the parent 739.0 271.7 109.9 50.4 20.8 -174.8 22.4 18.4 -45.1 -113.1 -257.0 -279.6
Operating income 3,361.0 3,317.4 937.9 832.7 86.7 184.6 1,304.5 1,379.0 279.6 322.5 276.7 205.7
Operating expenses -1,839.2 -1,814.3 -288.0 -292.8 -120.6 -112.9 -926.5 -932.1 -67.7 -85.0 -134.0 -88.2
Operating result 1,521.8 1,503.1 650.0 539.9 -33.9 71.8 378.0 446.9 211.9 237.5 142.7 117.5
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk, eop) 17,765 18,505 17,723 14,672 1,934 4,480 22,464 22,511 7,187 9,373 9,495 9,397
Average allocated capital 2,043 2,058 1,644 1,291 2,009 1,792 2,079 1,968 766 812 926 798
Cost/income ratio 54.7% 54.7% 30.7% 35.2% >100% 61.1% 71.0% 67.6% 24.2% 26.4% 48.4% 42.9%
Return on allocated capital 37.3% 13.6% 6.8% 3.6% 0.6% -9.9% 4.4% 9.0% -5.6% -15.1% -28.5% -36.1%
Total assets (eop) 52,882 51,438 24,192 22,143 52,751 51,497 56,205 56,704 7,494 9,470 10,908 10,164
Total liabilities excluding equity (eop) 69,245 69,227 14,267 12,977 58,547 54,011 52,458 52,684 3,807 4,988 5,207 4,668
Impairments and risk provisions -468.4 -697.3 -482.5 -473.1 -38.6 -45.1 -254.6 -221.3 -254.1 -374.6 -429.7 -466.2
Net impairment loss on loans and receivables from credit
institutions and customers -465.8 -671.6 -453.5 -460.3 9.2 -0.8 -220.4 -193.6 -214.6 -392.0 -379.9 -365.5
Net impairment loss on other financial assets not measured
at fair value through profit and loss -0.2 -0.1 -15 -0.8 -14.2 2.0 -8.9 -5.8 -14.7 5.8 -0.6 1.2
Allocation/release of provisions for contingent credit risk
liabilities 2.9 -4.1 -1.6 0.6 -4.9 0.9 -15.9 -18.3 -25.4 11.5 -0.7 -40.4
Impairments from Goodwills 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Net impairment loss on other non financial assets -5.3 -21.5 -25.9 -12.6 -26.5 -47.2 -9.5 -3.6 0.5 0.0 -48.4 -61.5

*) figures reflect changed segment structure of Erste Group as of 1 January 2014 and the impact of IFRS 10 application as of 1 January 2014
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Business segments (2)

Other Corporate Group Markets Group Corporate Center Intragroup Elimination Total group

in EUR million 112 13* 11214 112 13* 11214 112 13* 11214 1-1213* 11214 112 13* 11214
Net interest income 68.9 75.2 217.2 191.2 136.1 70.2 -15.5 -6.6 4,685.0 4,495.2
Net fee and commission income 27.7 18.9 104.9 102.9 137.6 69.1 -142.4 -38.8 1,806.5 1,869.8
Dividend income 0.0 0.5 0.5 24 20.7 16.4 0.0 -0.1 89.7 74.2
Net trading and fair value result 131 4.8 116.8 116.1 20.9 -11.3 32.7 12.0 218.8 242.3
Net result from equity method investments 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.2 3.9 0.0 0.0 21.8 15.8
Rental income from investment properties & other operating leases 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 40.3 35.1 -36.9 -25.7 173.3 180.6
General administrative expenses -50.9 -58.2 -188.1 -179.1 -669.0 -710.5 387.9 485.9 -3,896.1 -3,787.3

thereof depreciation and amortization -2.2 -2.0 -17.7 -17.7 -125.4 -90.0 2.6 0.0 -517.7 -466.1
Gains/losses from financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value
through profit or loss, net 8.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 -75 -0.9 0.1 3.2 62.4 18.3
Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit
or loss -6.2 -12.9 12.2 -0.1 -15.4 -64.7 0.0 0.0 -1,774.4 -2,159.2
Other operating result 0.4 1.5 -3.1 -0.7 -417.6 -654.7 -225.9 -429.9 -1,008.6 -1,752.9

Levies on banking activities 0.0 0.0 -2.5 -2.1 -147.6 -100.8 0.0 0.0 -311.0 -256.3
Pre-tax result from continuing operations 61.3 29.8 260.3 232.7 -747.8 -1,247.5 0.0 0.0 378.4 -803.2
Taxes on income -13.3 -6.9 -51.8 -43.9 19.1 -191.8 0.0 0.0 -178.5 -509.4
Net result for the period 47.9 22.9 208.5 188.8 -728.6 -1,439.4 0.0 0.0 199.9 -1,312.6
Net result attributable to non-controlling interests 0.0 -0.1 2.5 8IS 55.0 -16.2 0.0 0.0 139.6 129.4
Net result attributable to owners of the parent 47.9 22.9 206.0 185.3 -783.6 -1,423.1 0.0 0.0 60.3 -1,442.0
Operating income 109.7 99.4 439.3 412.6 361.8 183.3 -162.1 -59.3 6,995.1 6,877.9
Operating expenses -50.9 -58.2 -188.1 -179.1 -669.0 -710.5 387.9 485.9 -3,896.1 -3,787.3
Operating result 58.8 411 251.3 233.4 -307.2 -527.2 225.8 426.6 3,099.0 3,090.7
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk, eop) 3,335 2,672 1,782 2,756 3,173 2,739 0 0 84,858 87,105
Average allocated capital 332 209 460 493 5,745 5,010 0 0 16,004 14,431
Cost/income ratio 46.4% 58.6% 42.8% 43.4% >100% >100% >100% >100% 55.7% 55.1%
Return on allocated capital 14.4% 10.9% 45.3% 38.3% -12.7% -28.7% 1.2% -9.1%
Total assets (eop) 3,698 3,656 24,590 18,022 13,048 12,093 -45,649 -38,899 200,118 196,287
Total liabilities excluding equity (eop) 58 93 16,117 11,456 11,265 11,716 -45,638 -38,977 185,333 182,844
Impairments and risk provisions -6.2 -13.0 12.2 -0.1 -402.1 -991.0 0.0 0.0 -2,324.0 -3,281.7
Net impairment loss on loans and receivables from credit institutions and
customers 5.0 -17.7 12.3 -0.2 -18.8 -18.7 0.0 0.0 -1,726.5 -2,120.4
Net impairment loss on other financial assets not measured at fair value through
profit and loss -11.2 4.8 0.0 0.1 34 -46.0 0.0 0.0 -47.9 -38.8
Allocation/release of provisions for contingent credit risk liabilities 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 8.7 33.8 0.0 0.0 -36.9 -16.2
Impairments from Goodwills 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -380.8 -475.0 0.0 0.0 -383.0 -475.0
Net impairment loss on other non financial assets 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -14.7 -485.1 0.0 0.0 -129.7 -631.4

*) figures reflect changed segment structure of Erste Group as of 1 January 2014 and the impact of IFRS 10 application as of 1 January 2014
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Geographical segmentation - overview

Central and Eastern

Austria Europe Other Total group

in EUR million 1-1213* 11214 1-1213* 11214 1-1213* 11214 1-1213* 11214
Net interest income 1,786.7 1,900.7 2,612.3 2,418.8 286.0 175.7 4,685.0 4,495.2
Net fee and commission income 908.8 948.2 939.2 926.6 -41.5 -4.9 1,806.5 1,869.8
Dividend income 63.9 54.6 5.1 3.4 20.7 16.2 89.7 74.2
Net trading and fair value result 68.2 13.0 218.2 239.6 -67.7 -10.3 218.8 242.3
Net result from equity method investments 4.5 2.7 1.1 9.2 6.2 3.9 21.8 15.8
Rental income from investment properties & other operating leases 130.4 101.5 39.5 69.7 34 9.4 173.3 180.6
General administrative expenses -1,898.5 -1,886.1 -1,700.4 -1,658.2 -297.2 -242.9 -3,896.1 -3,787.3

thereof depreciation and amortization -178.4 -150.5 -215.8 -223.2 -123.5 -92.4 -517.7 -466.1
Gains/losses from financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 342 27.7 13.7 4.5 14.5 -13.9 62.4 18.3
Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss -746.8 -573.1 -1,011.7 -1,509.0 -15.8 771 -1,774.4 -2,159.2
Other operating result -99.7 -44.1 -265.8 -621.9 -643.1 -1,086.9 -1,008.6 -1,752.9

Levies on banking activities -19.0 -29.8 -144.5 -125.7 -147.6 -100.8 -311.0 -256.3
Pre-tax result from continuing operations 251.7 545.1 861.2 -117.3 -734.5 -1,231.0 378.4 -803.2
Taxes on income -119.9 -173.0 =771 -139.8 18.5 -196.6 -178.5 -509.4
Net result for the period 131.8 3721 784.1 -257.1 -716.1 -1,427.6 199.9 -1,312.6
Net result attributable to non-controlling interests 701 170.2 14.5 -24.4 55.0 -16.4 139.6 129.4
Net result attributable to owners of the parent 61.8 201.9 769.6 -232.7 -771.1 -1,411.2 60.3 -1,442.0
Operating income 2,962.6 3,020.7 3,825.4 3,667.3 207.2 189.9 6,995.1 6,877.9
Operating expenses -1,898.5 -1,886.1 -1,700.4 -1,658.2 -297.2 -242.9 -3,896.1 -3,787.3
Operating result 1,064.1 1,134.6 2,125.0 2,009.1 -90.0 -53.0 3,099.0 3,090.7
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk, eop) 48,717 51,294 32,653 32,565 3,489 3,245 84,858 87,105
Average allocated capital 4,895 4,540 4,445 4,036 6,664 5,856 16,004 14,431
Cost/income ratio 64.1% 62.4% 44.4% 45.2% >100% >100% 55.7% 55.1%
Return on allocated capital 2.7% 8.2% 17.6% -6.4% -10.7% -24.4% 1.2% -9.1%
Total assets (eop) 133,170 131,916 79,324 75,181 -12,376 -10,810 200,118 196,287
Total liabilities excluding equity (eop) 110,895 108,069 70,884 67,132 3,553 7,643 185,333 182,844
Impairments and risk provisions -834.3 -668.8 -1,087.1 -1,607.6 -402.6 -1,005.4 -2,324.0 -3,281.7
Net impairment loss on loans and receivables from credit institutions and customers -705.3 -581.1 -1,002.0 -1,508.3 -19.2 -31.1 -1,726.5 -2,120.4
Net impairment loss on other financial assets not measured at fair value through profit and loss -41.5 8.0 -9.7 -0.7 3.4 -46.0 -47.9 -38.8
Allocation/release of provisions for contingent credit risk liabilities -14.9 -42.1 -30.8 -5.9 8.7 31.8 -36.9 -16.2
Impairments from Goodwills 0.0 0.0 22 0.0 -380.8 -475.0 -383.0 -475.0
Net impairment loss on other non financial assets -72.6 -53.6 -42.4 -92.7 -14.7 -485.1 -129.7 -631.4

*) figures reflect changed segment structure of Erste Group as of 1 January 2014 and the impact of IFRS 10 application as of 1 January 2014
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Geographical area - Austria

EBOe & Subsidiaries Savings Banks Other Austria Austria

in EUR million 112 13* 11214 112 13* 11214 1-12 13* 11214 1-1213* 11214
Net interest income 559.6 613.5 814.7 891.8 412.4 395.4 1,786.7 1,900.7
Net fee and commission income 332.2 354.9 396.4 419.3 180.2 174.0 908.8 948.2
Dividend income 17.0 22.0 43.6 24.7 3.3 7.9 63.9 54.6
Net trading and fair value result 11.3 8.7 22.0 1.1 34.9 3.1 68.2 13.0
Net result from equity method investments 4.6 21 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.7 4.5 27
Rental income from investment properties & other operating leases 18.4 19.2 27.8 42.0 84.2 40.4 130.4 101.5
General administrative expenses -606.9 -630.7 -926.5 -932.1 -365.1 -323.3 -1,898.5 -1,886.1

thereof depreciation and amortization -35.5 -38.2 -68.4 -75.9 -74.5 -36.3 -178.4 -150.5
Gains/losses from financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 1.1 -0.4 24.3 27.7 8.9 0.4 34.2 27.7
Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss -77.5 -104.5 -229.2 -199.4 -440.1 -269.2 -746.8 -573.1
Other operating result -35.4 6.7 -28.0 -43.1 -36.3 -7.6 -99.7 -44 1

Levies on banking activities -9.7 -13.8 -8.9 -15.9 -0.4 0.0 -19.0 -29.8
Pre-tax result from continuing operations 224.4 291.4 145.1 232.0 -117.7 21.7 251.7 545.1
Taxes on income -59.1 -65.1 -53.9 -54.7 -6.8 -53.2 -119.9 -173.0
Net result for the period 165.3 226.3 91.1 177.3 -124.5 -31.5 131.8 3721

Net result attributable to non-controlling interests 4.8 11.8 68.7 158.9 -3.5 -0.5 70.1 170.2

Net result attributable to owners of the parent 160.5 214.5 224 18.4 -121.1 -31.0 61.8 201.9
Operating income 943.2 1,020.3 1,304.5 1,379.0 714.9 621.5 2,962.6 3,020.7
Operating expenses -606.9 -630.7 -926.5 -932.1 -365.1 -323.3 -1,898.5 -1,886.1
Operating result 336.3 389.6 378.0 446.9 349.8 298.1 1,064.1 1,134.6
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk, eop) 11,342 12,589 22,464 22,511 14,911 16,194 48,717 51,294
Average allocated capital 1,114 1,088 2,079 1,968 1,703 1,484 4,895 4,540
Cost/income ratio 64.3% 61.8% 71.0% 67.6% 51.1% 52.0% 64.1% 62.4%
Return on allocated capital 14.8% 20.8% 4.4% 9.0% -7.3% -2.1% 2.7% 8.2%
Total assets (eop) 42,162 43,106 56,205 56,704 34,803 32,106 133,170 131,916
Total liabilities excluding equity (eop) 40,034 40,728 52,458 52,684 18,403 14,657 110,895 108,069
Impairments and risk provisions -97.3 -106.7 -254.6 -221.3 -482.4 -340.7 -834.3 -668.8
Net impairment loss on loans and receivables from credit institutions and customers -71.3 -106.3 -220.4 -193.6 -413.6 -281.1 -705.3 -581.1
Net impairment loss on other financial assets not measured at fair value through profit and loss -6.2 1.9 -8.9 -5.8 -26.5 11.9 -41.5 8.0
Allocation/release of provisions for contingent credit risk liabilities 1.0 -0.9 -15.9 -18.3 0.0 -22.9 -14.9 -42.1
Impairments from Goodwills 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Net impairment loss on other non financial assets -20.8 -1.4 -9.5 -3.6 -42.4 -48.6 -72.6 -53.6

*) figures reflect changed segment structure of Erste Group as of 1 January 2014 and the impact of IFRS 10 application as of 1 January 2014
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Geographical area - Central and Eastern Europe

Central and Eastern

Czech Republic Romania Slovakia Hungary Croatia Serbia Europe

in EUR million 1-12 13* 11214 1-12 13* 11214 1-12 13* 112 14 1-12 13* 11214 1-12 13* 1-12 14 1-12 13* 11214 1-12 13* 11214
Net interest income 999.4 924.0 610.1 484.7 431.2 451.0 298.7 263.4 240.5 261.2 32.5 34.4 2,612.3 2,418.8
Net fee and commission income 434.9 410.6 169.1 160.0 117.4 123.4 131.7 139.3 72.6 79.9 13.4 13.4 939.2 926.6
Dividend income 2.0 1.8 23 0.6 0.4 0.7 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.0 0.0 5.1 3.4
Net trading and fair value result 79.7 83.1 99.9 81.2 11.6 9.6 4.1 38.8 20.4 241 2.6 2.9 218.2 239.6
Net result from equity method investments 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.2 9.9 6.9 0.0 0.0 0.4 2.2 0.0 -0.2 11.1 9.2
Rental income from investment properties & other
operating leases 31.9 29.9 4.9 515 1.8 1.8 0.6 0.8 0.2 31.7 0.0 0.0 39.5 69.7
General administrative expenses -721.8 -662.2 -369.3 -331.9 -249.0 -266.2 -180.1 -175.8 -143.7 -183.5 -36.5 -38.6  -1,700.4  -1,658.2

thereof depreciation and amortization -88.0 -82.5 -49.5 -39.5 -47.0 -45.1 -19.3 -19.8 9.8 -33.9 -2.2 -2.3 -215.8 -223.2
Gains/losses from financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 8.2 53 3.2 -0.1 2.0 1.3 0.0 -3.6 0.2 1.5 0.0 0.0 13.7 4.5
Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at
fair value through profit or loss -140.1 -135.4 -454.3 -999.1 -47.2 -51.4 -201.3 -152.2 -159.2 -155.3 -9.6 -15.7 -1,011.7 -1,509.0
Other operating result 1.5 -21.9 -70.3 -117.1 -47.1 -44.2 -136.7 -431.3 -13.2 -6.0 -0.1 -1.3 -265.8 -621.9

Levies on banking activities 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -41.2 -31.5 -103.2 -94.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -144.5 -125.7
Pre-tax result from continuing operations 695.8 635.1 -3.5 -715.9 231.1 233.0 -83.0 -320.6 18.6 56.2 2.2 -5.1 861.2 -117.3
Taxes on income -140.0 -124.1 123.4 59.7 -50.4 -54.2 -6.5 -10.0 -3.2 -8.9 -0.5 -2.3 -77.1 -139.8
Net result for the period 555.8 511.1 119.9 -656.2 180.8 178.7 -89.5 -330.6 15.4 47.3 1.8 -7.3 784.1 -257.1
Net result attributable to non-controlling interests 3.9 4.9 5.0 -42.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.3 14.7 0.3 -1.9 14.5 -24.4
Net result attributable to owners of the parent 551.9 506.2 114.9 -614.1 180.7 178.7 -89.5 -330.6 10.1 32.6 1.4 -5.4 769.6 -232.7
Operating income 1,547.9 1,449.4 887.1 732.2 572.3 593.5 435.1 442.3 334.5 399.3 48.5 50.5 3,825.4 3,667.3
Operating expenses -721.8 -662.2 -369.3 -331.9 -249.0 -266.2 -180.1 -175.8 -143.7 -183.5 -36.5 -38.6 -1,7004  -1,658.2
Operating result 826.1 787.1 517.8 400.3 323.3 3217:3 255.0 266.5 190.8 215.9 12.0 11.9 2,125.0 2,009.1
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk, eop) 13,934 13,745 6,850 5,676 3,878 4,416 3,926 3,409 3,505 4,664 560 655 32,653 32,565
Average allocated capital 1,593 1,429 1,387 1,089 506 512 502 490 395 443 62 72 4,445 4,036
Cost/income ratio 46.6% 45.7% 41.6% 45.3% 43.5% 44.9% 41.4% 39.7% 43.0% 45.9% 75.3% 76.4% 44.4% 45.2%
Return on allocated capital 34.9%  358%  8.6%  -603%  357%  349%  -178%  67.5%  3.9%  10.7%  2.8%  -10.2%  17.6%  -6.4%
Total assets (eop) 35,323 32,546 14,924 13,747 11,696 12,965 7,632 5,981 8,901 9,114 849 829 79,324 75,181
Total liabilities excluding equity (eop) 31,719 28,798 13,265 12,652 10,235 11,483 7,013 5,419 7,928 8,073 725 708 70,884 67,132
Impairments and risk provisions -159.1 -128.1 -487.6  -1,083.2 -48.7 -60.8 -224.3 -161.3 -157.8 -157.4 -9.7 -16.8  -1,087.1  -1,607.6
Net impairment loss on loans and receivables from credit
institutions and customers -131.3 -135.5 -454.3 -999.1 -46.9 -51.4 -201.1 -152.2 -158.7 -154.4 -9.6 -15.7 -1,002.0 -1,508.3
Net impairment loss on other financial assets not
measured at fair value through profit and loss -8.8 0.1 0.0 0.0 -0.3 0.0 -0.2 0.0 -0.5 -0.9 0.0 0.0 9.7 -0.7
Allocation/release of provisions for contingent credit risk
liabilities 3.5 3.6 -28.2 -4.0 -2.2 -6.0 -5.9 1.3 1.8 -0.3 0.2 -0.5 -30.8 -5.9
Impairments from Goodwills 0.0 0.0 -2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -2.2 0.0
Net impairment loss on other non financial assets -22.4 3.7 -2.9 -80.2 0.7 -3.5 -17.1 -10.4 -0.4 -1.8 -0.2 -0.6 -42.4 -92.7

*) figures reflect changed segment structure of Erste Group as of 1 January 2014 and the impact of IFRS 10 application as of 1 January 2014



38. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and outside Austria and return on assets

Assets and liabilities not denominated in EUR were as follows:

Dec 13
in EUR million estated Dec14
Assets 75,072 65,673
Liabilities 61,545 51,031
The assets and liabilities outside Austria are given below:

Dec 13
in EUR million restated Dec 14
Assets 119,086 111,167
Liabilities 86,729 85,786

Return on assets:

Return on assets (net profit for the year divided by average total assets) was -0.33% at 31 December 2014 (0.10% in 31 December 2013

restated).
39. Leases

a) Finance leases
Finance leases receivables are included under the balance sheet item ‘Loans and advances to customers’.

Erste Group leases both movable property and real estate to other parties under finance lease arrangements. For the finance lease receiva-
bles included in this item, the reconciliation of the gross investment in leases to the present value of the minimum lease payments is as

follows:
Dec 13

in EUR million restated Dec 14
Outstanding minimum lease payments 4,175 3,530
Non-guaranteed residual values 1,066 824
Gross investment 5,241 4,354
Unrealised financial income 645 514
Net investment 4,596 3,840
Present value of non-guaranteed residual values 722 721
Present value of minimum lease payments 3,874 3,119

The maturity analysis of gross investment in leases and present values of minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases is as

follows (residual maturities):

Present value of non-guaranteed

Gross investment residual values
in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14 Dec 13 Dec 14
<1 year 932 703 703 541
1-5years 2,389 1,887 1,861 1,485
> 5 years 1,920 1,764 1,311 1,093
Total 5,241 4,354 3,874 3,119

In the reporting period, the total amount of accumulated allow-ance for uncollectable minimum lease payments, presented as risk provi-

sions for loans and advances, was EUR 191 million (2013: EUR 291 million).

The total amount of contingent rents from finance leases recognised as income in the period was EUR 28 million (2013: EUR 33 million).

b) Operating leases
Under operating leases, Erste Group leases both real estate and movable property to other parties.
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Operating leases from the view of Erste Group as lessor:
Minimum lease payments from non-cancellable operating leases were as follows:

in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
<1 year 24 61
1-5 years 89 151
> 5 years 71 43
Total 184 255

The total amount of contingent rents from operating leases recognised as income in the period was EUR 9 million (2013: EUR 4 million).

Operating leases from the view of Erste Group as lessee:
Minimum lease payments from non-cancellable operating leases were as follows:

in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
<1 year 84 56
1-5 years 124 126
> 5 years 35 73
Total 243 254

Lease payments from operating leases recognised as expense in the period amounted to EUR 88.1 million (2013: EUR 108.4 million).
40. Related-party transactions and principal shareholders

In addition to principal shareholders, Erste Group also defines as related parties subsidiaries that are not consolidated due to non-
materiality and associates that are included in the consolidated financial statements by the equity method. Furthermore related parties
consist of management and supervisory board members of Erste Group Bank AG. Moreover, Erste Group defines close family members
of management and supervisory board members of Erste Group Bank AG, as well as companies over which management and supervisory
board members of Erste Group Bank AG have control or significant influence, as other related parties.

Transactions between Erste Group Bank AG and fully consolidated companies are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements
as they have been eliminated.

Principal shareholders

As of 31 December 2014, the foundation DIE ERSTE oesterreichische Spar-Casse Privatstiftung (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Privatstif-
tung’) controlled a total of 30.04% interest in Erste Group Bank AG. 10.83% of the shares were held directly by the Privatstiftung. Indi-
rect participation of the Privatstiftung was at 9.29%, thereof 5.41% of the shares held by Sparkassen Beteiligungs GmbH & Co KG,
which is an affiliated undertaking of the Privatstiftung; 0.80% of the shares held by Austrian savings banks, which act together with the
Privatstiftung and are affiliated with Erste Group by virtue of the Haftungsverbund; and 3.08% of the shares held by other syndicate
members. 9.92% interest in Erste Group Bank AG was controlled by the Privatstiftung based on syndication agreement with Caixabank
S.A.. This makes the Privatstiftung the largest single investor in Erste Group Bank AG. Up to the repayment on 8 August 2013, the
Privatstiftung held participation capital with a notional value of EUR 18.1 million in Erste Group Bank AG.

In 2014 (for the financial year 2013), the Privatstiftung received a dividend of EUR 12.9 million (2013: 30.5 million) on its stake in Erste
Group Bank AG. Additionally, in 2014 (for the financial year 2013) the Privatstiftung received an aliquot dividend for participation capi-
tal of Erste Group Bank AG, which was repaid on 8 August 2013, in the amount of EUR 0.9 million (2013: EUR 1.4 million). The pur-
pose of the Privatstiftung, to be achieved notably by way of the participating interest in Erste Group Bank AG, is to support social, scien-
tific, cultural and charitable institutions as well as to generally promote the guiding principles of the savings bank philosophy. As of
31 December 2014, Theodora Eberle (chairwoman), Richard Wolf (vice chairman), Franz Karl Priiller and Bernhard Spalt were members
of the Privatstiftung management board. The supervisory board of the Privatstiftung had seven members at the end of 2014, one of whom
is also member of the supervisory board of Erste Group Bank AG.

Under article 15.1 of the articles of association, for the duration of its assumption of liability for all current and future debts in the event of
default on payment by the company, the Privatstiftung is entitled, pursuant to Section 92 (9) of the Austrian Banking Act, to delegate up to
one-third of the supervisory board members to be elected at the Annual General Meeting. Until now, the Privatstiftung has not exercised
this right.
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As of 31 December 2014, Erste Group had in relation to the Privatstiftung accounts payable of EUR 262.6 million (2013:
EUR 49.9 million) and accounts receivable of EUR 26.5 million (2013: EUR 48.7 million). In addition, standard derivative transactions
for hedging purposes were in place between Erste Group and the Privatstiftung as of the end of 2014, namely interest rate swaps with caps
in the notional amount of EUR 282.0 million (2013: EUR 282.0 million). As of the end of 2014, the Privatstiftung held bonds issued by
Erste Group Bank AG in the amount of EUR 0.2 million (2013: EUR 5.2 million), and Erste Group held debt securities issued by the
Privatstiftung in the amount of EUR 3.7 million (2013: EUR 7.0 million).

In 2014, the interest income of Erste Group for the reporting period amounted to EUR 12.5 million (2013: EUR 13.2 million) while the
interest expenses amounted to EUR 8.6 million (2013: EUR 8.7 million), resulting from the said accounts receivable and accounts payable
as well as derivative transactions and debt securities.

As of 31 December 2014, Caixabank S.A., which is based in Barcelona, Spain, held a total of 42,634,248 (2013: 39,195,848) Erste Group
Bank AG shares, equivalent to 9.92% (2013: 9.12%) of the share capital of Erste Group Bank AG. Juan Maria Nin who resigned as depu-
ty chairman and CEO of Caixabank S.A. as of 30 June 2014 also stepped down as member of the Erste Group Bank AG Supervisory
Board on 11 December 2014. In his place, Antonio Massanell Lavilla (deputy chairman of Caixabank S.A.), was invited to join the super-
visory board of Erste Group Bank AG as guest member.

In addition, the shareholders' agreement between Caixabank S.A. and the Erste Foundation, which had been in effect since 2009, was
renewed in December 2014 (Preferred Partnership Agreement). On the basis of this agreement, Caixabank S.A. joined the ranks of the
core shareholders, which include Erste Foundation as well as the savings banks, their foundations as well as Wiener Stédtische Wech-
selseitige Versicherungsverein — Vermogensverwaltung — Vienna Insurance Group. As member of this syndicate, Caixabank S.A. will
abide by the recommendations of the Erste Foundation when electing new supervisory board members. In addition, Caixabank S.A. is
granted the right to nominate a second Supervisory Board member at the 2015 Shareholders Meeting.

In 2014 (for the financial year 2013), Caixabank S.A received a dividend of EUR 7.8 million (2013: EUR 15.7 million) on its stake in
Erste Group Bank AG. Additionally, in 2014 (for the financial year 2013) Caixabank S.A. received an aliquot dividend for participation
capital of Erste Group Bank AG, which was repaid on 8 August 2013, in the amount of EUR 0.7 million (2013: EUR 1.2 million).

Balances and off-balance exposures with related parties

As of Dec 13 As of Dec 14

Investments in Investments in

Investments in  associates and Investments in  associates and

subsidaries -  Investments in subsidaries -  Investments in

not consolidated joint ventures not consolidated joint ventures

Selected financial assets 750 560 459 609

Equity instruments 171 12 128 11

Debt securities 0 39 0 40

Loans and advances 579 509 330 559

Loans and advances with credit institutions 578 504 32 98

Loans and advances with customers 1 4 298 461

of which: Impaired selected assets 15 13 9 0

Selected financial liabilities -109 -100 -42 -98

Deposits -109 -100 -42 -98

Deposits from banks -1 -6 -1 -7

Deposits from customers -107 -95 -41 -91

Debt securities issued 0 0 0 0

Loan commitments, financial guarantees and other commitments given [notional amount] 501 109 134 186

of which: defaulted 1 5 1 7

Loan commitments, financial guarantees and other commitments received 0 0 0 0

Derivatives [notional amount] 45 0 50 0
Allowances and provisions for impaired debt instruments, defaulted guarantees and

defaulted commitments 5 0 10 3

Transactions with related parties are done at arm’s length.
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Remuneration of management and supervisory board members
The remuneration paid to the management board in 2014 is as follows:

Fixed salaries

in EUR thousand 11213 11214
Andreas Treichl 1,262 1,334
Franz Hochstrasser 750 792
Herbert Juranek 631 667
Gernot Mittendorfer 633 633
Andreas Gottschling 211 633
Total 3,488 4,059

Since the financial year 2010, the variable part of the management board’s remuneration, including both cash payments and share-
equivalents, is distributed over five years in accordance with legal requirements and is paid out only under certain conditions. Share-
equivalents are not exchange-traded shares but phantom shares that are paid out in cash after a one-year vesting period based on defined

criteria.

In 2014, performance-linked remuneration and share-equivalents were paid out or vested for the financial year 2013 and previous years.

Performance-linked remuneration

11213 11214

for 2012 for previous years? for 2013 for previous years?
share- share- share- share-
cash equivalents cash equivalents cash equivalents cash equivalents
in EUR thousand in units in EUR thousand in units in EUR thousand in units’  in EUR thousand in units’
Andreas Treichl 393 24,898 65 2,182 225 10,881 122 5,502
Franz Hochstrasser 203 12,449 43 1,423 167 6,918 71 3,083
Herbert Juranek 120 7,013 17 563 56 2,365 33 1,498
Gernot Mittendorfer 129 7,539 0 0 69 3,145 17 1,005
Andreas Gottschling 0 0 0 0 30 1,285 0 0
Total 845 51,899 125 4,168 548 24,594 243 11,088

1) Share-equivalents indicated here have been firmly awarded based on the previous year's result. Pay outs will be made in the year 2015 after the one-year vesting period. Share-equivalents were valued at the average

weighted daily share price of Erste Group Bank AG of the year 2014 in the amount of EUR 22.25 per share.
2) No performance-linked remuneration was paid out to members of the management board for the financial year 2011.

Long-Term Incentive-Programme

Currently, one long-term incentive programme (LTI), which is based on changes in the share price of Erste Group Bank AG versus a
group of peers and the Dow Jones Euro Stoxx Banks, is still active. It was started on 1 January 2010 but did not result in any payment in
2014.

The item ‘Other remuneration’ comprises pension fund contributions, contributions to employee provision funds (for new-type severance

payments) and remunerations in kind.

Other remuneration

in EUR thousand 11213 11214
Andreas Treichl 471 498
Franz Hochstrasser 177 260
Herbert Juranek 99 92
Gernot Mittendorfer 98 88
Andreas Gottschling 26 76
Total 871 1,015

The remuneration of the members of the management board represented 0.3% (2013: 0.3%) of the total personnel expenses of Erste

Group.

In 2014, EUR 2.1 million (2013: EUR 3.1 million) was paid in cash and 2,572 share-equivalents (2013: 1,066 share-equivalents) were

assigned to former members of the management bodies and their dependents.
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Principles governing the pension scheme for management board members

Members of the management board participate in the defined contribution pension plan of Erste Group on the basis of the same principles
as employees. For one member of the management board, compensatory payments have to be made to the pension fund in case the man-
agement board member's tenure ends before he reaches the age of 65 by no fault of the member.

Principles governing vested benefits and entitlements of management board members in case of termination of the position

Regarding vested benefits and entitlements of management board members in the event of termination of their position, the standard legal
severance benefit provisions of section 23 of the Austrian Salaried Employees Act (Angestelltengesetz) still apply to one member of the
management board. All other members of the management board are not entitled to receive any severance benefits.

The remuneration granted to the management board members complies with the banking rules on management remuneration.

Breakdown of supervisory board remuneration

in EUR thousand 11213 11214
Supervisory board compensation 638 537
Meeting fees 195 233
Total 833 770

In 2014, the members of the supervisory board of Erste Group Bank AG were paid EUR 770 thousand (2013: EUR 833 thousand) for their
board function. The following members of the supervisory board received the following remuneration for their board function in fully consol-
idated subsidiaries of Erste Group Bank AG: Friedrich Rédler EUR 13,750, Georg Winckler EUR 5,250, John James Stack EUR 40,000 and
Gunther Griss EUR 52,800.

No other legal transactions were concluded with members of the supervisory board.

Pursuant to the decision at the Annual General Meeting of 21 May 2014, the supervisory board adopted in its constituent meeting the follow-
ing remuneration structure for the financial year 2013:

Allowance Total
in EUR Number per person allowance
Chairman 1 100,000 100,000
Vice Chairmen 2 75,000 150,000
Members 7 50,000 350,000
Total 10 600,000

The supervisory board consists of at least three and a maximum of twelve members elected by the annual general meeting. Unless the
annual general meeting has determined a shorter term of office for individual, several or all supervisory board members on the occasion of
their appointment, the term of office of the members of the supervisory board ends at the close of the annual general meeting that resolves
on the approvals of their actions for the fourth business year following their election; re-election is permitted. In addition, membership of
the supervisory board ceases upon death, revocation, resignation or in the event of a defined impediment. Revocation requires a majority
of three quarter of valid votes cast and a majority of three quarters of the registered capital represented at the time of the resolution.

Banking transactions with key management employees and persons and companies related to key management
employees

As of the end of 2014, loans and advances granted to members of the management board and supervisory board totalled EUR 1,371 thou-
sand (2013: EUR 1,017 thousand). Deposits of members of the management board and supervisory board at Erste Group amounted to
EUR 7,287 thousand in total. As of 31 December 2014, members of the management and supervisory board held bonds issued by Erste
Group in the amount of EUR 377 thousand. Loan commitments and financial guarantees, issued in favour of members of the management
and supervisory board totalled EUR 1,398 thousand as of the end of 2014. From banking transactions with members of the management
board and supervisory board Erste Group received interest income and fee income of EUR 28 thousand in total, and paid interest expense
of EUR 28 thousand.

Loans and advances to close family members of key management employees and companies over which key management employees
have control or significant influence (hereinafter referred to “other related parties”) totalled EUR 782 thousand as of 31 December 2014.
As of the end of 2014, deposits of other related parties at Erste Group amounted to EUR 6,857 thousand in total. As of 31 December 2014
other related parties held bonds issued by companies of Erste Group in the total amount of EUR 8,825 thousand. Loan commitments and
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financial guarantees, issued in favour of other related parties totalled EUR 154 thousand as of the end of 2014. From banking transactions
with other related parties Erste Group received interest income and fee income of EUR 22 thousand in total, and paid interest expense of
EUR 35 thousand.

The applicable interest rates and other terms (maturity dates and collateral) represent market conditions.

Other transactions with companies related to key management employees
Companies related to members of the supervisory board invoiced the following amounts from other transactions:

In the year 2014, Griss & Partner Rechtsanwilte, a law firm in which Gunter Griss is a senior partner, invoiced the companies of Erste
Group for a total of EUR 18 thousand for legal representation and consultancy contracts.

41. Collateral

The following assets were pledged as security for liabilities:

in EUR million Dec 13 Dec 14
Loans and advances to credit institutions 5 199
Loans and advances to customers 16,013 16,943
Trading assets 1,692 25
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 51 12
Financial assets - available for sale 1,754 1,713
Financial assets - held to maturity 3,030 2,723
Total 22,545 21,614

The financial assets pledged as collateral consist of loan receivables, bonds and other interest-bearing securities.

Collaterals were pledged as a result of repo transactions, refinancing transactions with the European Central Bank, loans backing issued
mortgage bonds and other collateral arrangements.

The fair value of collateral received that may be repledged or resold even without the security provider’s default was EUR 1,371 million
(2013: EUR 3,708 million). Collateral with a fair value of EUR 180 million (2013: EUR 94 million) was resold. Collateral with fair value
of EUR 32 million was repledged. The bank is obliged to return the resold and repledged collateral.

42. Transfers of financial assets — repurchase transactions and securities lending

Dec 13 Dec 14
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of
transferred associated transferred associated
in EUR million assets liabilities assets liabilities
Repurchase agreements
Loans and advances to credit institutions 0 0 0 0
Loans and advances to customers 0 0 0 0
Trading assets 871 875 5 5
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 0 0 0 0
Financial assets - available for sale 1,372 1,367 1,285 1,025
Financial assets - held to maturity 1,326 1,358 424 434
Total - repurchase agreements 3,569 3,600 1,714 1,464
Securities lendings
Loans and advances to credit institutions 0 0 0 0
Loans and advances to customers 0 0 0 0
Trading assets 15 0 4 0
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 0 0 0 0
Financial assets - available for sale 69 0 179 0
Financial assets - held to maturity 0 0 0 0
Total - securities lendings 84 0 182 0
Total 3,653 3,600 1,896 1,464

168



The transferred financial instruments consist of bonds and other interest-bearing securities.

The total amount of EUR 1,896 million (2013: EUR 3,653 million) represents the carrying amount of financial assets in the respective
balance sheet positions for which the transferee has a right to sell or repledge. Liabilities from repo transaction in the amount of
EUR 1,464 million (2013: 3,600 million), which are measured at amortised cost, represent an obligation to repay the borrowed funds.

The following table shows the fair values of the transferred assets and associated liabilities that have recourse only to the transferred
assets. In the case of Erste Group these assets and liabilities relate to repo transactions.

Dec 13 Dec 14

Fair value of Fair value of Fair value of Fair value of

transferred associated transferred associated
in EUR million assets liabilities Net position assets liabilities Net position
Loans and advances to credit institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loans and advances to customers 0 0 0 0 0 0
Trading assets 871 875 -4 5] 5] 0
Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss 0 0 0 0 0 0
Financial assets - available for sale 1,372 1,367 5 1,305 955 350
Financial assets - held to maturity 1,355 1,358 -3 479 434 45
Total 3,598 3,600 -2 1,789 1,394 394

43. Offsetting

Financial assets subject to offsetting and potential offsetting agreements in 2014

Potential effects of netting agreements
not qualifying for balance sheet offsetting

Amounts set off Non-cash Net amount

Gross amounts against financial Net amounts in Financial Cash collateral financial collateral after potential

in EUR million in balance sheet liabilities balance sheet instruments received received offsetting
Derivatives 10,045 0 10,045 5,655 2,378 0 2,012
Reverse repurchase agreements 1,435 0 1,435 0 0 1,074 360
Total 11,480 0 11,480 5,655 2,378 1,074 2,373

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting and potential offsetting agreements in 2014

Potential effects of netting agreements
not qualifying for balance sheet offsetting

Amounts set off Non-cash Net amount

Gross amounts against financial Net amounts in Financial Cash collateral financial collateral after potential

in EUR million in balance sheet assets balance sheet instruments pledged pledged offsetting
Derivatives 7,914 0 7,914 5,655 605 0 1,655
Repurchase agreements 1,464 0 1,464 0 0 1,431 33
Total 9,379 0 9,379 5,655 605 1,431 1,688

Financial assets subject to offsetting and potential offsetting agreements in 2013 restated

Potential effects of netting agreements
not qualifying for balance sheet offsetting

Amounts set off Non-cash Net amount

Gross amounts against financial Net amounts in Financial Cash collateral financial collateral after potential

in EUR million in balance sheet liabilities balance sheet instruments received received offsetting
Derivatives 8,286 0 8,286 5,083 1,659 0 1,544
Reverse repurchase agreements 3,892 0 3,892 0 11 3,649 233
Total 12,178 0 12,178 5,083 1,670 3,649 1,776

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting and potential offsetting agreements in 2013 restated

Potential effects of netting agreements
not qualifying for balance sheet offsetting

Amounts set off Non-cash Net amount

Gross amounts against financial Net amounts in Financial Cash collateral financial collateral after potential

in EUR million in balance sheet assets balance sheet instruments pledged pledged offsetting
Derivatives 6,731 0 6,731 5,083 647 0 1,001
Repurchase agreements 3,600 0 3,600 0 0 3,591 8
Total 10,331 0 10,331 5,083 647 3,591 1,009
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Erste Group employs repurchase agreements and master netting agreements as a means of reducing credit risk of derivative and financing
transactions. They qualify as potential offsetting agreements.

Master netting agreements are relevant for counterparties with multiple derivative contracts. They provide for the net settlement of all the
contracts in the event of default of any counterparty. For derivatives transactions the values of assets and liabilities that would be set off as
a result of master netting agreements are presented in the column Financial instruments. If the net position is further secured by cash
collateral the effect is disclosed in the columns Cash collateral received/pledged respectively.

Repurchase agreements are primarily financing transactions. They are structured as a sale and subsequent repurchase of securities at a pre-
agreed price and time. This ensures that the securities remain in the hands of the lender as collateral in case the borrower defaults on
fulfilling any of its obligations. Offsetting effects from repurchase agreements are disclosed in the column Non-cash financial collateral
received / pledged respectively. Collateral is presented at the fair value of the transferred securities. However, if the fair value of collateral
exceeds the carrying amount of the receivable/liability from the repo transaction the value is capped at the level of the carrying amount.
Remaining position may be secured by cash collateral.

Cash and non-cash financial collateral involved in these transactions is restricted from being used it by the transferor during the time of
the pledge.

44. Risk management
44.1) Risk policy and strategy

It is a core function of every bank to take risks in a conscious and selective manner and to manage such risks professionally. Erste Group’s
proactive risk policy and strategy aims at achieving balanced risk and return in order to generate a sustainable and adequate return on
equity.

Erste Group uses a risk management and control system that is proactive and tailored to its business and risk profile. It is based on a clear
risk strategy that is consistent with the Group’s business strategy and focused on early identification and management of risks and trends.
In addition to meeting the internal goal of effective and efficient risk management, Erste Group’s risk management and control system has
been developed to fulfil external and, in particular, regulatory requirements.

Given Erste Group’s business strategy, the key risks for Erste Group are credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, and operational risk. Erste
Group also focuses on managing macroeconomic risks as well as concentrations within and across risk types. In addition, Erste Group’s
control and risk management framework takes into account a range of other significant risks faced by the banking Group. The bank al-
ways seeks to enhance and complement existing methods and processes, in all areas of risk management.

The year 2014 was marked by the clear strategy of the management for the implementation of adequate measures to extensively clean up
the bank’s portfolio. These included higher risk provisions in Romania accompanied by an accelerated reduction of non-performing loans
as well as higher expenses disclosed under other operating result in Hungary as a result of the new consumer loan law. Furthermore, the
key focus was also on the Asset Quality Review and associated stress test carried out by the European Central Bank (ECB) and the Euro-
pean Banking Authority (EBA), which Erste Group has comfortably passed. In addition, emphasis was put on strengthening risk govern-
ance and ensuring compliance with new regulatory requirements.

Erste Group Bank AG uses the Internet as the medium for publishing disclosures of Erste Group under Article 434 Capital Requirements
Regulation (CRR). Details are available on the website of Erste Group at www.erstegroup.com/ir.

44.2) Risk management organisation

Risk monitoring and control is achieved through a clear organisational structure with defined roles and responsibilities, delegated authori-
ties and risk limits.

The following chart presents an overview of Erste Group’s risk management, risk governance and responsibilities.
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Overview of risk management structure

The management board, and in particular Erste Group’s chief risk officer (Group CRO), perform the oversight function within Erste

Group’s risk management structure. Risk control and risk steering within Erste Group are performed based on the business strategy and risk

appetite approved by the management board. The Group CRO, working together with the chief risk officers of the subsidiaries, is responsi-

ble for the implementation of and adherence to the risk control and risk management strategies across all risk types and business lines.

The management board and, in particular, the Group CRO ensure the availability of appropriate infrastructure and staff as well as meth-

ods, standards and processes to that effect; the actual identification, measurement, assessment, approval, monitoring, steering and limit

setting for the relevant risks are performed at the operating entity level within Erste Group.

At Group level, the management board is supported by several divisions established to perform operating risk control functions and exer-

cise strategic risk management responsibilities.

The following risk management functions report directly to the Group CRO:

_ Enterprise-wide Risk Management
_ Group Credit & Market Risk Management
_ Group EGI Real Estate Risk Management
_ Group Risk Operating Office

_ Group Workout

_ Operational Risk, Compliance and Security
_ Risk Methods and Models
_ Group Legal
_ Group Retail and SME Risk Management
_ Group Validation
_ Local Chief Risk Officers

Enterprise-wide Risk Management
Enterprise-wide Risk Management (ERM) has been established to enable an increased focus on holistic risk management and provide

comprehensive, cross-risk oversight to further enhance Group-wide risk portfolio steering.
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It drives key strategic cross-risk initiatives to establish greater cohesion between defining the risk strategy incl. risk appetite, limit steering
and implementing the risk strategy. ERM works with all risk functions and key divisions to strengthen risk oversight Group-wide, covering
credit, liquidity, market and business risk. This division is responsible for the Group’s Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) including internal and external stress testing, and furthermore for the proper risk-weighted assets (RWA) calculation, the Group-
wide risk portfolio steering in view of material risks, risk planning and risk input into capital planning, and risk appetite and limit manage-
ment.

Group Credit & Market Risk Management

Group Credit & Market Risk Management is the operative risk management function for medium-sized and large customers as well as for
institutional clients and counterparties. This division ensures that only credit and market risk in line with the risk appetite, the risk strategy
and pertinent limits set by ERM is taken onto the books of Erste Group. It consists of five departments: Group Corporate Analysis, Credit
Underwriting Corporates, Credit Underwriting Financial Institutions & Sovereigns, Corporate Portfolio Monitoring & Management, and
Market Risk Control & Infrastructure.

Group Corporate Analysis performs corporate analyses for Erste Holding and Erste Group Immorent (EGI) and is responsible for the
Group financial analysis tool SABINE. Credit Underwriting Corporates is responsible for the Group-wide underwriting of credit risks
associated with major corporate customers, and the management of credit applications and training activities. It is the first-line risk man-
agement unit for all corporate business booked in the Holding and the second-line risk management unit for corporate business booked in
Erste Group’s subsidiaries and the ‘Haftungsverbund’. Corporate Portfolio Monitoring & Management is responsible for corporate risk
policies and procedures along with the credit process and the operative monitoring of credit risk. Credit Underwriting Financial Institu-
tions & Sovereigns is responsible for ratings, analysis, all operative credit risk management responsibilities (risk assessments, approval of
transactions and limits, policies, watch lists and early warning systems) and the workout of financial institutions (banks, insurance com-
panies and funds), regional governments, sovereigns, countries and structured products. Market Risk Control & Infrastructure is responsi-
ble for the Group-wide risk and limit monitoring of all trading book positions, the end-of-day market data process that ensures validated
market data for the valuation of all capital market products, independent price verification, the market conformity check of new trades, as
well as the maintenance and support of all tools used by Market Risk Management.

Group EGI Real Estate Risk Management

The Group EGI Real Estate Risk Management department is responsible for risk management in the commercial real estate segment of
Erste Group and in Erste Group Immorent (EGI). The department is responsible for the real estate risk polices and operations, the contin-
uous advancement of real estate credit risk management in Erste Group and for the support of credit underwriting in operative activities,
specifically the development and optimisation of the credit application and approval process, the setup and implementation of appropriate
standards, and operating instructions across the Group.

Group Risk Operating Office
This function provides the infrastructure and general management across all functions within the risk organisation and is responsible for
the budget and staff of the entire CRO division.

In addition, the focus of the Group Risk Operating Office is on long-term infrastructure enhancements, project implementation, risk data
and reporting, and regulatory management.

In detail, the covered business areas comprise the following units: Risk Data and Reporting, including Credit Risk Reporting, Risk Infor-
mation Management and Market & Liquidity Risk Reporting, as well as Project Hub, Group Risk Regulatory Management and the Group
Risk Administration Office.

Group Workout

The Group Workout function has Group-wide responsibility for clients allocated to the business segments Large Corporates, Commercial
Real Estate and Other Corporate that are rated substandard or non-performing or are specifically defined as workout clients. It undertakes
the direct workout management function for corporate workout clients of Erste Holding and additionally performs the (second-line) risk
management function for corporate workout clients of the subsidiaries exceeding local management’s authorisation level.

Based on regulatory requirements, Group Workout is responsible for generating Group-wide workout policies, the designing of guidelines

for the preparation of local workout reports and the preparation of Holding workout reports. Additionally, the division organises expert
training programmes as well as workshops to ensure knowledge transfer across Erste Group entities.
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Another important task of the division is its responsibility for Group-wide collateral management. This includes the setup of standards for
collateral management, the framework for a Group collateral catalogue, and principles for collateral evaluation and revaluation.

Operational Risk, Compliance and Security
This division is responsible for the management of operational risks, compliance risks and security issues. The business area comprises
Group Operational Risk Management, Group Compliance and Group Security Management.

Compliance risks are those of legal or regulatory sanctions, material financial loss or loss of reputation that Erste Group might suffer as a
result of failure to comply with laws, regulations, rules and standards. Core competencies in the handling of compliance risks are exer-
cised by Group Compliance in the context of the Austrian Securities Supervision Act, the Austrian Stock Exchange Act and the Austrian
Banking Act, as well as the respective community law.

The Group Security Management unit protects and preserves the safety and security of bank personnel and assets (incl. information as-
sets). Group Security Management is responsible for the definition of security standards, quality assurance and the monitoring and further
development of security-related issues at Erste Group. Group Operational Risk Management acts as the central and independent risk
control department for identification, measurement and quantification of operational risk within Erste Group.

Risk Methods and Models

The Risk Methods and Models division is responsible for specific aspects of the management of credit, market and liquidity risk, especial-
ly the modelling aspects. This area provides adequate risk measurement methodologies and tools as well as an appropriate framework for
relevant risk policy and control.

The Credit Risk Methods and Models unit, which is structured on the basis of competence centers, covers the topics of rating models, risk
parameters and other credit risk methods.

The responsibilities covered by Market and Liquidity Risk Methods and Models are the development of risk models related to Basel 3
Pillar 1 (specifically the calculation of the regulatory capital requirements for market risk in the trading book) and Pillar 2 capital re-
quirements as well as other internal steering purposes.

Group Legal

Group Legal, with its two sub-units Banking & Corporate Legal and Markets Legal, acts as the central legal department of the Holding.
Group Legal provides legal support and counsel for the management board, the business units and the central functions, and mitigates
legal risk; it also attends to legal sourcing and to dispute resolution and litigation.

Legal support for the business activities of the banking subsidiaries in the respective jurisdictions in which they operate is performed by
separate locally established legal departments. While reporting to the local management, typically the local CRO, the heads of the local
legal department also report to the head of Group Legal in a functional dotted line matrix responsibility.

Group Retail and SME Risk Management
The core task of Group Retail and SME Risk Management is to ensure oversight and steering for the retail and SME loan portfolios across
the Group.

The Group Retail Risk Policy and Collections department defines the retail lending framework across the lending cycle including portfo-
lio management and early and late collection. This unit ensures implementation of these policies through a regular gap analysis process.
The department also reviews and assesses local entities’ new lending products and lending criteria changes to ensure that these are in line
with Group-wide retail lending policies. In addition, this department ensures know-how transfer on retail risk management issues across
Group countries.

The Group Retail Risk Analytics department defines standardised reporting requirements and ensures regular, consistent retail risk man-
agement information. Based on this information, the underlying retail lending portfolio dynamics are analysed and, if required, risk miti-
gation is identified. This department also provides in-depth, ad hoc analyses to support senior management in risk management decisions.
Group Retail and SME Risk Control is a newly established department that is currently extending the existing retail risk management
oversight and steering tools to the SME portfolio in local entities.
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Group Validation

The objective of Group Validation is to comply with regulatory requirements regarding the performance of validations (initial and annual)
concerning all the models and methodologies (internal or from external vendors) for credit ratings, scorecards and parameters on the one
hand and concerning models and methodologies for derivatives, securities valuation, asset liability management (ALM), pricing and
internal steering in Erste Group on the other hand.

Within the structure, the Group Credit Risk Validation unit is responsible for the independent review of credit risk methods and models
developed internally by Erste Group as well as externally purchased ones. This unit validates all new models prior to initiation of the
internal approval process and supports the local banks by ensuring prudential validation of all models. It also performs all the annual
validations, ensuring that the decreed requirements for all the validations are met.

In addition to the risk management activities performed by Erste Group Bank AG in its role as the holding company, each subsidiary also
has risk control and management units, the responsibilities of which are tailored to the local requirements and which are headed by the
respective entity’s chief risk officer.

Group co-ordination of risk management activities
The management board deals regularly with risk issues of all risk types in its regular board meetings. Actions are discussed and taken
when needed.

Furthermore, certain cross-divisional committees were established with the purpose of carrying out risk management activities in Erste
Group. They are shown in the following diagram:

Risk Committee Supervisory Board

Management Board

Enforcement (local roll-out)
of global approved policies,
methods and models

GCC GREC ALCO
Group Credit Group Risk Group Asset Liability

Committee Executive Committee Committee
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The Risk Management Committee of the Supervisory Board is responsible for granting approval in all those cases in which loans
and exposures or large exposures reach an amount exceeding the approval authority of the management board according to the Credit
Risk Approval Authority Regulations. It is charged with granting approval to large exposures pursuant to Article 392 CRR, if such a claim
is equal to or exceeds 10% of the eligible capital of a credit institution. Within the competence assigned to it, the Committee may grant
advance approvals to the extent permitted by law.

In addition it is responsible for supervising the risk management of Erste Group Bank AG. The Risk Management Committee meets regu-
larly. As the central risk control body, the Risk Management Committee is regularly briefed on the risk status across all risk types.

The Group Credit Committee (GCC) is responsible for deciding on transactions according to the current credit risk approval regula-
tions. The GCC decides on credit risk exposures totalling up to EUR 300 million per group of connected clients. Exposures in excess of
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EUR 300 million must be decided on by the Risk Management Committee on the basis of a recommendation by the Group Credit Com-
mittee. The GCC is headed by the Group CRO. Further members are the board member responsible for Corporates & Markets, the head of
Group Credit & Market Risk Management, the head of Group Workout and the head of the requesting business line. Each local bank has
its local credit committee established along the same principles.

The Group Risk Executive Committee (GREC) is the central forum for all joint resolutions and acknowledgements in the Erste Group
Holding CRO division across all its departments and staff units. Its purpose is the division-wide co-ordination of all the holding’s risk
management functions. It discusses and decides on key risk management issues and topics, in particular it defines the division’s strategy
and ensures implementation of common risk management standards (e.g. pertaining to processes, systems, reporting and governance).

The CRO Board is responsible for the consistent co-ordination and implementation of risk management activities within Erste Group,
including the ‘Haftungsverbund’. The CRO Board is made up of the Group CRO and the chief risk officers of the subsidiaries within
Erste Group. Chaired by the Group CRO, the CRO Board has responsibility for Group-wide co-ordination of risk management and for
ensuring uniformity of risk management standards across Erste Group.

The Holding Model Committee (HMC) is the elementary steering and control body for the model development and validation process.
All new models and model changes and risk parameters in the Group, as well as Group-wide methodology standards, are reviewed by the
Holding Model Committee and require its approval.

The Group ERM Committee (GERMC) is the sole forum for all joint decisions and acknowledgements in the Enterprise-wide Risk
Management (ERM) area across all Erste Group entities and Erste Group Bank AG. Its purpose is the Group-wide co-ordination of the
ERM functions, in particular on ICAAP and economic capital, stress testing, RWA, risk appetite and limit steering. Furthermore, the
GERMC discusses other key ERM topics and ensures the Group-wide implementation of common ERM standards.

The objectives of the Operational Risk, Compliance and Security Committee (ORCSC) are to reduce operational risk at Group level
through decisions on risk mitigation measures and the monitoring of these risks, and to handle substantial operational risks within the
Group. The ORCSC has the authority to propose risk mitigation measures at Group level to the CRO Board and management board and
consists of the following permanent members: Group Head Operational Risk, Compliance and Security, Head Operational Risk Manage-
ment, Head Group Compliance and Head Group Security Management. The ORCSC chair (Group Head ORCS) regularly reports to the
management board and supervisory board.

The Market Risk Committee (MARA) is the main steering body for market risk of trading book related issues of Erste Group. The
Market Risk Committee meets quarterly, approves Group-wide market risk limits and elaborates on the current market situation. The
members of the MARA are the Group CRO, the board member heading the Group Corporates and Markets division and the Group CFO,
as well as the heads of the units Group Capital Markets, Group ALM, Group Credit & Market Risk Management, Risk Methods and
Models, Enterprise-wide Risk Management and Group Validation.

The Group Asset/Liability Committee (ALCO) manages the consolidated Group balance sheet, focusing on trade-offs between all
affected consolidated balance sheet risks (interest rate, exchange rate and liquidity risks), and takes care of the setting of Group standards
and limits for the members of Erste Group. In addition, it approves policies and strategies for controlling liquidity risk, interest rate risk
(net interest income), capital management of the banking book, as well as examining proposals, statements and opinions of ALM, risk
management, controlling and accounting functions. The approved investment strategy complies with the guidelines agreed with Risk
Management.

The Operational Liquidity Committee (OLC) is responsible for the day-to-day management of the global liquidity position of Erste
Group. It analyses the liquidity situation of Erste Group on a regular basis and reports directly to the ALCO.

It also proposes measures to the ALCO within the scope of the management policies and principles laid down in the Liquidity Risk Man-
agement Rule Book. Furthermore, members of the Group OLC are points of contact for other departments or Erste Group members for

liquidity-related matters. Each local bank has its own local operational liquidity committee.

In addition, committees are established at local level, such as the ‘Risikomanagementbeirat’ in Austria. This implements a common risk
approach within the Austrian members of Erste Group (i.e. Erste Bank Oesterreich and the savings banks).
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44.3) Regulatory topics

Regulatory scope of consolidation and institutional protection scheme

The consolidated regulatory capital and the consolidated regulatory capital requirements are calculated based on the scope of consolida-
tion stipulated in the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR). Based on Article 4 (1) (3), (16) to (27) CRR in line with Articles 18 and 19
CRR, the scope consists of credit institutions, investment firms, financial institutions and ancillary service undertakings. This definition
differs from the Accounting scope of consolidation according to IFRS, which also includes insurance companies and other entities.

The Austrian savings banks are included as subsidiaries in Erste Group’s regulatory scope of consolidation based on the cross-guarantee
contracts of the ‘Haftungsverbund’. Furthermore, Erste Group Bank AG together with the savings banks forms an institutional protection
scheme (IPS) according to Article 113 (7) CRR. Disclosure requirements for the institutional protection scheme according to Article 113
(7) e CRR are met by the publication of the consolidated financial statements, which cover all entities included in the institutional protec-
tion scheme.

Regulatory capital

Since 1 January 2014, Erste Group has been calculating the regulatory capital and the regulatory capital requirements according to Basel
3. The requirements are implemented within the European Union via the Capital Requirements Directive (CRD 1V) and the Capital Re-
quirements Regulation (CRR), as well as within the regulatory technical standards. Furthermore, the Austrian Banking Act applies in
connection with the CRR. Erste Group applies these rules and calculates the capital ratios according to Basel 3, taking into consideration
the Austrian transitional provisions which are laid down in the CRR ‘Begleitverordnung’, published by the Austrian regulator.

The disclosure requirements for the regulatory capital and regulatory capital requirements were published in the Official Journal of the
European Union on 20 December 2013. Erste Group has adapted the charts accordingly and publishes the details of the regulatory capital
and regulatory capital requirements in the Note 51. Positions that are not relevant for Erste Group or do not have any impact on the capital
ratios are not shown.

Own funds under Basel 3 consist of common equity tier 1 (CET1), additional tier 1 (AT1) and tier 2 (T2). In order to determine the capital
ratios, each respective capital component, after accounting for all the regulatory deductions and filters, is considered in relation to the total
risk.

According to the final rules the minimum ratio for CET1 amounts to 4.5%, which can be increased based on the buffer regime according
to CRD IV. The minimum capital requirement for tier 1 capital (CET1 plus AT1) and for total own funds are 6% and 8% respectively.
According to the Austrian transitional provisions the minimum ratios for 2014 amount to 4% for CET1, 5.5% for tier 1 and 8% for total
own funds. No additional capital buffers were required for the year-end 2014.

Leverage ratio

The leverage ratio represents the core capital (tier 1) in relation to the leverage exposure according to Article 429 CRR. Essentially, the
leverage exposure represents the unweighted on- and off-balance-sheet positions considering valuation adjustments and risk adjustments
as defined within the CRR.

In January 2014, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) published the Basel 3 leverage ratio framework and disclosure
requirements, which is a revised version of the global guideline on calculation and disclosure requirements for the leverage ratio. Based
on this framework, the European Commission prepared a delegated regulation ((EU) 2015/62 of 10 October 2014), which was published
in the Official Journal of the European Union on 17 January 2015.

The implementation of the revised requirements for calculation and disclosure of the leverage ratio within the European Union will take
place in 2015. Erste Group will apply these regulations accordingly.

ECB Asset Quality Review and Stress Test

From 2013 to 2014 Erste Group participated in the Comprehensive Assessment of the European Central Bank ECB). The Comprehensive
Assessment was a financial health check of 130 banks in the euro area, covering approximately 82% of total bank assets. Erste Group
passed the asset quality review and the stress test carried out within the scope of the Comprehensive Assessment.
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Asset quality review

A phase-in CET]1 ratio of 11.2% as at 31 December 2013 (Basel 3) was used as the reference point for the asset quality review. Aggregat-
ed adjustments due to the outcome of the AQR were mainly related to Romanian and Hungarian assets and amounted to 117 basis points,
resulting in an AQR-adjusted phase-in CET]1 ratio as at 31 December 2013 of 10.0%. The impact of the AQR for Erste Group is outlined
in the chapter ‘Credit risk’ in section ‘Non-performing credit risk exposure and credit risk provisions’.

Stress test (adverse scenario)

An AQR-adjusted phase-in CET1 ratio of 10% as at 31 December 2013 was used as the reference point for the stress test. In spite of
severe macroeconomic stress test conditions the AQR and adverse scenario stress-test-adjusted CET1 ratio, according to the transitional
provisions of Basel 3, amounted to 7.6% (minimum ratio of 5.5%). Even without the application of transitional Basel 3 rules, the adverse
scenario stress-test-adjusted CET1 ratio (fully loaded CET1) was 6.8%.

AQR and stress test of Slovenska sporiteliia

Erste Group’s Slovak subsidiary Slovenska sporitel'fia was subject to a separate AQR and stress test and also successfully completed and
passed the assessment: the AQR-adjusted phase-in CET]1 ratio as at 31 December 2013: 19.5%, compared to a threshold of 8.0% the AQR
ratio and adverse scenario stress-test-adjusted phase-in CET1 ratio: 19.5% (threshold: 5.5%) as of 31 December 2013.

The complete detailed results of all participating banks, including Erste Group, are publicly available and can be accessed via the ECB
and EBA websites.

44.4) Group-wide risk and capital management

Overview

As in prior years, Erste Group’s risk management framework has been continuously strengthened. In particular, Enterprise-wide Risk
Management (ERM) has continued to strengthen its comprehensive framework. This includes as its fundamental pillar the Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), as required under Pillar 2 of the Basel framework.

The ERM framework is designed to support the bank’s management in managing the risk portfolios as well as the coverage potential to
assure at all times adequate capital reflecting the nature and magnitude of the bank’s risk profile. ERM is tailored to the Group’s business
and risk profile, and it reflects the strategic goal of protecting shareholders and senior debt holders while ensuring the sustainability of the
organisation.

ERM is a modular and comprehensive management and steering system within Erste Group and is an essential part of the overall steering
and management instruments. The ERM components necessary to ensure all aspects, in particular also to fulfil regulatory requirements,
and moreover to provide an internal value added, can be clustered as follows:
_ Risk appetite statement
_ Portfolio & risk analytics including
_ Risk materiality assessment
_ Concentration risk management
_ Stress testing
_ Risk-bearing capacity calculation
_ Risk planning & forecasting including
_ Risk-weighted asset management
_ Capital allocation
_ Recovery and resolution plans

In addition to the ICAAP’s ultimate goal of assuring capital adequacy and sustainability at all times, the ERM components serve to sup-
port the bank’s management in pursuing its strategy.

Risk appetite

Erste Group defines its risk strategy and Risk Appetite Statement (RAS) through the annual strategic planning process to ensure appropri-
ate alignment of risk, capital and performance targets. The Group RAS represents a strategic statement expressing the maximum level of
risk that Erste Group is prepared to accept in order to deliver its business objectives. It consists of a set of key risk appetite measures
providing quantitative direction for risk steering, from which a top-down boundary for target and limit setting is derived, creating a holis-
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tic perspective on capital, funding and risk-return trade-offs, and qualitative statements in the form of key risk principles that form part of
the strategic guidelines for managing risks. The key objective of RAS is to:

_ ensure that Erste Group has sufficient resources to support business at any given point in time and absorb stress market events

_ set boundaries of the Group’s risk-return target setting

_ preserve and promote the market’s perception of the Group’s financial strength and the robustness of its systems and controls

Key RAS measures include general indicators (i.e. capital, leverage, etc.) as well as indicators for credit (including FX lending), market
operational and liquidity risk. To ensure that the RAS is operationally efficient, the indicators are classified as either targets, limits or
principles, where the main differences are in the mechanisms triggered in case of a breach of the RAS.

Targets are in general derived as part of the planning process, where the final budget is aligned with the targets set. Trigger levels for RAS
limits are set taking into consideration regulatory requirements and general expectations of a sustainable financial profile, which can vary
over time driven by market conditions, peer profiles and shareholder perception. A significant deviation from a target or limit triggers
management action, and a ‘cure’ plan for the next 12 months must be formulated. Regular reviews are performed and management reports
are prepared in order to ensure effective RAS oversight and identify any excesses. Remediation measures must be taken to resolve any
limit breach exceptions as soon as possible. Principles include qualitative strategic statements and are applied ex ante and operationalised,
e.g. via strategies, guidelines and policies for managing risks.

In 2014, the RAS framework was further enhanced by broadening the scope to include additional risks (i.e. operational and reputational
risk, etc.) and increasing the level of granularity by adding additional risk measures. Tighter limits and targets were defined, which serve
capital and liquidity management in particular.

In 2014, the relevant RAS indicators developed within the tolerances defined in the Group RAS except for cost of risk and other operating
expenses, which were affected by the developments in Romania and Hungary as well as the targeted management efforts to address these
adverse developments, and a few breaches of the maximum lending limits for single-name concentrations, which were well covered by
the strategic buffer established at Group level.

Portfolio and risk analytics

Erste Group uses dedicated infrastructure, systems and processes to actively identify, control and manage risks within the scope of the
portfolio. Portfolio and risk analytics processes are designed to quantify, qualify and discuss risks in order to raise awareness to manage-
ment in a timely manner.

Risk materiality assessment
The risk materiality assessment is an annual process with the purpose of systematically identifying new and assessing existing material
risks for Erste Group. The process uses a combination of quantitative and qualitative factors in the assessment of each risk type.

This process represents the starting point of the ICAAP process, as identified material risk types need to be considered in the risk-bearing-
capacity calculation. Insights generated by the assessment are used to improve risk management practices and further mitigate risks within
the Group. The assessment also serves as an input for the design and definition of the Group’s Risk Strategy and Risk Appetite Statement.
Key outputs and recommendations of the risk materiality assessment are used in the scenario design and selection of the comprehensive
and reverse stress tests.

Risk concentration analysis
Erste Group has implemented a process to identify, measure, control and manage risk concentrations. This process is essential to ensure
the long-term viability of Erste Group, especially in times of adverse business environment and stressed economic conditions.

The risk concentration analysis at Erste Group covers credit risk, market risk, operational risk, liquidity risk and inter-risk concentrations.
Identified risk concentrations are considered in the scenario design of the comprehensive stress test and measured under stressed condi-

tions.

The output of the risk concentration analysis additionally contributes to the identification of material risks within the risk materiality
assessment as well as to the Risk Appetite Statement and to the setting/calibration of Erste Group’s limit system.

178



Stress testing

Modelling sensitivities of the Group’s assets, liabilities and profit or loss provide management and steering impulses and help in optimis-
ing the Group’s risk-return profile. The additional dimension of stress tests should help to factor in severe but plausible scenarios and
provide further robustness to the measuring, steering and management system. Risk modelling and stress testing are vital forward-looking
elements of the ICAAP. Finally, sensitivities and stress scenarios are explicitly considered within the Group’s planning and budgeting
process as well as in the risk-bearing capacity calculation and the setting of the maximum risk exposure limit.

Erste Group’s most complex stress test is a scenario stress test that takes comprehensive account of the impact of various economic sce-
narios, including second-round effects on all risk types (credit, market, liquidity and operational) and in addition impacts on the associated
volumes of assets and liabilities as well as on profit and loss sensitivities.

Erste Group has developed specific tools to translate macroeconomic variables (e.g. GDP, unemployment rate development) into risk
parameters in order to support the stress testing process, which combines bottom—up and top—down approaches. In addition, Erste Group
leverages the intimate knowledge of its professionals located in the different regions to further calibrate the model-based stress parame-
ters. Special attention is given to take into account adequate granularity and special characteristics when defining the stress parameters
(e.g. the particular developments in the respective region, industry, product type or segment).

Results from all of Erste Group’s stress tests are assessed with regard to their explanatory power in order to decide on appropriate
measures. All stress tests performed in the reporting period clearly indicated sufficient capital adequacy.

Erste Group additionally participated in the stress test exercise carried out by the European Central Bank (ECB) and the European Bank-
ing Authority (EBA). The results of these stress tests showed that Erste Group’s regulatory capital was adequate.

Risk-bearing capacity calculation

The risk-bearing capacity calculation (RCC) defines the capital adequacy required by the ICAAP. Within the RCC, all material risks are
quantified, aggregated and compared to the coverage potential and the bank’s own funds. The integral forecast, risk appetite limit as well
as a traffic light system support management in its discussions and decision processes.

The traffic light system embedded in Erste Group’s RCC helps to alert the management in case there is a need to decide on, plan and
execute actions either to replenish the capital base or to take measures for reducing the risk.

The management board and risk management committees are briefed on a quarterly basis in relation to the results of the capital adequacy
calculation. The report includes movements in risks and available capital and coverage potential after consideration of potential losses in
stress situations, the degree of the risk limit’s utilisation and the overall status of capital adequacy according to the traffic light system.
The Group Risk Report also includes a comprehensive forecast of risk-weighted assets and capital adequacy.

Besides the Pillar 1 risk types (credit, market and operational risks), in the context of Pillar 2, interest rate risks in the banking book,
foreign exchange risks arising from equity investments, credit spread risks in the banking book, risks from foreign currency loans as well
as business and strategic risks are explicitly considered within the economic capital requirement via internal models. During 2014 the
utilisation of the economic capital was between 62% and 66%. The methodologies that are applied for the different risk types are diverse
and range from historic simulations and other value at risk approaches to the regulatory approach for residual portfolios. Moreover, calcu-
lations for portfolios under the standard regulatory approach are extended by risk parameters from the internal ratings-based approach in
order to give a better economic view.

In addition to the risk-bearing capacity calculation, liquidity, concentration and macroeconomic risks in particular are managed by means
of a proactive management framework that includes forward-looking scenarios, stress testing, trigger levels and traffic light systems.

Based on Erste Group’s business and risk profile, besides the three main types of banking risks — credit risk, market risk and operational
risk — also risks from foreign currency loans as well as business and strategic risks are considered directly in the risk-bearing capital cal-
culation Credit risk accounts for approximately 71% of the total economic capital requirement. Reflecting Erste Group’s conservative risk
management policy and strategy, the Group does not offset diversification effects between these three risk types. The economic capital
requirement for unexpected losses is computed on a one-year time horizon with a 99.95% confidence level, which reflects the implied
default risk consistent with a long-term credit rating of AA as well as Erste Group's conservative approach and high risk management
standards.
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The capital or coverage potential required to cover economic risks and unexpected losses is based on Basel 3 fully loaded regulatory own
funds adapted by held-to-maturity reserves and the year-to-date profit. The coverage potential must be sufficient to absorb unexpected
losses resulting from the Group’s operations at any point in time.

Risk planning and forecasting

The responsibility for risk management within the Group and each subsidiary includes ensuring sound risk planning and forecasting pro-
cesses. The forecasts determined by risk management are the result of close co-operation with all stakeholders in the Group’s overall
planning process, and in particular with Group Controlling, Asset Liability Management and the business lines. The risk planning and
forecasting process includes both a forward- and backward-looking component, focusing on both portfolio and economic environment
changes.

A particular role and forward-looking element is played by the rolling one-year forecast within the RCC which is vital in determining the
trigger level of the traffic light system.

Risk-weighted asset management

As risk-weighted assets (RWA) determine the actual regulatory capital requirement of a bank and influence the capital ratio as a key per-
formance indicator, particular emphasis is devoted to meeting targets and to the planning and forecasting capacity for this parameter.
Insights from monthly RWA analyses are used to improve the calculation infrastructure, the quality of input parameters and data as well as
the most efficient ap